Public Document Pack

Children and Young People Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad

Committee Room 1 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru

Meeting date: National

12 January 2012 Assembly for
Wales

Meeting time: F"
09:30 /

For further information please contact:

Claire Morris

Committee Clerk

029 2089 8148 / 029 2089 8032
CYPCommittee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions (9:30)

2. Implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009:

Evidence Session (09:30 - 10:10)
Urdd

Break (10.10 - 10.20)

3. Implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009:

Evidence Session (10:20 - 11:00)
Llamau

4. Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the

public from the meeting for the following business: (11:00)
Members to consider the motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude
the public from the meeting for the following business:

5. Children's Oral Health in Wales: Consideration of the draft
recommendations (11.00 - 11:45)

6. Flying Start: Consideration of the terms of reference (11:45 -
12:15)

7. Implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009:



Discussion of evidence (12:15 - 12:30)

8. Papers to note

Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 1 - Correspondence from ATL Cymru regarding the
implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009, at the
Committee meeting on 17 November (Page 1)

Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 2 - Correspondence from NTfW regarding the
implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009, at the
Committee meeting on 1 December

(Pages 2 - 3)

Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 3 - Correspondence from Careers Wales regarding
the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009, at the
Committee meeting on 1 December

(Pages 4 - 79)

Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 4 - Correspondence from UCU regarding the
implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009, at the
Committee meeting on 17 November

(Pages 80 - 83)

Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 5 - Correspondence from the Minister for Health and
Social Services (dated 4 December 2011) responding to issues raised during the
discussion of the draft budget in Committee on 19 October 2011

(Pages 84 - 87)

Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 6 - Correspondence from the Minister for Health and
Social Services (dated 14 December 2011) responding to issues raised during
the discussion on the children’s oral health inquiry in Committee on 3
November 2011

(Pages 88 - 158)

Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 7 - Correspondence from the Minister for Local
Government and Communities, dated, 22 December 2011, regarding information
from the Youth Justice Board following Committee on 5 October 2011 (Pages
159 - 161)



Agenda Iltem 8a

Children and Young People Committee
CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 1

Implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure
2009

Additional information from ATL Cymru following oral evidence at the
committee meeting on 17 November 2011

Improving skills levels

. Is the implementation of the Measure having an impact on improving the
level of skills of young people?

Our members report that it is having some marginal impact in that it
promotes a greater vocational offer which is more accessible to some
youngsters. This may also account of the reduction in the numbers leaving
school with no qualifications at all.

. Has the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure had any
impact, either positive or negative, on those learners who intend to aim for
higher education?

We are not in a position to answer this question. It might be useful to track

student destinations to shed light on it and see if any variations in the
statistics could be accounted for by the Measure.

Page 1



Agenda Item 8b

FFEDERASIWN HYFFORDDIANT i
Uned7 CENEDLAETHOL CYMRU Unlt7

Cae Gwyrdd Greenmeadow Springs

Caerdydd N I W Cardiff

CF15 7AB CF15 7AB
NATIONAL TRAI WIN(

Ffon 029 2061 8228 FEDERATION WALL Tel: 029 2061 8228
Ffacs: 029 2061 8228 Fax: 029 2061 8228

Children and Young People Committee
CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 2

Inquiry into the implementation of the Learning and Skills
(Wales) Measure 2009

Additional evidence from the National Training Federation Wales
Dear Clare,

Thank you again for the opportunity to present evidence to the Children & Young People
Committee’s meeting of 1.12.11. At that meeting, NTFW were requested to provide
additional information regarding our members’ representation on 14-19 networks. To
provide this we asked members three questions which are detailed below, along with a
summary of the responses received. Our membership falls into three broad categories —
Independent and not for profit work based learning providers; Further Education College
work based learning departments and Local Authority owned work based learning
providers. Reponses have been grouped into these categories to reflect the respective
trends.

Questions and Responses received:

1. Do you represent WBL on any 14-19 group - if so which one?

Independent and not for profit members: Yes 8, NO 63

FE College Work Based Learning Departments: Yes 0, No 12 (although all stated that the

FE side of the college rather than the WBL side of the college were represented well)
Local authority owned providers: Yes 5 No 1

2. Have you ever been invited to join a 14-19 network curriculum planning group? If so which
one?

Independent and not for profit members: Yes 2 (only invited for one off, bespoke
planning groups, often relating to a course they are delivering), No 69

FE College Work Based Learning Departments: Yes 0, No 12 (although all stated that the
FE side of the college rather than the WBL side of the college were represented well)
Local authority owned providers: Yes 4 (although one of these feels the group is not
interested in WBL contribution in the meetings), No 2.

3. Have you ever been invited to actively participate in the 14-19 curriculum planning
process? If so, please give details.

Page 2

Delivering, Growing & Maintaining Skills



Independent and not for profit members: Yes 8 (1 yes, 2 were only invited as a one off, 2
felt they had indirect influence e.g. visiting 14-19 officer to explain their service provision,
3 not for whole curriculum but planning with a school or 14-19 network for a course they
are running for that school) No 63

FE College Work Based Learning Departments: Yes 2 (1 occasionally as needed to provide
vocational input, 1 at the end signing off process, when ANDP presented to strategic
network group), No 10 (although all stated that the FE side of the college rather than the
WBL side of the college were involved)

Local authority owned providers: Yes 3 (1 indirectly through the work they do with
schools, 1 used to attend but felt the curriculum group was too school orientated and
that school perception of vocational training is different to WBL provider perception and
no link to the workplace, 1 felt the curriculum group is not interested in WBL contribution
in the meetings), No 3 ( 1 felt although not invited to contribute to planning, their local
14-19 network’s curriculum did include WBL although there was scope for a greater role
with apprenticeships)

If you need further evidence or clarification, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

Rachel Searle

Regional Provider Network Advocate (South Wales)
NTFW

Page 3

\\gha01\mgdataroot\data\AgendaltemDocs\6\2\4\A100003426\$ytugwnzp.doc - 2 -



Agenda Item 8c

Children and Young People Committee
CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 3

Inquiry into the implementation of the Learning and Skills
(Wales) Measure 2009

Additional evidence from Careers Wales

Increased collaboration for post 16 delivery

It is only possible to make an anecdotal response to this question. Across
Wales we believe the picture to be mixed. Each Network has a somewhat
different approach to the delivery of additional courses and to the funding of
them e.g. in some areas, FE and schools will provide some funds from their
core funding in addition to the Network funds, but this is not necessarily the
position across every Network.

There is little evidence of collaboration with work based learning providers.
Improving skills levels

Vocational skills - it is too early to make any definitive statement on this .
Young people may well be acquiring some new skills but until there is the
opportunity to apply these new skills in a work / further learning setting, it
is difficult to assess the depth of the knowledge and understanding; i.e.
skills need to be practised and applied.

Employability skills - anecdotal evidence from some areas would suggest
that young people are increasing their generic skills such as communication,
team working etc and also showing increased motivation and confidence.

Impact on learners intending to apply for HE - it would appear that this
particular group of learners are slow to mix academic and vocational
subjects and tend to stay with the more traditional choices which they and
their parents believe are required by HE institutions

Employer support

We discussed the input provided by employers to support the provision of
impartial information and advice. Careers Wales facilitates the involvement of
employers in work related learning - for the year 2010-11, employers
undertook 17,645 interactions with learners.

Labour market information

As promised | have included a link and two attachments to LMI held on
careerswales.com

Page 4



http://beta.careerswales.com/server.php?show=nav.7692&crci=251&title=Ac

countant

’|‘§E‘1' x

%o [t Vew Faortes Tols bsb

¢ Favortes o Suggested Stes v & | Get More Add-ons ~

v Bcarenrs wales | @ career Search | Vour Car... |_\

==

| Cymraeg Select a Site v

ContactUs | Site Map | Accessibility Changetext size s A A Listen here [§

R Jcareerswales.com

Your Career

Education and Courses Contact & Careers Adviser

Jobs and Training

You are here. Home » Your Career = Career Search

Career Search

Iwant to bea... ‘Accuuntant

At present you can only search using English job titles. You will be able to search using \Welsh job titles soon

Need some ideas? Let us help you get started =
Leaflets Statistics
a Accountancy
Average Weekly - Management
Weekly Pay - oy
Today's accountants offer much more than just bookkeeping and 20 10 socoumtants
3uditing. They are financial specialists, at the heart of all areas of 760
business. To frain as an accountant. you normally need A level or
equivalent qualifications; however in practice. the majority have a By Gender
degree. 2004-2010 730
Read full leaflet
See more leaflets &
By Region = 700
2010 only 8
Videos
670 -
== Average
.ﬁ Weekly Pay
! by Age 640
f 2010 only 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010
Year
/) g B Mean Average
Audit Manager Group Financial Finance Manager Number in
Controller Occupation
See more videos @ by Region
2010 only
Weblinks
@ tion of Accounting T Please note
Agsociation of Charlered Cerlified Please note: All our labour market information is intended as a guide only. We have taken care to present
Accountants the information as clearly as possible. Our graphs and findings are often based on averages across 3
ranne of similarinhe Thare raild sien ha sristinns in arazs cuch 35 inh susilahilit 3nd o slaras . -]

¥ & Internet At W10% v

Page 5



ey

i caresrswales.com

File  Edt !’BW Favorites  Took  Help

7 Favorites

[88]-

-

=

Suggested Sites = & | Get Mare Add-ons =
}ﬂw:mmmm" x }7|

v B o e ey Toke @ 7

Ho

Your Career | |obs and Training

You are here: Home = Your Career > Spotlight on Creative Industries

Career +

Your account

Career Search

Leaflets

Weblinks

Videos

Education and Courses

Contact

Spotlight on Creative Industries

© sector summary

(O What jobs could I do?
& What skills do I need?
@ skills in demand

3 What can 1 earn?

{ Where could 1work?
@ Trends

@ What do I need to do?

) Data Sources

areers Adviser

Cregtive Industries covers a wide range of sectors and
jobs. You could be working in a high tech role in computer
games production, interactive media, social network and
web development, digital post production in Films and TV,
orwork in a more fraditional creative role in the performing
ants, literature or the fine arts

€ Did you know?

113 of all Creative jobs in Wales are
based in Cardiff

68% of the Welsh creative workforce
hald 3 gegree level qualification.

There are in the region of 3600
businesses in Wales within the
creative industries.

29% of Creative workers are women.

By 2017 there will be 7.000 more
creafive jobs in Wales; half of these will
be new jobs due to growth in the
industry

Q Tip

Do your research —a strong
understanding of the industry you are
interested in will give you the edge over
other applicants

(@ Useful links

Performing Arts weblinks
Design, Arts and Crafts weblinks
BBC Careers

Skillset

Creative & Cultural Skills
Praspects

@ Find out more

For more information and advice aboul
warking in the Creative Industries:

@ Talkto your Careers Adviser

8 _lles unur echanl ar rallona likran

C

Internet Gy R100%
i &

Page 6




¢ Favortes (4 Suggested Stes v & | Get More Add-ons +
igwmmmm.

@ Caresrs Wales

Contact a Careers Adviser

Education and Courses

You are here: Home = Your Career > Spotlight on Creative Industries
Spotlight on Creative Industries
o € Did you know?
Creative Industries covers a wide range of sectors and x Z
Your account jobs. You could be warking in 2 high tech role in computar 112 of all e“?“"“ iobs in Wales are
games production, interactive media, social network and based in Cardifl
Career Search web development, digital post production in Films and TV,
or work in @ more radiional creative role in the performing 23?: Dfdthe W‘NISN r‘;reatr:: ’;“D"m'“
old a degree level qualification
Leaflets arts, literature or the fine ars 9 9
There are in the region of 2600
Weblinks businesses in Wales within the
creative industries.
© sector summary (4]
Videos 28% of Creative workers are women
Creative Industries is probably the mast glamourous of sectors but this makes it
fiercely compefitive. It is also one of the most innovative industries. linked directly to By 2017 there will be 7,000 more
the rapid development of digital technologies and the growth of the intermet and online creative jobs in Wales: half of these will
world. be new jobs due 1o growth in the

industi
The UK Creative Industry is the largest in Europe and contributes nearly 8% of the -
UK's economy. 1+ The sector is impariant to Wales; 4% of the total UK creative
workforce is employed in Wales. &

Q Tip

Creative Industries is a growing sector. it makes up 7.3% of the Welsh economy and

is growing twice as fast as the economy as a3 whale. The Welsh Government has g
" Dae your research — a strong
\:emﬁedme i:;h!e?w;;dus}ms 3s ane of the B key sectors that will drive future understanding ofihe industry you are
URREES O " et interested in will give vou the edge over —
Creative and Cultural Indusfries tend to be cenired on capital cities. Cardiff dominates other applicants
the industry in Wales, with 30% of all Welsh Creative jobs based in Cardiff, whichis
similar o the percentage of English Creative jobs based in London. The develepment
of the BBC Wales ‘drama village' in Cardiff Bay will build on the success that national
productions like Dr Who have brought to Wales. The village will be completed towards @ Useful links
the end of 2011, and in 2012 productions will include Dr Who and Pobol ¥ Cwm
The workforce in the Creative Industries is highly skilled and relafively young. Nearly Performing Arts weblinks.
half of all Creative workers are under the age of 25 and 58% hold a degree level Toesi s ile sn Gl e i kn
qualification. 4 BEL Hwnnks
SkillSet
Creative & Cultural Skilis
Prospects
) What jobs could I do? 2
@) What skills do 1 need? =] & Find out more
For mere information and advice about
@ skills in demand (v ] warking in the Creative Industries: g

¥ & Internet g W100% v

Options Booklet

Please find attached 3 examples. | have others if you require them.

Page 7



14-19 Learning Pathways
Your 14-19 Learning Pathway will consist of one day attendance in the
vocational pathway of your choice, either in college or with a training provider,
and the remainder of the week in school. The qualifications offered are at entry
level and level 1. The courses will start in September 2011.

Learning Providers
The courses will be by the following Learning Providers:

e Merthyr Tydfil College
Ynysfach, Merthyr Tydfil, CF48 1AR
Tel: 01685 726010

e Neighbourhood Learning Centre (NLC)
17-20 Pen-y-dre, Gurnos, Merthyr Tydfil CF47 9DY
Tel: 01685 727072

e Auto Project
Aberfan & Merthyr Vale Youth & Community Project, Delacey Building, Goatmill Rd, Dowlais,
Merthyr Tydfil
Tel: 01685 375535

e Bedlinog Construction Unit

The OId Drift Mine, Trelewis, Treharris, Merthyr Tydfil
Tel: 01443 710907

Course and Learning Provider Summary

Course Entry Level \ Level 1
5¢ o 5
<o =0 8
Child Care X
Hairdressing X X
Motor Vehicle X X
Engineering X
Construction X X
Outdoor Education Pathway X
Retail X

Page 8




Information and Taster Day
To help you decide what course is best for you, your school will arrange for you to attend an
Information and Taster Day. Parents and Guardians are also welcome to attend.

e The Information Day will take place on Tuesday 15" February 2011 at Merthyr
Tydfil College.

e The Taster Day will take place on Thursday 10" March 2011 at Merthyr Tydfil
College and Neighbourhood Learning Centre; it will be a whole day event, one taster
session in the morning and another in the afternoon.

Information Day

The Information Day will give you and your parents/guardians, the opportunity to meet the
tutors from all the Learning Providers and ask questions about the course. Careers Advisers
will also be available on the day. At the end of the session, you will be given a form to
complete. The form will ask you to make a decision on two courses that you are most
interested in for a taster experience on the 10™ March 2011. You will be asked to make a first
and second choice.

All completed forms must be handed in to the school before 2"* March 2011.

If you are unable to make a choice, or would like more support to make a decision, please
contact your school or Careers Adviser.

Taster Day

The taster session will be planned to provide a practical ‘hands on’ experience of the course.
Protective equipment will be provided, but be prepared to get messy, especially for course
such as Construction, Motor Vehicle and Outdoor Education Pathway. Please wear old
clothing and suitable footwear, especially for the Outdoor Education Pathway. A buffet lunch
will be provided.

Application Forms
Following the Taster Day, you will be asked to fill out an application form.
All application forms must be handed back into school before 25" March 2010.

Careers Service

For further careers advice and guidance contact the school Careers Adviser or your nearest
careers office, Careers Wales Mid Glamorgan and Powys, 27 High Street, Merthyr Tydfil

Tel: 01685 358180.

Page 9



14-19 Learning Pathways Course Information

CHILD CARE

(Merthyr Tydfil College)
Qualification
The qualification offered is the CACHE Foundation Award, Level 1.
Course details
It is an introduction to childcare, education and play, providing an opportunity to develop
basic skills in caring for children.
Skills and qualities
To be successful on the programme you will need to show that you enjoy meeting people and
working with children, have patience and understanding. You must be a well motivated young
person with good behaviour and attendance.
Method of assessment
You will be assessed through assignments, project work and an end of year exam.
Progression pathway

On successful completion of the course, you may want to consider:

e CACHE Certificate in Child Care and Education.

e Modern Apprenticeships are also available at NVQ Level 2 and 3
For further information on progression pathways contact your School Careers Adviser or your
nearest careers office, Careers Wales Mid Glamorgan and Powys, 27 High Street, Merthyr
Tydfil. Tel: 01685 358180

HAIRDRESSING

(Merthyr Tydfil College & NLC)

Qualification
The qualifications offered are Entry Level BTEC Foundation Learning in Hair & Beauty (NLC)
and City & Guilds Level 1 in Salon Services (Merthyr Tydfil College).

Course details

The course covers the knowledge and understanding of hairdressing and hair care practice,
how to use equipment correctly, and safely, and developing customer care skills. Please
note: You will not learn the skills of cutting hair on the course. These skills are taught at Level
2 or 3 and onwards.

Skills and qualities

To be successful on the programme you will need to show that you are able to listen to
instructions, enjoy working with your hands, enjoy working in a team and talking to people.
You must be a well motivated young person with good behaviour and attendance.

Method of assessment

You will be assessed through assignments, observations of practical work and on the Level 1
course an end of year exam.

Progression pathway

On successful completion of the course, you may want to consider:

e NVQ Level 1 orLevel 2
For further information on progression pathways contact your School Careers Adviser or your
nearest careers office, Careers Wales Mid Glamorgan and Powys, 27 High Street, Merthyr
Tydfil. Tel: 01685 358180

Page 10



MOTOR VEHICLE

(Merthyr Tydfil College & Autoproject)

Qualification

The qualification offered is the ABC Level 1 Award in Motor Vehicle Maintenance and Repair.
Course details

The programme is designed to meet the needs of those who wish to acquire the introductory
knowledge and skills relevant to motor vehicle repair. Students will learn how to use
equipment correctly, and gain basic knowledge and skills in various areas of motor vehicle
repair. The overall aim is to provide both experience and knowledge on which to base future
career or further education decisions, and to increase employment opportunities. There will
be a special focus on health and safety.

Skills and qualities

To be successful on the programme you will need to show that you are able to listen to
instructions, enjoy working on your own and in a team, do not mind getting dirty and working
in cold conditions. As well as practical sessions in the workshop, the course includes
classroom based theory work.

Method of assessment

You will be assessed through assignments and project work.

Progression pathway

On successful completion of the course, you may want to consider:

e NVQ Level 1 or Level 2
For further information on progression pathways contact your School Careers Adviser or your
nearest careers office, Careers Wales Mid Glamorgan and Powys, 27 High Street, Merthyr
Tydfil. Tel: 01685 358180

ENGINEERING

(Merthyr Tydfil College)

Qualification

The qualification offered is the NVQ Level 1 Engineering, Performing Engineering Operators
(PEO).

Course details

Students will learn how to use tools correctly, and work with various hard and soft materials,
including computer software with a special focus on health and safety. They will construct
models from job specifications and drawings.

Skills and qualities

To be successful on the programme you will need to show that you are able to listen to
instructions as you will be taught how to use large and small pieces of machinery and tools,
enjoy working on your own and in a team, enjoy working with your hands and do not mind
getting dirty.

Method of assessment

You will be assessed through assignments and project work.

Progression pathway

On successful completion of the course, you may want to consider:

e NVQ Level 2 in Engineering.
For further information on progression pathways contact your School Careers Adviser or your
nearest careers office, Careers Wales Mid Glamorgan and Powys, 27 High Street, Merthyr
Tydfil. Tel: 01685 358180

Page 11



CONSTRUCTION

(NLC)

Qualification

The qualification offered is BTEC Entry Level Skills for Working Life in Construction.
Course details

The course covers six units, Health and Safety, Introduction to Painting & Decoration,
Introduction to Brickwork, Introduction to Carpentry, Interview Skills and Information
Technology.

Skills and qualities

To be successful on the programme you will need to show that you are able to listen to
instructions, enjoy working on your own and in a team, do not mind getting dirty and working
indoors/outdoor and in cold conditions. You must be a well motivated young person with
good behaviour and attendance.

The method of assessment
You will be assessed through practical skills assignments and project work.
Progression pathway
On successful completion of the course, you may want to consider:
= NVQ Level | or Level 2 in related trades
For further information on progression pathways contact your School Careers Adviser or your
nearest careers office, Careers Wales Mid Glamorgan and Powys, 27 High Street, Merthyr
Tydfil
Tel: 01685 358180

RETAIL
(NLC)

Qualification
The qualification offered is BTEC Entry Level Skills for Working Life in Retail.
Course details
The course covers six units which include Health and Safety, Introduction to Retail, Working
as a Retail Assistant, Interview Skills, Information Technology and Investigating Personal
Lifestyles.
Skills and qualities
To be successful on the programme you will need to show that you are able to talk and listen

to people, enjoy working in a team and on your own, helping people. You must be a well
motivated young person with good behaviour and attendance.
Method of assessment
You will be assessed through practical skills assignments and project work.
Progression pathway
On successful completion of the course, you may want to consider:
= NVQ Level 1
= NVQ Level 2.
For further information on progression pathways contact your School Careers Adviser or your
nearest careers office, Careers Wales Mid Glamorgan and Powys, 27 High Street, Merthyr
Tydfil
T)e/I: 01685 358180.

Page 12



OUTDOOR EDUCATION PATHWAY
(NLC)

Qualifications
The Outdoor Education Pathway offers the ASDAN Bronze/Silver Award.
Alongside the qualification you will also study Key Skills.
Course details
The course requires the completion of four modules which include; Sport & Leisure, Home
Management, The Environment and Health and Survival. There is a focus on personal and
skills development that any future employer would welcome.
Activities will include Climbing, Canoeing, kayaking, bush craft and other outdoor related
activities, so you have to be prepared to be outdoors in all weathers and temperatures.
Method of assessment
You will be assessed through observations, practical skills, assignments and project work.
Progression pathway
On successful completion of the course, you may want to consider:

e Further courses in school, college or work based learning.

For further information on progression pathways contact your School Careers Adviser or your
nearest careers office, Careers Wales Mid Glamorgan and Powys, 27 High Street, Merthyr
Tydfil

Tel: 01685 358180

Careers Information

Jayne Tilley of Careers Wales Mid. Glamorgan and Powys, (CWMPG), has very kindly
provided additional information to support your decision making.
Please find attached information on the following jobs:
e Teachers Aid
Care Assistant
Hairdresser
Mechanic
Tyre & Exhaust Fitter
Garage Worker
Factory Worker
Plumber
Paint & Decorator
Bricklaying
Carpenter
Shop Worker

Page 13



ST iem

SuIDIE)
PiVY lq-.-ﬂl..—.- a4 ‘\gg
JBSIApD Si9200 Anok o) yoeds o) ned o hL.cEC 4

4G} 2BUDIID OF AT ML AD IDYIDIL JMOA 50 whoig o oo ob u Luiioas wo vh 2usisd Auy
uos nok 3620 40 |aoyss Ul 2D NOA 4T Sl s R Ly
34U S43B.ID) [630) U LU AUD DL o LbLah A2 41 411 1T pPaAIL B
anad GuBuia AQ 240w 410 PUIL WO NGO A 457 |28 pUN AT | Jo Mol IRnpa o Jnoa By

£240W LNo pUl) T UD2 Mo

&f4om puiy T upa moj

o 11! Bunaq usappy>
,ﬂ.m. o1| “swsqqa.d yjm pap Aoy

squaand ypm pap Aoy \& #

- i
‘nﬂa\w 439|104 P4 0F UIPPYD DY ADy * Us.Ip|IYs ety P Lgim y1am Aoy

_w‘.‘,y

~

ysyBuz
3=t pue syiom jo poel 2q o4 pazy

91 4240 29 04 PaDN

+noqo suiyy op sBuiy )

- ™)
op o4 joym

NOA MOUS PINom § DS 1LES  SI0m uT

2 45 1 |3a2) 40 ROAND)
LAIEB3ILI BN [BUOH{DOBA (DU DK DU}
SPADMO Y H10M PINOM NoA 2a4usr Bwwo s
© 04 06 s>usismos Aoy ‘|ooys= D

ui @M 344 pudds pnom ne  Buiweay up

251N0> a1 j-||n} » us “afisjes ug =31 jooya= 3y
I pnes o
\ | D'.Ss\ k. SHIDm 04 pame T 1 ’!\

IJ

33735 43440 Ym 41250)2 suom o4 Mo
wipa| uRIP| Yo d|2y 0F SAoA

spaau pjiyp yans djay oy,

| Lo

T ﬂvf

ajdoad Buned

Stjiom puo

ysi|Bug swec ypmue jan 1.:.!.1- :._-fes ...:.:_ A
. <OpP 04 3|10 3Q 0L P22U T 0P JOyMm, )
Y N
wdog ¢ pue wegs g uasml |ooy>s [oi>ads o uT
-2q Aj}som aup s.noy jeayag
[ooyes anisuayaiduwor o ul
suwi g aod aa |ng 29 Aow
- Aop 244 Buranp 2uop s1I0A, fooys aorunf 4o Asvua.id o ug
%M T pyrosm 'Sk - S%iom T pnoMm ".;k
Wiim ppiys aus psnl ypm yaom Aoy
SPun ) josug pup [pPw 4o djaH

$52.p o4 uzp| iy dj2H

sioidsipdn 1as oL djay
HAom gy yiim usap)iyo djsy

<O I PInem Jou/m

PIV S A8ydes)L

Page 14



[T E])
Jumsjsay aiwn

o

AP ancd oy oeds opnok
404 PBUDIID ©f J10ING IO JBYIDBE JNOA NSO
uez nok 3621102 .10 (o015 W 2u0 ok 3T

AU S1DDA0) (020
Anod BuiBuil Ag 2121 4N P} UBS NS

2auziaed x2

20y 04 .10 Uolgo iy ijonb © 2oy oy

noA juom sasnjd jo sjen gl 4942 aub nad
|14un gal e neA amé | vem sased sopy
qeol e Gwyyob 2u0p2g

Bumoay uo Jo 262|102 o4 ob apdoad Loy

{240W LN PUll T UDD MO

Sfuom puty I UoO mop

uzsod 2jdoad o4 yo4
pup wyes 29

<OP 0L 34Q0 2q 24 PA3U 1 4P OUM

-

Buidp Jo [ Bup

= s2ooyd J0 wv‘nﬂ.\ ,
=25 L10) 0 Ul HuDm PUB AP 04 PASUADY TP sym sydosd yiim yaom of saoy Koy

533 14S yaom oy 2roy 2doad gsoy Fagua) Aog
pusyai 2ENCY =, OBUOS UT

sBumasagy amoy Buis.anpy

sAog w0y 5, 2idoad PO

b= St e
B adord 441 o4 posu Aoy .na...m..m.a% - S4IYS Haom B4y pasu Aoy
@ dnbBudpig pue 9T 40 uIn.g us> inq qal
r m Buiueago suiy jo jo| o pusds Aoy - 5 B OLET IMESG OF Vocu
e 3
inoqo juiys o4 sBuyy
a N -
Zae | |23
10 QDAY U 4DR1LI DAY [PUSH IDDON sidoad pjo.ie; sun> o4 may
DU O © SPIOMOL H IO M |0 NOS
‘2Baffo3 W 322m o Aop suo puads Aew nok SPeq 20w 04 MOH
4025 o 24314 Dq Aom nog “BIguUBD>
Aop ac swey Swmsinup i Buwinig us 2idoad 431 04 mopy
5UN0S uil§-|n} © wo ‘2631102 UL aidoad yiong o) mopy
LU0 T PINOD Sy JUO3) 9 poaa I |iw OUM
7 N o

3

siomosnoy puo Suddoug |
opdasd o4 gy
Aprs puo w25
12104 2y} oy oElosd ayoy
apdoed pazy
adoad ssaup puw yog
<oP T pyrede JOUM R

(Kprapia)
JURISISSY 3ae)

Page 15



..oooo...!..-:E §

ADRAPT 512202 INOA 04 o2ds 04 nod saadodsman [090] 244 W o7 Lfm wm.. % ﬁ ." U‘

404 0UD.LID O4 1044 10 ADLUIV DY .INOA 50

uo> nod 253|102 10 |0oy>s w 240 nok ST BajUS G PUR &ijua] 5495400 BYY W YSp -
poob oo spuoy J
IO ... .5, PO s B MRS Sl S ) sBuiLjy ovy |ng .03 29 8 .!!.. “ x.ﬁ Yyam oom
06u1a AQ 240U 410 PUIL WOD NOL SIMOPUIM LO|DS Wl S4J 30 PO d04 3007
cop o} a4 paau I A
k. op 0} M 29 04 P op oy y

£2J40Ui 4NO PUIS T UDI MO £HJOM PUid T UDD MO

S|IMS

yazm o l-ien:o’t__ diys amniae ug
uado Ap}s suopEs jsow - sur

ISNDY S, PUOAWDS UL
Acpuniog o spn|ow jpm Sy L

s e s|paimays Guisn 2q |44 ‘y2om 0 sAop g 104 ‘App ay4 Bwang wopos o Uy
«% auoyd .._."H.._.z-n ﬁ Sop SHIOM T DIMOM UBYAM oM T PINOM IBYM
m’\ 2y} 4o 2uny 3o 4op o puads Aoy &ﬁnw ey g Jus iy Bgpanys wny Aoy
.. s ik Y
4 24 250
=jusmpmodde ayewy
Aoy v s a6 ybiy sng
iy ukang
~ ™~ 7 k. oy 2jA4s pus 4n3
24 gue> Buiuway ©
w1 a0 2621102 w 2uing puads o4 paau Lybiu -~
nak 2 |2aaq spomey By iom usm nod 17 <% 1 pinaw l’L
Z 12 T [24D] 40 (IDAR]) LS D11 PN s10s5125 pun saadd > 2 af Mol :
[DUDI4DIDR, |DUDILDIY BYE SPIDMS
sacm pem nos wees © w Buwimay up spByybiy w gnd pue aicy wuzd oy mop V.LO; “.r.l—l
2RIN03 BN L-||ny D uO “3B2|j05 UL Aoy ajh 45 pU 4N 0f MOp]
SUSOB] T RIS DM < o ‘
5 J o TR e

A9SSOIpIAICH

Page 16



i il | J

— G e o
J2MAPO 2122003 anok o) yoads o nek L —— r ¥
-7 u’l-l..‘.n.a 0§ dDING 49 AZYIDDY .i-_cuhxuc o Ay v ol o> ity Ay
uow 262|102 .10 |[ooyos 8 210 3T e P H4om puD SN s aalgo sjdoad spupy anok
2.4UB) %I2DI07 [030) Buuwa | ybnoayy mofo Ano2y 4317 o4eL R LV
uned Buibuia Ag 240U §no pulp UDD MOK N0 g0 adAy siy o4 of 2jdoad Lsow

<OP 04 2(0P 3q 0LPPIU T OP OYM

I i N
i ..:n..... -3 - " ~
P

&ur 241Ip 0} WIDDY 0} p22U ADYY w 260406 © W PO 2q UL 4T

e ST sAopangeg
Yk awovdaeq 2y samsue [ty uo uade a.p safininb Lo jo| v poal By} Lo Bpis B U
‘%! o Aouow it o o) BADY Aoy @ 2103 Japun umep 21| o4 pasu kow T i
Aop 2y ¢ Bulinp auop Ajjsow i jaen, 2B0.106 o ur
pv 25026 PUD (10 41 Ha0m |1 w a4 40 4010 .-J.-vscve...!....hui L <0 i!;L <0 HEQL
S I
r h
; SiSnDyxa MU $ig
4Noqo Huiy4s o4 sbuiy | seaks soopdmy
s(@8ym 2ouDjog
B ™ :
[ g @ sjoeym gy0 Byoy
200 J0y 262)|02 04 06 04 pa2u Aowinok s3uds 1 saunuound puayy
S4SNOYXD 414 Of Mop
zavy <Op 1 piom g.k
19491 45 (AN UK {03141 [BUSI B30 paduoy> 29 oL posu sa.ky Loyw,
|DUGH{D] 3U SPUDMOY HIOM PINOM NOA
SPa2U 10T YID S2IA4 JOUM

Op 04 4DYM MOA MOYS PINCM OUM L4D4S

A2y40 Yam yaom piaom nod 260406 © ux SUIYOOW PUD 5|90 95N 4 MOH

&in“é 3 go&!u‘gL
hw =

12334 Isneyxg
B 24AL

Page 17



?i E
—— Semsn, 37
_ £ .’f ¢
JBRAPT £1BBIDD INOA O ozds 04 nod 4 msma 0 iq 2 ( ." “
104 2BUB.IIB 64 10N 46 12Y301 UNCA Yo Guwanoas wo 2LOALD Y04 04 oM uw. h‘
upe Nod 263j102 40 |92 yos W ue nak 3T Aoy 11 safnund |poof aned 3o pes nay fqo aivad
2upua) Su2BID |DDO) qol v bwiiab aaosog w _."'0 3g STl Mmoo Aanay 4107 Yarmopaonn ..tl FRLYTS
Bunuwe.s 3 o8
Jnod Guabula 4G U0 gNO PUlL UDD NOK ety Lo 10 353(j02 oy of aydoad gaony L <O 04 GO 8G 04 PP T 05 JOUM %
£240M LNO PUL) T UDD MOH YoM pui} T UBS Mo H
‘.# ﬁ: SAPUOLID OL |04 04 PRIV |14 A o F N . Y
N 5 soa + poRu 11 sk
v uo uade saboact 3o si0)- spusyazy PISPDaa P4 UG
2A1IP 04 WivD| 04 PaBU Aoy
swod puo
t%w - z : : e L s 22u L 2WOs - SBLIUAY =42|03p 402 © U
IA > o dow g Aop 2y w auop Aqurow =1 )y Io0 260a06 o ug
% s402 aapun Buik)| 1o
Sjeoy esn oy poEv IR © Buipunys s} o joy o pusds Aoy &!!N‘ll’k <om T pom 224M
8 - =~
DAY A0 TBLLIO| SN U4 1M 4. OM O[O PNOS NOY
sgsrmyxn
pup s2ud4 BuiBuoyo - a2 4 45OYx 3] pue aud |
103 2y yo y10m Apoq Buay - usmedzy Apog 221y
7~ J '3 - suwbus sy Auiow
262|j00 w suny 4Nq 402 344 30 S4iod |0 ue Buiiom - SWDLONY
A S gt sgied niodau g0 26utyd o) Mmop AT
PINOmM nof, 2 |2A3] 04 uo 0B pinoo nok SIUIYIDI PUD 5|00} 25N 04 MO F.H!!g
T 2421 (IDA[) HO1 402141 OIS [OUOILOYOA .
|PUDI JOY BY} SPUDMO A PINCM MDA spop 41 joym
‘y2am |0 36ouieb o ul Buiy.om ‘Bunwo.ay ug PUD P2||D2 51402 3y} 30 4iod yIve ouAn
851n05 2ua j-||n} p Lo “sBajjeo uT 1O S1DD MO
LD T PINGD BBYM PA S o N LOUA
! J L m o, A9MJAOM

‘B

Page 18



= P T

JISIAPD 5422409 U NOA 94 302ds 04 noA AU IS 2. e v blly
404 2BUD.LID 0L JOLNL 10 IDYIDBL UNGA Y20 susdpdymsl |LL0) BL_ W 300 | % O U
uo2 neA 262|109 40 [0oyos W 2o nod 4T dapaas I . 12305 puy’ pue gwios
2DYOP PLD BUdWLiEL 2L WYL W U
Apya1nb 2
P 5 At I RELLLE BN 1 oW Yam jionn bt ouienct | Ym0
anod BuButa AQ 2.0 N0 pui} WDD NoA M| o) (M AT ) |1 AR5 6 SALISIIN . T 15D k. COP 04 2|0 Bq OL PERU T OP WOUYM
£240Ul 1ND Pull T UDD MO ¢YJom pul) T upd mopq
=441= 4100 0L 2ADY Aoyy
1!.&”%.; i 52 Uil g2mos - s4ybuy
4 Apjanb y.iom o4 paau <
P 5 b b| P em 1 Aop |[® BpIsUI Sp108 PINOAA sousjawes - sbuiuang
Aop 21 ¢ w1 Buop A|§50W 51 HIOAN [fouis 1o 36.0p - Aloiony o uT
Qﬁ 4414= Ja0m o) 20y Loy Q T T — SBOM ] ppom EBYM SISO T PRI BB
.,.-mvn,ww... iy spoob Aspay 431] 04 2r0y Aoy W Aop (|0 puoys o4 paau Aoy = spoob 2.nsoaw Jo LB
k- ke = SEE gy Pus RO
S4pwy 104 HIoYs 0f 5poob 452
D - spead 3204
noqeuiyy oL sbuyy #1004 Py 10 souOw 50
sunj uergonpo.d o Lo y.1oan
~ ™ 1 N azyyabos sBuys 41y
33045 12440 AQ 9P 04 JOYM WAOYS pinos nog Kaoidvy
2q ppnom nog Aiogsoy ow Buspionn P W op W3 NoA sqol 4o 540 200 U4
S e <5P 1 piem iBuM
12 (ORI Uo! 40213 1enl [enor o3 on Adgan-im uf syl
[oUSI§D BLYE SPIBMOYL Y.1SM PINAM RO
s|o8) puny asn a ) mep
}oam 243 103 Aioyd0y
SauILoDI Bon a ) Mo

B U paseq aq pjnem nag Buiumag un

- lnig

ASMJAOM |
Kaiojyoely

(| 4o e pasu 1 m soym

Page 19



?g F E
A25MPO SA2DUD2 © 225 04 NoA Buiuip.g ue auckuo axoy f\ FOF @. ﬁw %.__E. w
a0y aBunu.up o) Jagng a0 asyona) anak yso o4 puom Azys 41 suzqungd yso PINes Noy pap—— :
ue2 nod 262102 10 [coYas W e nek 3T i sa|nu puw gunoz spoelqo [doad spuoy Jnok
FAUD D FI2IA0T 2621102 v Bunjog 10 Gunuoay uo Gwob mofed = Sysow Aroay Arws osqPL Ym0 0
[0 ANCA WIOUY 2A0 UL 4NO PLIY LDD NOK 42130 Buaqunid aju o8 apdasd soyy COP 04 21O 3q O Paal T 0P Y
.
£3dow JNo puld T upd Mol oM pull T WD Mo S|IMS
e = =
| & 2arap paau Loy
%{Jﬁ - <5 i sy v o sl Haom 30 230pd Aup wl
diys@aumoay oucigepy © o4 Uo 436 | J -2am .10 Spuss@am YoM D} Dany Aoy - doys .10 2311 30 uo UT
T 0} 23539 3wos daoy o paou Aoy PP A TS v
L - 3 Naom o3 saoogd spugwon - 2BUILBATY PISLI PUD DPISING — 2SNOY D iy
X - Z | oy 4% 42| P 94 |370u 3 04 2a0Y Ao
e 40 A l.—.vi*o,-ug ADp 244w Buop &|350W 51 3404 ErlaRwan N
* s200ds |jows w oM | PROM w3y M0 T PINos 3DYM
L : 2625102 o4 ob o4 paau p|noay, MAUM 40 SAZPRED| l:l..o!.ixnlL
i
sdoy pur szdid w1 =yo3) JU
4nogo Muny) of sbuny | 42443 puo sadid ny
Ul U240 4D] § MO 5300, LDY4 SANS IHOYY
j Y = J samysnw Bunjsnm
wiay4 S.apoq pun saojoipo.d
280 04 UBYM PUB “LO.I 803 .10 4 jsopd sypoq pup 542104
o iy g “raddes ayy “jo apow aao sadid goys SpuUnNuIs pUSW .0 iy
= my) 2 |2A3] $0 AR Uo oo oy Bup)|2an 2 ZOp I plmom ,’L;
[OUD! JOSON |DUDILDY 24 SpIomo) Bunjiom
262190 Wi Aop awe pup uaquinid O Yum HiOM SWDLSAS BulLoBY PUD [911432 |2 MO
3220 0 SAOp N0y UBYY o - Buimo.aL U suo[d puo S6UIMBIP PORI 04 Y_Log ayl
251102 2ung-|ns © uo - 26|07 uT RADT PUD S|PAP BYI| 2|00 pUBY J0 BN
CUID3 T || 2aSYM <RD3) 8y paSU T lIWw Joym
e 7 NN e

da2quun|d

ﬁxgﬂ Buruiog |

1 no.t_

Page 20



(Shd I

i

Jasiapn saoains inek oy yoods ag nad

103 FBUDLID 04 4044 10 JYPDBY aNOA Y 50
uno nod 8ds||0o Jo [@eyas w 2up nod 1T

sujus3 548307 [e20]
anod BuBuii Aq siom jno pury uns noy

uz suedun Bunyoy
2.0 Aoty 31350 o4 suspwed o) om0
40 suadodsmoau ayy ul oo pINOS Nog

qof o 6wis2b suosaq
Buwmre.ay ve an ononooo- of adoad Lsoyy

£2U0W LMD PUL) I UDD MO} &HIoM puty T UDD MOR

= § =

- .h.vﬂv sawny 330 a6 uoo paog

40 340] 0f |PADAY 0L A0 Aoy
/ S{fem pup 5.190p Waop
\ Buiggrs swi punds o) poau P
qolysms &

42430 AL 0f 2ADL | 544619y 10 310 o4 PR U Aoy

A

4noqo Yuiys o4 sbuiy

- N
2bay 03 w 2uny
2wos puo .124und O Yym DUy 20i0S puads
pnosm nog "z |aAs) a4 uo of pineo neyg
e |
(RDARD UBILDII LD |DUOHIDDGA DU 4O
44 SPIDIADY IO PINIOM MIO4 H2DM

(1@ -124aed ©

25aN02 U -|Nni © uo ‘283j|00 U

a1 Sunpaom ‘Buip.ag Lo

o BN‘.”G

-

uaym puo 2av 2u2y4 jund Lo

J
uadod|jom Buoy puUC §n2 B4 MOH
s422413 puiod 326 of mop

wmayy xnoy
sadAs wym

sicop pus s om ainda.ad 8y map
O3 Of PA3U T |IMe FOUM

«

Aw g U.I

poiap BINSOBDIN
Wiim 2uno _.sl 4uno> h‘_b!-!. nq
Dasxe oL Apjanb paem ......:.25 .:i....i
- cOp 04 2|00 34 01 Pa3u T Op ICUM 4

Z ™ 4 ™)

PUNLIWOS - SPUDHDIA sBuip|ing 42140 da 5831440 “sdog

ua jswos - sBuusay PPISLNC PUO 2PISWN - SIENOH]

Aop 2u4 w 3ucp Ajuiom = a0 52415 Buippng

L SPOM T prom !L L. SRom | PINDM BBYM

kY dn ..juJ

sdiyps puo

saBpliq ‘sBupping 1atyie puo sdoys “saay 1o
'SPENOY 130 FPIS N0 PUO FPISIN BUL U0y
aadodjjom Suoy

paaaded

a0 paguind aq oy Appau s.cop pue s|Bm {85

k: <P 1 PO JOUM,

aojeiod8Qq
2 J9jujed

Page 21



ATSIAPD 5423403 anck o4 yoads o4 nod g1 1245 20 oum sdoad :eﬂ..w; &m‘..
a0, nsoam
pun junaa
- SHow

3 3Buoate 04 104Ny 10 1BYdeL anok ysp 2304 o azp2ad sa4s buppn 2j08
uoo nok 2b2je2 4o Jooyas W aup nok 33 - e S4em puo sapn.s wesy o 10
UG 5422007 |00 qofo Guyaé 2u058q Moo Asooy Alupg 4uand 59 500 yam yaopn

aned Buibun Ag 2a0m 1o puly LB NOK Buwin.ig uo Jo 86s|jeo ay o8 aasd ysoyy <op 04 2190 3G 04 PR T O

- o

J

5 wys.anad goag4n Jﬁl#

L Sl ADu S1ygy - gUBWED Yy som AL SN spuzy2am uo ?

R R ﬁs Haom 1o Bio| Ymuy Aga03 Laogs Aow 52UIPODP 432U 04 - SPUBY 23 e e
o = Nrom oy s250)d Ao msnoy
m( 30 540] G |3aTay o3 24Dy Aoy 4&. .w,...._ 4 azygoem 4o SNPOIP §22w o} - sBuiuang uspaod is B uy

W T T ssa03 o i ysom o pa2u i 2uop 4 Aopm o gy iy o oy
g P — : Aop 2y4w |$50uL 51 Pling
r@ 1020 AL2,05 a02m 04 P22V |18 e A __.!—L - u - = - .
~ B
FUPWID Xy
nogo Huiys of sbuny | BWPIINg 404 PuoaB sup iedsiay
sAsuuwiys> modai do jig
4 o b
20210 W Bury PR R sfpuung pUo 2420 pling
DIWOS PUD IDP|ING © Y415 1| 2 Wwos puads siem aindau .0 pling
PINOM Noy 2 |272| 04 we of pnoa noy, Guip|os409s dn and o4 Mo
— & <OF I pnom !p
ROAR) UB1{B3141[DATS UK 1D30A (DUt oy o s i s
1* g Haom v—! nogL ‘." ~ X )
1> 43p{Ing © Yysm Bunp.iom Buis.ay uo e o o Lt — : IO Y |
25un0s 2w g(gng © Lo 263((05 wT sjooy Bsn e} ey —Tr’ s e
SUdDT) I PINOT BDYM, caay 04 pacu I oYM
- " L U ny

Ashepqoauag

‘ TR

Page 22



SRIC/N SSPRITD
asquedies| ] \Q\ e
AP APO SUIDBIDS INOA 04 yoad s o) oA
Aoy DEUL.LIS ©4 104N 10 IDUDB DL UNSA Y LQSS!: g ’.Dhto‘!-.!# o4 Buiroo| 20
uos ned 262)|92 40 Jooy2s W 3aw nok 3T 2i4 3t =a2guadiod [E30) Y 20 PSS NOA

241U s133a0) D30 qal o Burg 155 suogaq
anod EuBuns Aq a0 Lno puly ues nog Suoil wo ao 2B6ayes o3 ob adoad Lsoyy

£240W4 N0 PUl) T UDD MO} EHIOM PUL) T UDD MO

i ™

i yaom oy saoe g SpuDy swm wo P
. 30 580) 04 |PEL 0L BADY Aoy 7 TT3: {0M 4b Bym) ysimy Apma funys Aow Mt rx i i =i

- s2usauies - sbuiusAy
&n.vu. sss0id Assnp W iom [pAA SRR IS S o Aoy
rfm : MV 1paB Ajayns moom oy pasU [P a =16y o yaom op pasu Aowy

Aop 24 Buop AUIDW 21 a0
CIOM T PIOMm BIYAS

A

2 Y
A X = sasgquny o0 dn yng
4Neqo juiyl ol sbuiy |
sp.oogu ooy Av| pus siogs g
7 ™ ~ N SDwn 3 mopuim 11 pun Sioop Gunyy
260> Ui PuN, 2uCS - o=
Pup i2madaos O Yum sung 2wos puads saaquig 3oou dn 4nd o3 mop SOk ¥ §iun SO Of pesm sdows PL D

Pinom nog “Z |243) o4 uo o pEos nogk

spavoguooyy Ao) puo s.uogs 41y

<Op 1 piam B‘SL
=EDWO.N, MOpUIm L) .ILOQVI o3 Mo

11272

(OAR) UaIR3 141 [aNT (BUSE 1030\ (DUl o)y
DYt SPADMOL NJAOM PINCM NBA  H22m jjo
a2juadand B ypm Suyuom ‘Buwnay ug

.

el yso3 104 23N o) poom JOUM
2saN0s 2w 4-||Ng © uo ‘abzjjes ug S||LIp PUD SMDs =|i| S|004 SN o Map]

S
i

-

Aajuadaen




ATSIAPD S4B2a0I 4NOA 04 yoads oy nak sazdodsma Taa| L4 o0
- lﬁu.a‘ob T .l-qbnlhx' SARLEL LU DAD BUd B VIR LD o U My (3
uos L b e il o 1 1m0l sBuiyy Aapsy sidasd oy 24040
BU4UDY 2132.105 [030] Lo wdb A¥L_ 4 el 0L LLDLE 0L Wl DL Adioo puo 4317 u2gsy pue yje i S0 10M pye _zbl-!.. *g
AnoA Guwbuwia 240 Ui 10 PUI§ LD NOA . B
Ag PYs SMOPINA TS I T LIRARD 5 | 2007 cop o) Map 3q o) pasu § op &

EBUOW MO Ul T UDD MOH S}40M Pputy T UO> MO

I N
Fard r.. fap §10m sung-jand op sydead ya
‘ 24 1o §50w 4oy Buipuoys 3q Aow s3or) “agoywade Megs-sdous 3o 40 v
saajys asnp of erey ko oo 3
e gy
W.Uﬁ.vj noA o) apns aro oym 10 ADPINDS LG 410M OF IADY sdois 2640 10 |oms Uy

S A SIaWoeLsSND 0F |24 OF 2A0Y Aow ADUi pup SADP G 40 PINoM oY,
' H22m |0 uado mou e sdovps Auoyy Sy adns uy
B spusyssm
e 2 T g wiogiLn o J0om o4 2r0L Aoy &. Uo 10 B4 y.10m 0f dAvL Aoy LWIOM T Pives UsaiM LH|IOM T pined 2SUW
i o
(" Ang o4 Loum sp1oap o4 2doed djay Aoy
4+nogp Yuny4 o4 sbuiy 11 344 wen Aow
- Apry doys aypdaay
-~ J ~ "\ spoob ue saaad 4ng
SMIDU O BN FYS U0 410 3Poob Ly
RIBWOLIND YW [O2P 6L MO
33018 12140 Aq op oL Loym spoob puiy of saswmorsn>d|a
umoys 2q pnom nos days o u Bunjaoa spooB aorid o4 mop ] 3”‘!3
- et 3 b B 81U Hoo| Wisys
(OAN) uer 11BN |DUAINI o) [BUGHIDN 20w puo Aoid=ip uo spoob ynd oy mop
2y payos Loigasonb © spaBmoy
Saom pnow noy,  doys o w Sunwoay ug |4 ® 20 o) mopy
D T YRS BB &l O4 P33 I I IDUM
7\ s b

ASMJIAOMA doys

"
T

Page 24



For further information

Careers Service

For further careers advice and guidance contact the school Careers Adviser or your nearest
careers office, Careers Wales Mid Glamorgan and Powys, 27 High Street, Merthyr Tydfil

Tel: 01685 358180.

Schools

lan Llewellyn, Vocational Co-ordinator, Afon Taf High School. Tel: 01443 690401

John Davies, Vocational Co-ordinator, Pen-y-dre High School, Tel: 01685 721726

Bev Davies, Vocational Co-ordinator, Cyfarthfa High School, Tel: 01685 721725
Glenys Jones, Vocational Co-ordinator, Bishop Hedley High School, Tel: 01685 721747

14-19 Network

Lauren Penny, Network Support Officer
Merthyr Tydfil 14-19 Network

MTCBC

Ty Keir Hardie

Riverside Court

Avenue De Clinchy

Merthyr Tydfil

CF47 8XE

Tel: 01685 727314

Brochure Format
If you require this brochure in another format, please contact:
Lauren Penny, Network Support Officer Tel: 01685 727314

Page 25






CREDIT AND QUALIFICATIONS FRAMEWORK FOR WALES
LEARNING AND PROGRESSION ROUTES

Certificate of Higher
Education

Credit and
Qualifications
Framework for Wales
LEVEL FRAMEWORK

The Credit and Qualifications Framework for Wales was introduced in For further details contact the CQFW Secretariat:
2003 as a fully inclusive learning framework. The Levels capture all Tel: 01443 663 663 Fax:01443 663 653
learning from the very initial stages (Entry) to the most advanced (Level 8). E-mail: info@cqfw.net Visit:www.cqfw.net

TheFan diagram illustrates the levels and examples of qualifications
and learning provision that are included in it.

EUROPEAN

CREDIT & QUALIFICATIONS * A pis
FRAMEWORK FOR WALES AMcAN 18 K *  OBJECTIVE 14
- * €3

FFRAMWAITH CREDYDAU
A CHYMWYSTERAU CYMRU

AN3 Kk
f * *

e o of

DISCLAIMER

The details of schools and options published in this prospectus were accurate at the time of going to print.
However, 14-19 Learning Pathways and all institutions involved reserve the right to make any changes deemed

necessary. Please be sure to check any details with thepyﬁ\gé@t 27tner institutions.



©
A\
S

U,

o’ 7~72

14-19 LEARNING

PATHWAYS

Provision is made under the 6
key themes of:

m INDIVIDUAL
LEARNING PATHWAY

m WIDER CHOICE
AND FLEXIBILITY

m THE LEARNING CORE
m LEARNING COACH
B PERSONAL SUPPORT

m CAREERS ADVICE
AND GUIDANCE

We are delighted that learners
in Powys already have a wider
choice of courses from a
growing range of options
known as the local curricula
and our Curriculum Working
Group is working towards
greater collaboration between
learning providers, aiming to
make a difference for learners
in Powys wherever they live.

All 14 to 19 year olds in Wales
are entitled to follow their own
individually planned learning
pathway and to be supported
to do so. In Powys our policy is
to provide learning coach
support for all 14-19 year olds
by 2012 and through

the work of our Support
Working Group to identify a
minimum level of personal
support available for all young
people (when needed) through
information, advice and
guidance services.

LOCAL CURRICULA CHOICES

Powys Local Curricula Powys is
currently has two main areas of
local curricula “North” and
“South”. The Powys Local
Curricula contains a range of
courses, from Pre-Entry/Entry
to Level 4, from which young
people can choose the formal
aspects of their learning
pathways. The Welsh Assembly
Government has identified
curriculum areas known as
Domains to help identify the
choices available. These
Domains are;

m MATHEMATICS,
SCIENCE AND ASPECTS OF
TECHNOLOGY

m BUSINESS AND
MANAGEMENT

B SERVICES TO PEOPLE

m CREATIVE ARTS AND
CULTURE

m HUMANITIES AND

LANGDAGES 28

WIDER CHOICE AND
FLEXIBILITY

Under the key theme of
Individual Learning Pathways,
learning providers, both
individually and collaboratively,
should be making a wider
range of subject choices
available to 14-19 year old
learners.

These choices include general
qualifications as well as those
which have a vocational
flavour.

For September 2011 learners at
Key Stage 4 will have a choice
of 28 subjects and at Key
Stage 5 (post 16) 30 subjects
at Level 3.

For further details of the 14-19
pathways in Powys please
contact:

Nici Jones 14-19 Pathways
Manager Powys County
Council 01597 826703
nici.jones@powys.gov.uk



UCAS POINTS

GCE
QUALIFICATIONS

BTEC NATIONALS

4

b,
Ay s<o
V.\Q\ %WQ\Q
Ns

73 \_WV .




GyrfaCymru

Careers Wales

©
A\
S

Q,

o’ 7~72

CAREERS ADVICE

AND GUIDANCE

DURING YEAR 11

You will have the opportunity
to talk to a Careers Adviser
about what you plan do after
Year 11. The Careers Adviser
can:

m show you how to find
out about careers you
are interested in and
the qualifications you
might need

B help you to find out about
courses in the sixth form
and at college

W give you information about
job and training vacancies

m provide advice about filling
in application forms, putting
a CV together or preparing
for interviews

Careers Advisers also give
talks to classes or year groups
on career related topics and
we work with your school to
organise activities like work
experience and industry days
that help you to find out about
the world of work.

Extra help is available for
students who need additional
support.

AFTER YEAR 11

m If you decide to stay on at
school or go to college you
will be able to see the school
or college Careers Adviser
when you need to discuss
your plans or ideas.

m If you leave school or
college to look for work or
training you can see a
Careers Adviser at the local
Careers Centre (see contact
details below).

E careerswales.com
Careers information and advice

Use our website to:

B find information on a wide
range of careers and jobs

B update your Learning
Pathway plan

m find out more about choices
after Year 11

B look at job and training
vacancies

B find out about university
courses and how to apply

Page 30

SERVICES FOR PARENTS

m Careers Advisers are also
available at school parents’
evenings to talk to students
and their parents or carers.

B Careerswales.com has a
separate parent section
which provides advice about
how to support your son or
daughter in making decisions
about their future plans.

HOW TO CONTACT US

We have Careers Centres in
Brecon (01874 624619),
Newtown (01686 626959)
and Llandrindod Wells
(01597 825898). Students or
parents who would like to
speak to a Careers Adviser
outside school or college hours
are welcome to drop in or
phone to make an
appointment.




Coleg Powys has been central
to the development of a
vocational curriculum for
learners aged between 14 and
19 for some years. We have
worked tirelessly with partner
schools to ensure that young
people can have an
experience that goes beyond
the traditional academic
subjects. As a conseguence,
many yound learners have
achieved outstanding
successes in subjects like
Construction, Motor Vehicle
and Hair and Beauty.
Programmes allow learners to
start at the level best
matched to their current skills
and knowledge, and provide
excellent progression
opportunities onto courses at
the next level, onto university
or into employment. Many
level 3 programmes attract
UCAS points equivalent to 3
or 4 A levels. Coleg Powys
also offers higher education
qualifications, including post
graduate qualifications,
honours degrees and
foundation degrees. Coleg
Powys offers a range of
exciting full-time vocational

programmeslféarg giwo

COLEG PO

ACHIEVING EXCELLENCE IN

years’ duration. The College
provides individually tailored
programmes at entry level,
and a wide range of Awards,
Certificates and Diplomas at
levels 1, 2 and 3. These
qualifications are part of the
new Credit and Qualifications
Framework which provides a
record of achievement for
each part of a student’s
programme. All full time
learners receive full pastoral
support to ensure that they
receive everything that they
require to have a successful
and enjoyable time at the
college. We are incredibly
proud of the achievements of




ALL WE DO
fe

our learners. Last year, 35
learners achieved triple
distinctions (equivalent to 3 A
Level grade As), 256 learners
went on to pursue degrees
and they achieved a
successful completion rate of
81%, making Coleg Powys one
of the most successful
colleges in Wales. We are
delighted to be part of the
Powys 14 to 19 Network and
we hope that you find the
subjects that we are
contributing exciting,
attractive and inspiring.

Coleg Powys Brecon
Student Services

ADDRESS: Penlan, Brecon,
Powys LD3 9SR

T: 0845 4086 400

Coleg Powys Newtown -
Student Services

ADDRESS: Llanidloes Road,

Newtown, Powys SY16 4HU

T: 0845 4086 200

E: enquiries@coleg-
powys.ac.uk

www.coleg-powys.ac.uk



POWYS
TRAINING

»

TRAINING

FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE CONTACT US ON
FREEPHONE: 0800 328 0881
OR ONLINE AT WWW.POWYS-TRAINING.CO.UK

WHAT ARE
APPRENTICESHIPS?

Anyone who is over 16, living
in Wales and not in full time
education can apply for an
Apprenticeship. There are
Apprenticeships to suit your
interests and experience, so
why not see if there is one
out there for you! Visit the
Apprenticeship Matching
Service on
www.careerswales.com

Employers all over the
country recognise and value
Apprenticeships as they show
that you have been trained in
the skills they need.

You can earn while you learn:
As an Apprentice you will do a
real job for a real employer, so
you will receive a regular wage
from day one while

undertaking off-the-job
training with your chosen
training provider.

The childcare sector is a major
employer within Wales, and
therefore needs to ensure that
workers in that sector are fully
trained and qualified. The aim
of this apprenticeship is to
ensure that you have the
essential skills and knowledge
to care for children. Charlotte
is a positive example of how
work based learning can set
you on the road to a fulfilling
career. Charlotte gained
valuable work experience at a
local primary school and as a
direct result of this she was
offered an apprenticeship.
Charlotte has achieved her
level 2 award and is on the
final stages of her level 3,
including being employed as a
teaching assistant and working
at an after school club.

WORK BASED LEARNING

Work based learning offers
work experience placements
to young people not in
employment to improve their
job skills and prospects. One
such opportunity was offered

to Michael, tha'g»'@egghe

construction team at the new

school build at Ysgol
Trefonnen in Llandrindod
Wells. During his time with the
building contractor, Michael
had hands-on experience
learning a variety of building
skills including plastering,
rendering and dry-lining. The
practical experience Michael
gained will help his job
prospects, with the possibility
of him staying on with the
building contractor for other
jobs and becoming an
apprentice. Aprille Saunders,
General Manager of Powys
Training, said: “Work
experience is a vital tool in
furthering the skills of young
people and helping them to
secure future employment.”

Work based learning is part-
financed by the European
Social Fund through the Welsh
Assembly Government.




SOUTH POWYS
TIMETABLE MODEL

MON

OPTION A

OPTION B

TUES

OPTION D

OPTION E

WEDS

OPTION C

OPTION A

THURS

OPTION E

OPTION D

SOUTH POWYS
SUBJECTS

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK C

BLOCK D

FRI

OPTION B

OPTION C

KEY

Brec = Brecon

BU = Builth Wells
CP = Coleg Powys
CR = Crickhowell

G = Gwernyfed
LIHS = Llandrindod
M = Maesydderwen

BLOCK E

English (G)
Chemistry (G)
ICT (G)

Physics (G)
Media Studies (G)
Geography (G)

Sociology (G)
Art (G)

Maths (G)
History (G)

Biology (G)
Business (G)

Product Design (M)
Chemistry (M)
English (M)

Biology (M)
Welsh (M)
IT (M)

Art (M)
Geography (M)

Maths (M)
Media Studies (M)

History (M)
Physics (M)

Art (LIHS)

English (LIHS)
Health & Social (LIHS)
Maths (LIHS)

Biology (LIHS)
PE (LIHS)
Physics (LIHS)

Chemistry (LIHS)
Design &
Technology (LIHS)
French (LIHS)

Business (LIHS)
Electonics (LIHS)
History (LIHS)

Drama (LIHS)
Geography (LIHS)
Computer Studies

(LIHS)
Welsh (LIHS)

Bioleg (BU)
English (BU)
Further Maths (BU)

French (BU)
Maths (BU)
RE (BU)

Daearyddiaeth (BU)
Chemistry (BU)
Design & Technology
/ Textiles (BU)
History (BU)

Hanes (BU)
Biology (BU)
Hospitality
BTEC L3 (BU)
Geography (BU)

Art (BU)
German (BU)
Physics (BU)
Music (BU)
Cymraeg (BU)

Music Technology
L3 BTEC (Brec)
French (Brec)
Geography (Brec)

Business (Brec)

Technology / Product
Design (Brec)
Chemistry (Brec)

Biology (Brec)
History (Brec)
Welsh 1Ist (Brec)
Welsh 2nd (Brec)

English (Brec)
Art (Br)
Physics (Br)

Maths (Brec)
RE (Brec)
Drama (Brec)

Chemistry (CR)
Performing Arts (CR)
Law (CR)
Psychology (CR)

French (CR)
Further Maths (CR)
PE (CR)

RE (CR)

Music (CR)

Art (Cr)
Biology (CR)

Design &
Technology (CR)

ICT (CR)

Business (CR)
Maths (CR)
History (CR)

English (CR)
Physics (CR)
Geography (CR)
Health & Social (CR)

Childcare

L3 BTEC (CP)
Public Services
L3 BTEC (CP)

Performing Arts
BTEC L3 (CP)

AAT Accounting (CP)
Psychology (CP)

|.T. BTEC L3 (CP)
Health & Social Care
BTEC L3 (CP)

Sport Science

BTEC L3 (CP)




S WIGH g

% BRECON HIG

BRECON HIGH SCHOOL IS A KS3-5 (11-18) COMPREHENSIVE
SCHOOL LOCATED IN BRECON. WE ARE PROUD TO BE A
COMMUNITY SCHOOL WHICH SERVES THE TOWN ITSELF AS
WELL AS A LARGE RURAL SURROUNDING AREA.

OUR VISION IS TO ENSURE THAT EVERYONE AT BRECON HIGH
SCHOOL CAN AND WILL SUCCEED.

Our aims are: All Year 12 and 13 students have

m To improve teaching and full access to ICT facilities in a
learning new large dedicated 6th Form

. . study centre and can choose
B To raise expectations of
everybody in the school from a broad range of level 3
qualifications including AS, A2

B To raise standards at all and Level 3 BTEC courses.
Key Stages

We actively promote
bilingualism throughout the
school and all of our students
study and are accredited in
Welsh at the end of Key Stage
4. In addition, in Key Stage 5
we offer the opportunity for all
students to study Welsh 1st
and 2nd Language at both AS
and A2 Leve%’age




Since September 2009 all Y12
students have studied The
Welsh Baccalaureate at
Advanced Level (Level 3).
Students complete core
activities such as Wales Europe
and the World, Community
projects and Team Enterprise
projects.

KS5 students are lucky enough
to have easy local access to
courses run at Coleg Powys’s
Brecon Campus, which is
within walking distance of the
school. All students have
access to a wide range of
vocational level 3 courses
which carry the same
weighting as AS and A2
qualifications. Many students
study these vocational courses
alongside their traditional
academic qualifications.

A new vocational qualification
in Music Technology will also
available on the school campus
and will be delivered in a brand

new state of the art Music
Technology/Media Studies
suite in September 20T11.

The school has an excellent
academic reputation and in
addition to its academic record
the school has a strong tradition
of musical and sporting success.
The school gains considerable
success at International and
County level in all sports.

The school is set in some 35
acres of grounds. The sports
fields include an eight lane
international standard tartan
running track. A £5m sports
centre, which includes a
swimming pool, is on the site.
The school has part use of
these facilities throughout
the week.

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Mrs S. Bosher

6th form students at Brecon
High School have access to
wide range of extra curricular
activities, including sporting,
musical and cultural activities.
Post 16 students are
encouraged to take on leading
roles within the school and are
seen as positive role models by
all lower school students and
the community at large.

In the school’s most recent
inspection report, ESTYN
stated that “Brecon High
School is a good school with
many outstanding features”.

ADDRESS: Penlan, Brecon, Powys LD3 9SR

T: 01874 622361 E: office@brecon-hs.powys.sch.uk
www.brecon-hs. powys sch.uk




SOUTH POWYS SCHOOLS

BUILTH WEL

HIGH SCHOOL

BUILTH WELLS HIGH SCHOOL IS A THRIVING, BILINGUAL, 11-18
COMPREHENSIVE, SITUATED ON AN EXCEPTIONAL SITE ON
THE BANKS OF THE RIVER WYE.

IN 2010, THE INSPECTORATE FOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING
IN WALES (ESTYN) IN THEIR REPORT ON BWHS SAID:

£ £BUILTH CONSISTENTLY PROMOTES AND
ACHIEVES HIGH STANDARDS IN ACADEMIC,
PASTORAL AND EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
AND BECAUSE OF ITS VERY MANY SIGNIFICANT
STRENGTHS, JUSTIFIABLY ENJOYS THE TOTAL
CONFIDENCE OF ITS COMMUNITY.J3)

ESTYN

BWHS has a unique
atmosphere. Many visitors
comment on the special
ambience that they feel as
soon as they enter the school.
As a truly bilingual school, we
appreciate our community and
our learners benefit from the
close access to the town’s
facilities.

As a School community, we
are committed to enhancing
our bilingual ethos, enjoying
the extensive facilities and our
impressive new building
(Bwyty). The Bwyty houses
state of the art music facilities,
art rooms, an IT suite and yr
Adran Gymraeg - a suite of
rooms dedicated to Welsh-
medium teaching. Our
investment in ICT across the
school enables all our learners
to access the best, modern
opportunities in order to

compete globally.

Builth Wells High School has
outstanding international links:
three schools in three separate
states in the USA, Australia,
Italy, Greece, Sweden,
Madagascar, Patagonia, France
and Germany makes us a very
well sought after centre for
international learning. Work
related learning underpins our
International Learning

STep!

Page 37

Programme where students
participate in a cultural
exchange programme, gaining
work experience in business
and industry as integral
components of the Language
Module and Working with an
Employer elements of the
Welsh Baccalaureate
Qualification.

At Builth Wells High School
we pride ourselves in
promoting our inclusive ethos,
devoting time to nurture your
talents and cater for all types
of needs. Encouragement,
support and intervention to
augment learning are central
to the working processes of
the school and we endeavour
to lay the foundations for your
future.

We fervently believe in
listening to our stakeholders,
considering all opinions and
making decisions to benefit all
learners at all stages of their
learning; these are the
fundamental principles that
make our school a highly
respected educational
provider.

Our excellent support for each
learner influences the way our
young people behave. We
insist on excellent behaviour
at all times and foster respect
in everything we do. We
expect all of our pupils to




reflect the core values of the
school, especially when they
are away from the school
community and our pupils
have been commended on
several occasions for their
courtesy and politeness from
various members of the
public.

The future of BWHS as a
Learning provider is bright,
progressive and exciting.
Choices in both Languages
are extensive and promote
lifelong learning in a safe,
rural environment with easy
transport links to the South
and the North.




CRICKHO

CRICKHOWELL HIGH SCHOOL IS A PURPOSE BUILT COMMUNITY
FOCUSED SCHOOL OF SOME 750 STUDENTS. THE SCHOOL IS
LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF CRICKHOWELL, WITHIN THE
BEAUTIFUL AND INSPIRING SURROUNDINGS OF THE BRECON
BEACONS NATIONAL PARK.

Crickhowell is consistently
recognised as a high
achieving school with a
record of academic
excellence. The School is
constantly developing a
broader range of courses,
activities, opportunities and
resources to meet the needs
of the community in the 21st
Century.

Our target is for all students
to achieve at least five A* - C
grades at GCSE, or the
equivalent, by the end of Key
Stage 4. Most of our students
stay on in the Sixth Form and
go on to achieve excellent
results post 16.

We offer a wide choice of
academic and vocational
opportunities for all our
students, delivered by a
specialist team of highly
qualified and dedicated staff.
We also offer access to part
time college courses. We
work positively to identify and
support the individual
learning needs of every
student; the quality of

teaching, Ieap‘-'a@éngg

achievement is high.

Additional learning
opportunities are available
during breaks and lunchtimes.
Many students attend ‘twilight
sessions’ when they have the
chance to access a wide
range of sporting, academic
and creative options.

Crickhowell students have
numerous opportunities to
visit other countries as part of
their academic and extra
curricular studies with regular
visits to Poland, Germany,
Italy, France, Austria, Uganda
and Dubai. Our latest long
distance expedition took
students into Jordan.




We have a very strong
commitment to education for
Sustainable Development and
Global Citizenship and close
links with St. Peter’s School in
Uganda and other learning
communities across the
world.

As a school we are committed
to developing the use of
technology to enhance
learning; this includes
interactive software, e-learning
and video conferencing
facilities. We have recently
upgraded our ICT network
across the school to include
wi-fi access which has proved
very successful in extending
learning opportunities for all
our students.

We welcome students of all
abilities to join our successful
learning community.

££ THE MOST STRIKING FEATURE OF THE
SCHOOL IS ITS STRONG ETHOS OF LEARNING,
IN WHICH VERY GOOD BEHAVIOUR IS THE
NORM AND MOTIVATION IS HIGH. IN THIS
ATMOSPHERE, PUPILS’ AND STUDENTS’
DEVELOPMENT - ACADEMIC, SPIRITUAL,
MORAL, SOCIAL AND CULTURAL - THROUGH
CURRICULAR AND EXTRA-CURRICULAR
EXPERIENCES, IS EXCEPTIONALLY GOOD. 3)

MOST RECENT ESTYN INSPECTION

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Mrs Kate Thomas
ADDRESS: New Road, Crickhowell, Powys NP8 1AW

T: 01873 813500 E: office@crickhowell-hs.powys.sch.uk
www.crickhowell-hs.powys.sch.uk




as
.

&
@'@S E\[QQ\

GWERNYFED

GWERNYFED SIXTH FORM PROVIDES A HARD WORKING,
SUCCESSFUL AND ENJOYABLE ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH TO
PURSUE YOUR CHOSEN LEARNING PATHWAY. STUDENTS HAVE
FELT THE BENEFIT OF HAVING A SMALL SIZED SIXTH FORM,
WHERE TEACHERS ARE CARING, COMMITTED AND EXCELLENT
AT TEACHING. OUR SIXTH FORM STUDENTS ARE SUCCESSFUL
WITH 2010 STUDENTS BEING ACCEPTED ONTO EITHER THEIR
FIRST OR SECOND CHOICE COURSE AT UNIVERSITY.

You will find us supportive and
friendly, being able to provide
an enviable range of potential
areas for study with the
development of the Powys
Local Curriculum.

The new style of accessing the
individual Learning Pathway
provides not only the
opportunity to develop
academic and intellectual
skills, but the additional
freedom to meet academic
and career needs most
effectively. Being a member of
the Sixth Form at Gwernyfed
involves a great deal more
than the pursuit of academic
courses. As part of our

pastoral programme, we
include a number of activities
where students take
advantage of the opportunity
to work with and support the
studies of younger pupils, and
can be involved in the
APAUSE scheme, Childline
scheme and Community
Sports Leadership award. Year
12 students get the
opportunity to act as mentors
to pupils in Year 7 and 8 to
promote the ethos of
responsibility. These activities
provide the basis for skills
development; accredited
under the Welsh
Baccalaureate qualification,
while providing invaluable

Page 41

evidence to feed into UCAS
application for university.

The Duke of Edinburgh again
features amongst the extra-
curricular activities, along with
the extended opportunities to
travel to Barcelona for
Business Studies and Art, or
further afield to support the
pupils in Hay’s twin town in
Timbuktu, or study and inform
other cultures and their
comparative educational
systems, like the group last
year who visited Columbia.
We are very proud that our
students from a small rural
school consider it important
that they:



€€ A PARTICULAR
STRENGTH OF THE
SCHOOL IS THE WAY
IN WHICH PUPILS
ACROSS THE AGE
RANGE HELP AND
SUPPORT ONE
ANOTHER. THERE

IS A REAL SENSE OF
COMMUNITY WITHIN
THE SCHOOL THAT
HELPS FOSTER
LEARNING. 33

ESTYN

‘develop an awareness and :
sensitivity to other cultures HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Mrs C Ricketts

and are encouraged to gain a AppRess: Three Cocks, Brecon, Powys LD3 0SG
global awareness.’ T: 01497 847445 E: office@gwernyfed-hs.powys.sch.uk
www.gwernyfed-hs.powys.sch.uk

Please contact Miss Rebecca
Savage, Senior Pastoral
Manager, should you require
any further information.

Page 42



YSGOL UWCHRADD
LLANDRINDOD HIGH SCHOOL
‘Dysgu i ddysgu gydol oes’ ‘Learning to learn for life’

SOUTH POWYS SCHOOLS

LLANDRINDOD
HIGH SCHOOL

THE SIXTH FORM IS A VERY IMPORTANT
PART OF LLANDRINDOD HIGH SCHOOL.
IT NOT ONLY PROVIDES THE
PROGRESSION INTO HIGHER EDUCATION
AFTER KEY STAGE 4, BUT IT ALSO GIVES
AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE ACTIVELY
INVOLVED IN THE LIFE AND WORK OF

THE SCHOOL.

The AS, A2 and equivalent
vocational courses that we
offer give access to university,
while key skills demonstrate a
student’s ability in
communication, number and
information technology.
Almost all of those who
embark on courses remain to
complete them successfully.

The organisation and ethos of
the Sixth Form allows for the
ideal transition between
compulsory schooling and the
need for students to take

responsibility for their own
learning. The school offers
good teaching, tutorial
support, careers guidance,
work experience and a wide
range of social, cultural and
community opportunities.

Llandrindod High School
always aims for excellence and
this is achieved in an
environment where students
are secure and happy. Our
expectations are that Sixth
Form students will work hard
and, therefore, be able to take
full advantage of the expertise
and commitment of our staff.
We are able to provide high
quality teaching within
excellent study facilities. The
school also encourages the
students to give some time to
help others, through
community service, either
within the school or the wider
community.

We are a Welsh Baccalaureate
School and this adds a valuable
dimension to subjects and
courses that can be followed

between the R&¢)&F BB 19. It

encourages independence and
adds ‘real life’ experience to the
curriculum,.

We are also very proud of the
pastoral support that is
available to all students and
which encourages them to
achieve their full potential.
This combines with an
excellent Enrichment
Programme and a wide range
of social activities organised
by the Sixth Form Committee.

Don’t simply take our word
for it. Ask the students who
are currently studying with us
and you will get a very
positive response from them.

Our recent Estyn inspection
report also emphasises the
outstanding provision
provided at post 16.



They said:

€€ IN THE SIXTH
FORM, TEACHING IS
CONSISTENTLY GOOD
AND FREQUENTLY
OUTSTANDING. THE
OUTSTANDING AND
GOOD FEATURES OF
TEACHING IN THE
SIXTH FORM INCLUDE:

m very good working
relationships between
teachers and students;

m the development of
students’ capacity to take
responsibility for their
own learning;

teachers’ high
expectations of success
and strong subject
knowledge;

very good questioning
which provides
opportunities for students HEAD OF SIXTH FORM:

to explore ideas and Mrs Alison Long
embed understanding; ADDRESS:

and Dyffryn Road,
meticulous planning of a Llandrindod Wells,
wide range of strategies Powys LD1 6 AW
and resources appropriate T 01597 822992

to the work being E: office@llandod-hs.

powys.sch.uk
ESTYN www.llandod-hs.powys.sch.uk

undertaken. 59



OUR SCHOOL HAS A STRONG TRADITION IN PROVIDING SIXTH
FORM EDUCATION. WE ARE IMMENSELY PROUD OF THE
ACHIEVEMENTS OF OUR STUDENTS AND EVERY YEAR ALL
ARE ABLE TO PROGRESS TO THEIR CHOSEN DESTINATIONS.

The teachers at Ysgol
Maesydderwen are highly
qualified and expert at
delivering post-16 education.
The quality of education they
are able to provide is
something you can trust. As
the most senior members of
the school, there is a sense of
community spirit amongst the
Sixth Form. When you
become a member of the
Sixth Form you will enjoy a
different learning experience.

You will be encouraged to
learn more independently,
shouldering responsibility and
making the most of
opportunities on offer.
Privileges and freedom are
there to be enjoyed in return
for high expectation in attitude

and commitment to study.

Estyn School Inspection
November 2010 concluded
that...

“The school offers a broad in
appropriate range of learning
opportunities throughout the
key stages.”

“The school provides a high
level of care.”

“The school provided many
extra curricular opportunities
for pupils to enrich their
experiences.”

We also give our students the
opportunity to study the
Welsh Baccalaureate. Pupils
are able to choose 3 or 4
courses to study alongside the
Welsh Baccalaureate, both A

level or Vocalgonal c%lges.
UCAS has al o@ge@ tariff

points to the Welsh
Baccalaureate core which
students can combine with
the points they gain in their
other courses (the options) to
gain entry to university.

There is a strong support
network at Ysgol
Maesydderwen. You will
assigned a Sixth Form Tutor
who is very experienced and
will advise you, monitor your
progress and help with any
problems you may encounter.

You will be able to take
responsibility, and contribute to
the life of the school and local
community. These experiences
will give you a considerable
advantage when applying for
jobs and courses at Higher
Education institutions.



Sixth Formers are responsible
for co-ordinating sponsored
events, stalls and fancy dress
collections within the school
and out in the wider
community and the climax of
‘Charity Week’ is a concert
when the talents of the whole
school are harnessed in a
programme of music, comedy
and mayhem programmed
and presented by the Senior
Team and other Sixth
Formers.

“The buddy system is an
excellent way to help the
younger years at the school.
If you need only help or
support there is always
someone around to help you
whenever you need it.”

Rhian Jones 12

“The courses are very
challenging and are a big
jump from GCSE. The sense
of friendship and equally
between other sixth formers
and teachers is very

encouraging. Studying here is
great. The buddy system is a
great idea by giving us a
chance to communicate with
other pupils below our year.”

Ellen Green 12

The 5x60 project is currently
working in secondary schools
to extend the extra curricular
programme and have set their
sights on encouraging those
who do not take part in sport
to get active. Along with this,
5x60 looks to identify young
leaders within the sixth from
to help run lunch-time and
after school clubs, many of
our students have taking part
within the programme and
are a great asset to the team,
in which the project rewards
the volunteers with the

YDDERWEN

chance to gain qualifications
such as tag rugby leaders,
dodgeball level one coaching
award and child protection in
sport to name a few.

Pupils with Additional
Learning Needs are welcome
in the Sixth Form.

EXPANDING HORIZONS

As part of our commitment to
offering the best possible
opportunities to our students
this year we have in
collaboration with the Open
University and Coleg Powys,
given our students the chance
to sample modules of a
degree course.

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Mr Matthew Burrows
ADDRESs: Tudor Street, Ystradgynlais, Swansea SA9 1AP

T: 01639 842115
E: office@staff.maesydderwen-hs.powys.sch.uk




Q?'*mm 4‘%‘%&
Z.

“)PENMAES SCHOOL

YSGOL PENMAES, SITUATED IN THE MARKET TOWN OF
BRECON IS A BUSY, FORWARD-LOOKING SCHOOL THAT
PROVIDES EDUCATION AND SPECIALIST FACILITIES FOR
PUPILS (3-19YEARS) WITH A WIDE RANGE OF LEARNING
DIFFICULTIES FROM ALL AREAS OF SOUTH POWYS, ALONG
WITH SOME CHILDREN FROM NEIGHBOURING AUTHORITIES.

We are privileged to have had
major investment by the Local
Authority as a result we now
have a purpose built school
with both residential and
respite facilities on the same
campus. These facilities
include: Specialist
Science/Design Technology,
Food Technology/Life Skills,
Sensory Studio, Interactive Soft
Play, and Hydrotherapy Pool.

Visitors to Ysgol Penmaes
continue to say that the
school is a very friendly place.
This is an important feature of
our school as we feel that
when pupils feel secure and
valued they give their best.
We remain committed to
working in close partnerships
with parents, the community,
social services and health
service and other
professionals.

At Ysgol Penmaes we will
continue to provide a safe,
stimulating and challenging
environment for all pupils. Our
school curriculum has been
tailored to meet the individual
needs of pupils, with the
emphasis upon individual
achievements. This ensures that
all pupils experience success.

14-19 LEARNING PATHWAYS

Pupils within this age range
following the learning core
through curriculum themes and
numeracy and literacy sets. All
pupils follow ASDAN
programmes, (Transition
Challenge, Bronze and Silver
Award or Towards
Independence as appropriate).
Other option choices include
French, Team Enterprise, Duke
of Edinburgh’s Award Scheme,
Art and Design, Food Studies
and vocational taster courses in
collaboration with Coleg Powys.

We have five learning coaches
who provide learning coaching
support Post 16 learners follow
an extensive work experience
programme as well as other
work related activities,
including work place visits and
visiting speakers from local
businesses. Our annual
Industry Day takes place in
November when a number of
local organizations and

businesses run sessions for
pupils to learn about the skills
required in the workplace and
in college.

OUR RECENT ESTYN
INSPECTION REPORT SAID
THIS ABOUT THE SCHOOL:

“Ysgol Penmaes is a very good
school and has a large number
of outstanding features”

“The school’s well planned
curriculum is very well
supported by a wide choice of
well-planned options in the 14
- 19 Learning Pathways, and
an impressive range of extra-
curricular, off-site activities,
links with local schools and
colleges and work related
experiences. ”

“Pupils receive highly effective
careers education and guidance.
The school works closely with
Careers Wales to ensure that
pupils and students are fully
aware of all the opportunities
available to them.”

ASSISTANT HEADTEACHER: Mr Dave Coombs
ADDRESS: Ysgol Penmaes, Canal Road, Brecon, Powys LD3 7HL

T: 01874 623508

E: dcoombs@penmaes.powys.sch.uk
WWW.penh w1=f. T W, irsschiuk




NORTH POWYS

TIMETABLE MODEL

MON

VC (D)

MOODLE (D)
YR13

MOODLE (B)
VC (B) YR12

MOODLE (A)
VC (A) YR12

VC (O

MOODLE (C)
YR13

BLOCK C
YR13

BLOCK A
YR12

BLOCK B
YR12

BLOCK D
YR13

NORTH POWYS
COLLABORATIVE
SU BJECTS

SUBJECT (TUES)

Caer = Caereinion
CP = Coleg Powys
JB = John Beddoes
LL = Llanfyllin

Llani = Llanidloes
NHS = Newtown
WHS = Welshpool

SUBJECT (THURS)

BTEC L3 Countryside Management (CP)
BTEC L3 Sport (CP)

BTEC L3 Performing Arts (CP)

BTEC L3 Media, TV & Film (CP)

BTEC Media Games Development (CP)
BTEC L3 Travel & Tourism (CP)

BTEC L3 Child Care (CP)

COLEG POWYS

BTEC L3 Health & Social Care (CP)
BTEC L3 Media, TV & Film (CP)
BTEC L3 Media Interactive (CP)
BTEC L3 Public Services (CP)
BTEC Hospitality & Catering (CP)

A Level Music (JB/NHS)

A Level RE (NHS)

A Level Welsh Second Lang (JB/NHS)
BTEC L3 Fashion & Clothing (NHS/CP)
A Level Geography (WHS)

A Level Product Design (JB)

A Level Law (CP)

A Level Spanish (LL)

BTEC L3 Engineering (LL)

A Level Further Maths (LL)

BTEC L3 Hospitality & Catering (WHS)
A Level PE (UB)

A Level Drama (WHS)

A Level Art & Design (Fine Art) (JB)

A Level Art & Design (Photography) (JB)
A Level Art & Design (Graphics) 2

LLAN NEWYDD TRISGOL

A Level Spanish (Llani)

A Level German (JB)

A Level French (NHS/JB)

A Level Politics (LLani)

BTEC L3 Engineering (NHS/CP)
BTEC L3 Music Technology (NHS)
A Level Geography (JB/NHS)
BTEC L3 Landbased (LL)

A Level Welsh (Caer)

BTEC L3 Applied Science (Forensic) (JB)
A Level Psychology (WHS)

A Level Biology (WHS)

A Level French (WHS)

A Level Business (WHS)

BTEC L3 ICT (WHS)

BTEC L3 Photography (CP)




JOHN BEDD

JOHN BEDDOES SCHOOL WAS FOUNDED IN 1565 AND IS A
SMALL 11 - 18 SCHOOL WITH A PROUD RECORD OF
ACADEMIC, SPORTING, CULTURAL, AND SOCIAL EXCELLENCE.
BEING A SMALL SCHOOL THERE IS A STRONG SENSE OF
BEING PART OF A FAMILY WHERE EVERY INDIVIDUAL
STUDENT IS SUPPORTED AND CARED FOR IN THEIR
DEVELOPMENT AND IN PREPARING THEM FOR FURTHER
EDUCATION, TRAINING, AND THE WORLD OF WORK, AND TO
HELP THEM BECOME ACTIVE CITIZENS OF THE FUTURE.

In addition to a broad range of  All students also undertake the

AS and A Level options, John Welsh Baccalaureate

Beddoes has an established Qualification at Advanced Level
vocational programme of which recognises achievement
courses available through the across a wide range of

Powys 14-19 Network enabling activities including work
students to experience a experience and careers,

broad range of opportunities community participation,
tailored to their individual Personal and Social Education
needs and aspirations. An and through the accreditation
individual learning pathway is of Essential Skills Wales. These
implemented with guidance Essential Skills Wales (such as

from tutors. Communicatiglaé\%p%:@tion of

Number, and ICT) alongside
the wider key skills (Problem
Solving, Working With Others,
and Improving Own Leaning
and Performance) are
recognised as evidence of the
ability to work and learn
effectively and are highly
valued by colleges, universities,
and employers.

John Beddoes students have

access to excellent sporting
facilities with an enviable range



OES S

of opportunities. A flourishing
5x60 sports programme
responds to the needs and
interests of the students, and
offers the opportunity to
undertake coaching training.

Students are also able to
experience a wide range of
cultural activities. These include
French and German exchanges
and other visits that not only
develop language skills but also
develop understanding of
different cultures. Visits to
Gambia have included working
on educational projects with
our partner school. This has
been followed by whole school
fundraising activities to
enhance the educational
provision for our Gambian
partners. A strong tradition of
theatrical productions exists
and drama and music work
closely together to stage such
recent musicals as ‘Oliver!’, and
‘Fiddler on the Roof’. Frequent
theatre, museum, and art

gallery visits, history field trips
(including Berlin), cross-
curricular trips such as Art and
Technology and a planned visit
to New York, and geography
residential fieldwork enhance
the quality of the provision by
broadening the experiences of
students and visits to the
school by poets, authors,
politicians, broadcasters, public
figures, theatre companies, and
the like are a regular feature of
the school calendar.

John Beddoes School
encourages all students to
become active members of the
school community and the
School Council is central to the
development and growth of
the school and plays a vital
role in the decision-making and
improvement process.

IN ADDITION TO THE
SUBJECTS IN THE
COLLABORATIVE
BLOCKS WE OFFER:

Biology
Chemistry

Drama & Theatre Arts
English Literature
German

History

Law

Mathematics
Physics

PE

Psychology

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Miss Steph Davies
ADDRESS: Presteigne, Powys LD8 2AY

T: 01544 267259 E: office@johnbeddoes.org
www.johnbeddoes.org




uwchradd anr
J*o‘

'LLANFYLLIN

\Y
.\‘390

Bid Ben Bid Bont

LLANFYLLIN HIGH SCHOOL IS A CARING
AND ORDERED COMMUNITY WITH AN
ATMOSPHERE OF CALM AND PURPOSEFUL
LEARNING. PUPILS ARE TREATED AS
INDIVIDUALS AND WE RECOGNISE AND
CELEBRATE THEIR DIFFERENT ABILITIES,
APTITUDES AND INTERESTS. WE WORK
HARD TO ENSURE EVERY PUPIL IS HAPPY,
SAFE AND SUCCESSFUL - A CREDIT TO
THEMSELVES, THEIR FAMILY AND
LLANFYLLIN HIGH SCHOOL.

As a school in Wales, we are
fully committed to maintaining
a warm Welsh ethos in terms
of language and culture. This
reflects the fact that the Welsh
language, heritage and
traditions are an integral part
of the national identity. All

students ha\p @%rtunity
to leave the schdol with a firm

grounding in Welsh or to be
fully bilingual.

We expect and encourage the
highest standard of behaviour
from our pupils at all times. All
pupils are expected to follow
our Code of Conduct so that
effective teaching and learning
can take place. Pupils will only
achieve their full potential if
they feel safe and above all are
happy. We have a strong
pastoral care system, PSE
programme and Behaviour
Policy which together ensure a
secure, caring and friendly
environment in which to learn.

Our sixth form is very popular
and oversubscribed. Most of
our students stay on to take
AS and A2 level courses. Pupils
who wish to study at level 3
including A2/AS levels and
BTEC are accepted if they are
well prepared and able to
study three or four subjects at



this level and their acceptance
depends on their achievement
in an appropriate number and
standard of level 2 GCSE and
BTEC subjects and a
consideration of whether
returning to school is the best
course of action for the
individual. A useful guide, a
minimum of five passes in
different subjects are expected
at ‘C’ grade or better but if a
pupil has not achieved this
then of course each case is
discussed individually.

Subjects through the medium
of Welsh are available in a
number of curriculum areas
and pupils are encouraged to
continue their Welsh medium

education into Key Stage 5
wherever possible.

All Sixth Formers are expected
to follow a Core Studies
programme. The Sixth Form
have their own Common Room
and extensive supervised Study
facilities.

Working in partnership with
Caereinion and Welshpool High
Schools we are pleased to
extend our curriculum as a
consortium of schools. The
level 3 courses we offer on this
basis are Engineering,
Landbased Studies, Hospitality
and Catering, Spanish, Welsh
Second Language and Further
Maths.

Page 52

THE FOLLOWING
SUBJECTS ARE OFFERED
AT AS / ADVANCED LEVEL
SUBJECT TO DEMAND
AND RESOURCES:

Fine Art Welsh (First
Biology & Second
Business Language)
Studies Computing
3D Studies  Design
Chemistry Technology
English Theatre
Electronics f/ltuocli.les
= h edia
renc Studies
Spanish .
Textiles
Geography -,
Hist Critical
M'S Ery ~ Thinking
at.ematlcs Land Based
Music Studies
Physics Engineering
gpoc';.ts Further Maths
s Spanish
Psychology

Students will also be expected
to follow the Welsh
Baccalaureate course too.



LLANIDLOES HIGH SCHOOL IS AN 11-18
DUAL-STREAM COMPREHENSIVE
COMMUNITY SCHOOL. THE SCHOOL
SERVES THE TOWN ITSELF AND A WIDE
SURROUNDING AREA.

The school is a caring
environment with high
expectations of all of our
learners. We encourage all
learners to reach their full
potential and offer the support
and guidance to help them
achieve their aims and
ambitions. We keep parents
informed of their child’s
progress on 3 occasions
through the year in addition to
parents’ evening; additionally,
we get in contact whenever we
feel necessary in order to
support our learners. We offer
a structured induction
programme at the beginning of
Sixth Form.

All Sixth Form students can
choose from a broad range of

Level 3 qualifications including
AS, A2 and Level 3 BTEC
courses. Students can study
vocational qualifications
alongside their traditional
academic qualifications. Sixth
Formers also have access to
courses run by our partners in
the ‘Llan Newydd’
collaboration (John Beddoes
and Newtown High School, and
Coleg Powys).

We run an established
Advanced Welsh Baccalaureate
Qualification (equivalent to an
A at A-level). Through the ‘Bac’
students are involved in a wide
range of activites from ‘Mock
UN Debates’ and learning
British Sign Language, to

making fiImsB&g@uﬁ@to

illustrate the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights.
They also choose a topic of
their choice for their ‘Individual
Investigation’ and raise money
for charity each year.
Politicians and other external
speakers regularly visit the
school, and students have
opportunities to go on many
visits as part of the ‘Bac’ and
as part of their chosen
subjects.

Sixth Formers have a strong
tradition of making a
significant contribution to the
school through the
‘Community Participation’
element of the ‘Bac’. Sixth
Formers are involved in ‘Paired
Reading’, ‘Numeracy’, ‘Peer
Mentoring’ - for which they are
trained by ChildLine - and
sports activities such as 5x60
and Dragon Sports.

The majority of our Sixth
Formers go on to university
after they finish their studies



with us, with up to 40% of
those going to Russell Group
universities each year.

Most students go on to their
‘first choice’ university. We
offer guidance through the
whole process including a
residential trip to a university,
and a UCAS evening for
parents, too!

At Llanidloes High School, we
have a designated Sixth Form
block which includes a study
centre with IT facilities and
two common rooms.

Comments made in the 2009
Estyn inspection of the school
include:

B “The arrangements for
assisting pupils to transfer
from one key stage to
another are outstanding

from KS4 to the sixth form?”.

m The outstanding ranges of
extra-curricular activities
which are provided by the
school enrich learners’
personal development”.

W “Standards of students’

social and moral skills are
outstanding”.

GOFAL
(Giving Opportunities
For All to Learn)

THE COURSES AVAILABLE

ADVANCED SUBSIDIARY (AS)/
ADVANCED (A) GCE LEVEL COURSES

The following Advanced Subsidiary (AS)/
Advanced (A) Level courses will be offered:

Applied Business
Art and Design
Biology
Chemistry

Design & Technology:
Product Design

Design & Technology:
Food

Drama & Theatre Studies
English Literature

Further Maths (Year 13
only)

French*

Geography

Health and Social Care
History

Information
Communications
Technology

Mathematics

Media Studies

Music

Philosophy

Physical Education
Physics

Politics

Psychology

Religious Studies*
Science (Applied)
Travel & Tourism
Spanish

Welsh (First Language)
Welsh (Second Language)
Welsh Baccalaureate
(compulsory for all)

* Subjects (above) which may be
offered in collaboration with
other schools / providers

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Mrs Jane Jerman
ADDRESS: Llanidloes, Powys SY18 6EX

T: 01686 412289 E: office@llanidloeshs.org.uk




SHEWYDD
s €k,

o
¥
&
',
=

=1

3

e

NEWTOWN HIGH SCHOOL IS A KS3-5 (11-18) COMPREHENSIVE
SCHOOL LOCATED IN NEWTOWN. THE SCHOOL SERVES THE TOWN
ITSELF AS WELL AS A LARGE RURAL SURROUNDING AREA.

At Newtown High School we
aim to promote ‘Cyfle’
(Opportunity in Welsh) - for
us this stands for:

Caring Yields a Flourishing
Learning Environment.

The school’s main aims are to:

B create a learning
environment where pupils
and staff enjoy a positive
experience;

m provide all pupils with the
opportunity to reach their
potential;

m provide a broad and
balanced curriculum that
prepares young people for a
bilingual and multicultural
society;

m aim for excellence by
setting high expectations
for all; and

m foster a school ethos that
encourages self-evaluation.

At Key Stage 5 students can
choose from a broad range of
level 3 qualifications including
AS, A2 and Level 3 BTEC
courses. Since September
2010 all Y12 students have
studied The Welsh
Baccalaureate at advanced
level (Level 3). Students

complete core activities such
as Wales Europe and the
World, Community projects
and Team Enterprise projects.
The vast majority of UK and
European universities now
recognise the Welsh
Baccalaureate and are happy
to accept the qualification as
part of a prospective student’s
portfolio.

KS5 students are lucky
enough to have easy local
access to courses run at Coleg
Powys’s Newtown Campus,
which is within walking
distance of the school. All
students have access to a
wide range of vocational level
3 courses which carry the
same weighting as AS and A2
qualifications. Many students
study these vocational courses
alongside their traditional
academic qualifications.
Vocational qualifications are
also available on the school
campus; these include Music
Technology, Fashion &

Clothing and Engineering.

6th form students at Newtown
High School have access to
wide range of extra curricular
activities, including sporting,
musical and cultural activities.
Post 16 students are
encouraged to take on leading
roles within the school and are
seen as positive role models
by all lower school students.

All students are encouraged
to take part in Learner Voice
activities such as The School
Council, SNAG (School
Nutrition Action Group) and
our award winning ECO
Committee.

In the school’s most recent
inspection report, ESTYN
stated that “Newtown High
School is now a good school
with several outstanding
features”. In 2010 the school
enjoyed its best ever exam
results.

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Mrs Angela Francis
ADDRESs: Newtown, Powys SY16 1JE

T: 01686 626304 E: office@newtown-hs.powys.sch.uk
www.newtawn-hs.~rewys.sch.uk




T
Wi

I‘ {'“ i

\ &

IGH SCHOOL

J 1

. |
T

e o

NEWTOWN HIGH SCHOOL POST 16 LEARNING PATHWAYS
All students will study The Welsh Baccalaureate at Advanced
Level and 4 subjects from separate option blocks.

-

-
-l

Q

)

§

O
itbzip

KEY

Caer = Caereinion
CP = Coleg Powys
JB = John Beddoes
LL = Llanfyllin
Llani = Llanidloes
NHS = Newtown
WHS = Welshpool

BTEC L3 Performing
Arts (Musical Theatre)

BTEC L3 Hospitality
& Catering (WHS)

AS PE (UB)

A Level Art & Design

BTEC L3 Media TV
and Film

AS Law (L)
AS Drama (WHS)

A Level Art & Design

BLOCK 1 | AS Art AS Biology AS Media Studies AS Business Studies
BLOCK 2 | AS English AS Maths AS PE
BLOCK 3 | AS Chemistry AS Music AS Welsh AS RE
QES) BTEC L3 Fashion BTEC L3 Childcare BTEC L3Countryside |BTEC L3 Sport
and Clothing Management

BTEC L3 Media
(Games Development)

AS Spanish (LL)

BTEC L3 Engineering
(LL

A Level Art & Design

BTEC L3 Travel
and Tourism

AS Further Maths (LL)

BTEC L3 Photography
(CP)

(Thurs)

BTEC L3 Engineering

BTEC L3 Public
Services

AS Politics (L)

BTEC L3 Applied
Science (Forensics)
(@]=))

BTEC L3 Music
Technology

BTEC L3 Hospitality
and Catering

BTEC Landbased
Technology (LL)

AS Biology (WHS)

(Fine Art) (UB) (Photography(JB) (Graphics) (JB)
BLOCK 4| AS History AS Physics AS Applied Science
BLOCK 5 | AS ICT AS Geography AS Psychology AS French

AS Drama
BTEC L3 Health and
Social Care

AS Welsh (C)

AS Spanish (L)

BTEC Level 3 Media
(Interactive)

BTEC L3 Media
(TV and Film)

AS ICT (WHS)

AS German (JB)



WELSHPOOL

WELSHPOOL HIGH SCHOOL IS AN 11-18 MIXED COMPREHENSIVE
COMMUNITY SCHOOL LOCATED IN WELSHPOOL. THE SCHOOL
SERVES THE TOWN ITSELF AS WELL AS A LARGE RURAL

SURROUNDING AREA.

HIGH EXPECTATIONS LEAD TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF

RESPONSIBLE AND WELL EDUCATED YOUNG PEOPLE. IN MEETING
THESE CENTRAL AIMS WE SEEK TO INVOLVE PARENTS, STUDENTS

AND STAFF IN A PURPOSEFUL AND PRODUCTIVE PARTNERSHIP.

All sixth form students can
choose from a broad range of
Level 3 qualifications
including AS, A2 and Level 3
BTEC courses. Many students
study vocational courses
alongside their traditional
academic qualifications.

Sixth form students have the
opportunity to have easy
access to ‘Trisgol’ courses
run with out partner
institutions at Newtown,
Llanfyllin and Llanfair.

At Welshpool High School
there is a sixth form study
centre, which consists of a

Page 57

resource area and IT facilities.
Every student is required

to attend five study sessions
per week as part of their
timetable.

Structured induction days,
worldwide exchange visits, a
strong tradition of theatrical
production, frequent
theatre/museum and art
gallery visits, subject specific
field trips, visits to school by
poets, broadcasters,
politicians and public figures
are a regular feature of the
school calendar.



HIGH SCHOO

All sixth formers are
encouraged to take a
leadership role within the
school. Important areas where
the 6th formers make an
important contribution are the
Paired Reading Scheme, the
Paired Maths Scheme,
APAUSE, peer mentoring, the
Sports Leadership Award and
assisting tutor groups in the
lower school.

SUBJECT BLOCKS AT
WELSHPOOL HIGH SCHOOL

BLOCK A BLOCK B BLOCK C BLOCK D
(THURS) (TUES)

Biology Chemistry
History Geography
Business Philosophy
PE Spanish

Plus ICT
Collaborative

Block

Subjects

IN THE SCHOOL’S MOST RECENT INSPECTION
REPORT IN NOVEMBER 2010, ESTYN STATED THAT

£ £ WELSHPOOL HIGH SCHOOL IS A GOOD
SCHOOL WITH MANY SIGNIFICANT STRENGTHS JJ

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Mrs Amanda Cottrell

ADDREss: Welshpool, Powys SY21 7RE

T: 01938 552014 E: office@welshpool-hs.powys.sch.uk
www.welshpool-hs.powys.sch.uk



= YSGOL BRO

DEAR STUDENTS,

YOU ARE APPROACHING A CRUCIAL PERIOD IN YOUR LIVES, WITH
GCSE EXAMS AHEAD AND THE NEED TO CHOOSE THE EDUCATIONAL
PATHWAY WHICH WILL BEST SUIT YOU FOR YOUR FUTURE PLANS
AND CAREERS.

| BELIEVE THAT THE SIXTH FORM AT YSGOL BRO DDYFI WOULD
BE IDEAL FOR VERY MANY YOUNG PEOPLE WHO ARE SEARCHING
FOR THEIR PERSONAL POST-16 EDUCATIONAL PATHWAY.

If you are inclined towards an
academic pathway, then Ysgol
Bro Ddyfi has an excellent
record in the provision of AS
and A levels. We can offer a
large number of courses
delivered by experienced
teachers who are experts in
their field. These subjects are
available in English and in
Welsh. We can also offer
subjects such as Psychology
through “distance learning”
using video conferencing and

co-operatior‘lzyvétcﬁét%

schools / colleges.

If you prefer to follow a
vocational pathway, then we
can offer a number of
subjects. As a school we co-
operate with a number of
other establishments to
ensure the best experience,
such as Glynllifon, Glanllyn,
Coleg Meirion Dwyfor, Coleg
Powys and Penweddig and
Tregaron schools.

What is great about Ysgol Bro
Ddyfi is that you can also



DDYFI

choose a combination of
academic and vocational
subjects. The vocational
subjects are accepted by
UCAS and universities; indeed
the Welsh Assembly
Government these days is
promoting the development of
vocational subjects because
the skills are needed in the
Welsh economy.

In addition to following 4 AS
courses (or vocational courses
or a combination), our
students in September 2010
will also be doing the “Welsh
Bac”. This corresponds to an
A grade at A Level. There is no
examination and it supports
what you already do in your
chosen subjects as well as
giving you the opportunity to
improve your skills. The
support of your personal Tutor
is central to your success in
achieving the Baccalaureate.

Although we are expanding,
the Sixth Form is still

sufficiently small for us to be
able to respond to the needs
of the individual. We do not
put subjects into ‘option
columns’ and this allows
young people to follow their
own personal combination of
subjects. All we ask is that
you let us know of your
requirements as soon as
possible after the GCSE results
so that we can adjust the
timetable for your needs.

The Sixth Form offers a
degree of freedom, but the
teachers also ensure that care
and support are always
available. There are
opportunities for personal
development, such as giving a
lead to younger pupils or
participating in school
activities such as

eisteddfodau, charity events,
school show etc. Students are
allowed to use the Youth Wing
as a meeting area and for
relaxing, and the excellent
resources at the new Hyddgen
Learning centre are available
for private study. Our students
are very happy here, and those
who have joined us from other
schools say that they found it
very easy to settle in and
make new friends.

Best wishes in the GCSE
exams, and we look forward to
welcoming you to the Sixth
Form at Ysgol Bro Ddyfi. You
are very welcome to call at
any time to discuss your
requirements.

Best of luck,
Dafydd Jones

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Mrs Haf Ap Robert
ADDRESS: Machynlleth, Powys SY20 8DR

T: 01654 702012 E: office@broddyfi-hs.powys.sch.uk




AND RESPECTED.

THE SIXTH FORM AT CAEREINION

HIGH IS A SMALL INCLUSIVE GROUP
WHERE EACH PERSON IS VALUED

EINION

Each member of the Sixth
Form is given the full support
and encouragement necessary
to develop as individuals, to
realise their full potential

as well the skills necessary for
successful study at post

16 level.

The Welsh Baccalaureate
Qualification is compulsory
for all (whose main base is

at Caereinion High)
consequently tutor groups are
very small in number generally
under ten in each year. The
majority of our students go on
to Higher Education.

Caereinion High is very proud
of its extracurricular activities,
be they sporting or cultural,
each student is given the
every opportunity and
encouragement to fulfil their
potential in these spheres.



HIGH SCHOOL

SUBJECT BLOCKS

OPTION 1 OPTION 2 (Tues) | OPTION 3 (Thurs)| OPTION 4 OPTION 5

Bioleg Biology

Business D&T

History English

Plus collaborative Welsh First
block subjects Language

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Mrs Claire Tinney
ADDRESS: Llanfair Caereinion, Welshpool, Powys SY21 OHW

T: 01938 810888 E: office@caer-hs.powys.sch.uk
www.caer-hs.powys.sch.uk

Page 62



-

= YSGOL CEDE

YSGOL CEDEWAIN, SITUATED IN THE
MARKET TOWN OF NEWTOWN IS A
BUSY, FORWARD-LOOKING SCHOOL
THAT PROVIDES EDUCATION AND
SPECIALIST FACILITIES FOR PUPILS
(2 - 19 YEARS) WITH A WIDE RANGE
OF LEARNING DIFFICULTIES FROM
ALL AREAS OF NORTH POWYS,
ALONG WITH SOME CHILDREN FROM
NEIGHBOURING AUTHORITIES.

Facilities we have at Ysgol
Cedewain include: Specialist
Design Technology/ICT suite,
Food Technology/Life Skills,
Multi Sensory Studio and
Hydrotherapy Pool.

Visitors to Ysgol Cedewain
continue to say that the
school is a very friendly place.
This is an important feature of
our school as we feel that
when pupils feel secure and
valued they give their best.
We remain committed to
working in close partnerships
with parents, the community,
social services and health

service and other
professionals.

At Ysgol Cedewain we will
continue to provide a safe,
stimulating and challenging
environment for all pupils. Our
school curriculum has been
tailored to meet the individual
needs of pupils, with the
emphasis upon individual
achievements. This ensures
that all pupils experience
success.

The Learning Core is at the
heart of our 14-19 provision.
All 14-19 learners have an
Individual Learning Pathway

Page 63

that is active allowing them to
add to it all the time.

This Learning Pathway
provides the opportunity for
all our learners to get the
most out of learning whether
at school, in collaboration with
Coleg Powys, Newtown High
School and Brynllywarch
School or via work based
learning routes so that all our
learners achieve worthwhile
qualifications. This will help
them to gain recognition in a
wide range of ways that will
be valued by work based
learning providers, colleges
and employers.

Each individual learning
pathway is Flexible, provides a
route through 14-19 education
that suits each individual
leading to worthwhile
qualifications, offers a wide
choice of courses for learners
to follow at their own level
and pace, allows the individual
to broaden their experiences
and develop new skills, gives
them the opportunity to
discuss their learning and
progress with our fully
accredited Learning Coaches,



offering personal support to
all learners and helping them
access information, advice and
guidance on careers,
education and training to suit
their needs.

We deliver a varied mix of
academic and vocational
externally accredited

(AQA, OCR, ASDAN, OCN
and City and Guilds) courses,
both formal, non-formal

and informal that develop
learners key skills, knowledge
and understanding of
themselves and the world
around them. All 14-19
learners have opportunities to
undertake work-focused
experience as well as the
Young Enterprise Scheme. We
currently offer 39 externally
accredited courses in our 14-19
school and this is expanding
every year.

The Learning Core at Ysgol
Cedewain identifies the skills,
knowledge, understanding,
values and experiences that all
14 - 19 learners need for
further learning, employment
in general, whatever learning
pathway they choose to follow.

THE KEY ELEMENTS OF
THE LEARNING CORE ARE:

KEY SKILLS
Attitudes and Values

Personal, Social,
Sustainability and Health
Matters

Community Participation

Careers Education and
Guidance

Work focused experience
Other work related skills
Welsh Language Skills

Wales, Europe and
the World

Cultural / Sporting /
Aesthetic / Creative /
Experiences

Our 14-19 curriculum focuses
on the learner, ensures skKills
development are integral in
our curriculum, is flexible,
supports bilingualism,

Curriculum Cymraeg/Wales,
Europe and the World, equal
opportunities, food and
fitness, sustainable
development, and global
citizenship, and the world of
work and enterprise.

Our Learning Coaches help
learners to assess learners
performance, identify areas
where they are not doing as
well as they could and
discover what they need that
will help them to learn better.
Learning Coach support at
Ysgol Cedewain provides
support, guidance, coaching
and mentoring to learners to
help them plan their individual
learning pathway, make
decisions, identify goals and
then to support their progress.

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Miss Angela Davies
ADDRESS: Maesyrhandir, Newtown, Powys SY16 1LH

T: 01686 627454 E: office@cedewain.powys.sch.uk

Page 64




B BRYNLLYWARCH
HALL SCHOOL

THE PRIMARY AIM OF OUR CURRICULUM IS TO ENGAGE
RELUCTANT PUPILS IN THE ACT OF LEARNING AS A
PLEASURABLE AND PROFITABLE EXPERIENCE. OUR STUDENTS
ARE OFFERED A WIDE RANGING AND VARIED CURRICULUM,
WITH AN EMPHASIS UPON THE ACQUISITION OF KEY SKILLS.

Our students all have a
Statement of Special
Educational Needs. This forms
the basis of all Individual
Education Plans and is
reviewed annually at an
Education Review. Full subject

reports are produced annually.

In addition, students undergo
a regular learning and
achievement review as part of
our internal assessment. This
review informs the Individual
Education Plan as well as the
Personal Education Plans.

We have fourteen fully
qualified and highly

experienced teachers. In
addition we have fifteen full
time teaching assistants who
work in the classroom
alongside the teachers.

Class sizes vary between 6 to
8 pupils and one to one
support is offered in key skills
areas to students who require
it. Our older students have the
opportunity to sit external
examinations - usually Entry
Level, ASDAN and BTEC. They
also have the opportunity to
experience learning outside of
the school by attending Coleg
Powys during Year 11. Work
Experience is organised for all
young people in Year 10, Year
11 and the Sixth Form. Careers
advice is offered from Year 9
onwards by the Powys
Specialist Careers Advisors.

There are clear expectations
regarding pupil behaviour and
each classroom teacher

HEAD OF SIXTH FORM: Mr Jon Lewis

monitors conduct through a
well established points system.
Failure to comply with the
classroom “rules” usually
results in a sanction e.g. loss of
privileges/detention. Equally,
good behaviour is rewarded
with a ‘student of the week’
for the pupil earning the
highest points for positive
behaviour. Student of the
week receives a £5 Argos Gift
Voucher.

Our sixth form provision offers
a wide range of activities and
courses including Essential
Skills, Numeracy, Literacy, ICT,
RE , PSHE, BTEC Land Studies,
Duke of Edinburgh - Bronze,
Silver & Gold, Open College
Network, Forest Schools,
Estate Skills, BTEC Sport,
GCSE Art and additional
qualifications i.e. First Aid,
Baby Sitting and Food
Hygiene.

ADDRESS: Kerry, Nr. Newtown, Powys SY16 4PB

T: 01686 670276 E: office@brynllywarch.powys.sch.uk
www.brynllywarch.powys.sch.uk




19 Network 2012- 14

rln]
uj j!

Wrexham 14 -

@)

(o)

(o))

<

€

0]

-

X

v

L =5

? o - -

— T P T C T o000 0O og
| O EJEI IZ! om 41 000 O 00 O O

oo O

O 0 0o o O O
oo o I'_'IEIDDIJEI Oooooo o O 000000 0o




Q HE B BN

i@ EREERERT

"|ooy2s JunoA 1b WJo} paLulad Ul 2|GD|IDAD OS|D S! UOLLDWIIO Ul DY |

|ooyas
JINOA YBNOoJY 2|GD|IDAD S2210Yd Y4 [[D O WOD'SI|DMSU224D" MMM
:SMO[|04 SD 2|gD|IDAD S| UOI}DWIOJUI 2OW

"dj2y Aup p22u NoA 41 |00YIS LD JOSIAPY SJ224D) JO
Y200 buiuupa ‘uosn] JUnoA 3sy “A||n4aJpd 3S00Y) 'PaJ2)}0 S2SUN0D
pup SADMY 4Dy BUIUID27] DY JO 2UOW JO U0 WOUS $22[2S UDD NOA

"2JD) [DWIUY

||]PWS pup buluaauibul o4 ‘Adouay| Ainbag pub buissaupuipH buipnjoul
S2SJN0Y [DUOILDIOA O} MDT PUD YdUad4 ‘3 ‘Ad0LSIH SD YoNS S25UN0d
[pdau29 WoJ} 2budd 422[gns ppouq ay4 ybnouyt buismouq Aofug

‘||2m SD 12[00q

2Y4 Ul punoJ} 2g upd S25JN0J 252y} LNOGD UOILDWIOJUT “2SUN0D
1UaWyd14u3 uUp pauJa4 0 2q Abw SLUIPNLS 2WOS UOILIPPD UT 262|10)
2|DA 1D J0 |00YDS Jayloup Ul papirodd 2q Abw s25un03 253y ‘0€:9

04 OS:{y Wod} SbuIu2A2 2YL Ul papiAcId 24D 2WOS "UOOUJDL}D YL Ul
4snl uo Aop-||n} 2y4 Jo} uay412 ‘'SADpPSaUPa |\ UO 2|GD|IDAD 2D S2SJNOD
2A14DJOGD||0D Y} JO LSOW ‘D2JD WDYXJAA 2Y4 UlY4im s262)(02

pup sjooyas Jo diysuauiuod D SI YaIym 3JomiaN 6I-4T WDYXJM

2Y4 puD |00Y2S UNOA YbNOoUY4 2|gD[IDAD 2D Ay | ‘S2IpPN4S JUNOA 0
Y4ppauqg 2416 04 S25un05 J0 2bUDJ 2pIM D 2p1A0Ud S2010Yd 25aY |

“IT PUD QT SJD24 Ul SJU2pPNiS ||D 04 2|GD|IDAD
S2210Yy2 2Yy4 LhogD uol4pwUoJul sapirodd 42)300q sy L

SdomiaN 61

423009 22104 AW
-pT WDYXaJM 2Y4 Of 2WO0d|2M\



DD _c_tc.o_E_ 04 SS220D 2A nis ||
INVYQIN9 ANV I2IAQY SJIFAVI 9

Mm yuoddns o4 sS290D u>cgwm =<.

13J0ddNS TVNOSJAd 'S ' ggooo

n ‘$J04s jo
J2qWawl JaYLouD Wod) Jo Yopo) buiuapaT 4sipidads b Wod) 2Wod
Aow ya1ym buiyanoy buiudpa o4 fUaW3|[41LU2 UD 2ADY SLUPNIS ||V

9INIHOVOD 9NINJVIT v . ﬂ_.m.u
‘Aomy4od BUIUUD2| JIBY} JBADLDYM 241] Ul P23U SLUIPNLS ||D YdIym d_._ U C
S20u3142dx2 puD San|pA ‘buipupisuapun ‘a2bpajmouy| ‘S|[14S YL ﬂn_
FA0D 9NINJVIT IHL '€ [ n...— O
"ADMY D4 BuIuJD27] [DNPIAIPUT JI2Y} 4INS 04 SD2JD 422[gns Jo 26uUDJ 2pIm mn go
D W04 5254N0J 250042 04 SLU2pNnLs Jo4 Atiunidoddo ay | H___H_ (=] O
ALTITISIX3Td ANV 3DIOHD ¥3AIM 2 = i
"S§S2J24u) pup sapniiido ﬂ_ oo
'Sp22U S|DNPIAIPUI Y2D2 04 Pa4INs ‘[2A3] 4Ybid 2y 4D suoi4poyionb . ..r:u O
0} buipoa| saipuntsoddo buiuupa| pup sasunod Jo 26oyond v ..ﬂ.uﬂ (mm)
AVMHLYd ONINIVIT TYNQIAIANI NV T ae g
1 SRR o
:04 JUWID[}I4UD 83 0O
UD 2ADY SP|0 JUD2A G- |[D PUD SD2JD UIDW XIS SU2A0D SADMYLDY buludpaT Ho00
: 210 0O
6T PUD ] J0 S2bD 2yt Uaamiag NoA Ya0no
J0J p24b2Jd SDM GI-{] SADMYLDY buiuupa] ‘|pob siyt buiaaiyoo ul djay o =S
. e
G2 40 2bv ayy Aq uoiyponpa Jaybiy =
Jo juawAhojdwa pa|iys yby Joj Apoau 2q |im 2|doad bunoA jo =
%G6 ‘G102 Aq 4Dy} si [D0b JuawuuaA0g A|quassy Ys|oM YL o |m]
mim



.
&
]
]
]
LI
|

nEE

uia

B e T T3AIT ANLNG

PIEMY T 9JEIYILISY 95-4a
ewopdjg | jean 3899 F T3AIT

PIEMY § LS J -V
wwopdi 7 s Fl ) Z 1[3AT

Nt 1wy | et3AIn

TVYNOILYIO0A AVHINIO

"S{U2WUBISSD 3J40MSUN0D YbNOJY L PasSSaSSD A||DJ2uab 24D pup 2nou Ul [0314904d 240U
24D A2y “tuawAojdwa Ul pauinbad buipubiLsuapUN PUD S|[14S 2bpa|Mous| Y4 U0 pasbq
24D A2y | "2b62||0D Ul 2|gD|IDAD 2210y J2PIM D YLIM |00YIS Ul PIUDAI[IP 2JD S2SUN0D

252y} J0 2WO0S 'S31DOYI4J3D) ¥DO PuD SO31g dpn|aul 02 TVYNOILYDOA

||2M SD 3J0M25JN0D 2ADY 2WOS PUD SWDX2 YbNoJYL p25sassD 2D
$254n02 [DJ2U2b sow 262]|0) 2Y4 puUD S|O0YDS U2ML2] P2JDYS 2D S2SJUN0D |DUU2D

2WO0G °|00YIS JNOA Ul P2J2AI|2P 2JD LSOW PUD S3599 2pN|dul == [5e a0l A EINED)

‘9T 40 26D 2y4 J21JD 2210Yyd DY 04 NOA LILIWIOD LOU S20p

Aomyiod Jpjnaijaod auo buisooyy “tuawAojdwa o buluibdy ‘UoILDINP2 Ul 26D4S {x2U
JnoA Jo} NoA 2updaud LDYL S254N02 2Y4 2S00YD PINOYS NOA “{ 26DLS A2 Ul S254n02
[DUOILDIOA PUD [DU2U29 JO XIW D YD} SLU2PNLS LSOW fuawAojdwa Jo ALiSuaAlun 04
PD2| UDD Y40Q PUD S|2A2]| ||D 4D 2|D[IDAD 2JD S2SJNOJ [DUOILDIOA PUD [DJ2U29 Yiog




"¥00q SIY} Ul J24D| 2|GD|IDAD 2D S|ID43P J2Yfdn4 ‘Uoisiroud
2Y4 WoJS flYuaq ||IM SLUIPNLS Y} S[224 [00YDS DY) 242YM S|O0YDS JIaY4 AQ SLUIPNLS 2WOS 04 PaJ2}}0 2UD ‘T [2A27] PUD [2A27] AULU] 4D 2|gD[IDAD ‘'S3SIYNOD LNIWHITINI

"bujua2u1bu] pup 25U219G SNOIAGO 2J0W Y4 SD ||2M SD ‘pasDg pup-]
PpUD U011oNJ}SU0) ‘Afnpag pup JIDH buipn|oul SAbmyibd [DU2A2S J0) PaP22U S 20U219S 2|dWDX2 JO4 "ADMYLDJ 2UO UDY4 240U JOJ [NJ2SN 2D S2SJN0D 2WOS :310N 3SVYI1d

ADMY 4D 3Y4 UIY4IM sa14iunjaoddo yaaupd Jo s2|dwox2 pup 9 26D 4D 2|gD|IDAD S2SJN0D 4O UOILDIIPUI UY .

"12[%00q 2y} Ul J34D|
P24S!| 24D S25UN03 2A14DJOGD||02 Y| S|OOYIS J2YLO PUD |00YIS JNOA WOJS SLUBPNLS JO XIW D 2ADY [|IM 2SUNOD DAILDJOGD(|0D V/ °S|00YIS YbIH ul papirodd awos yiim
262)|0) 2|DA 4D 22D|d 25D} S2SUN0D Y} JO LSOW 'S|OO0YIS WDYXIJAA J2Y40 Y4 YLIM BuiyJom S [00YdS UNOA S2SUN0D 2S2Y4 O “2AILDJOGD||0D 2D S2SUN0D 2WOS 4Nq
’|ooyas JnoA ui papiAoJd 2UD S2SUNOD LSO "S2SJNOD [DUOILDIOA PUD [DJ2U259 JO XIWw AuD 24 P|NOd Yd1ym suolido 40 Jagwinu D 2500Yd O} P2XSD 24 ||IM NOA UOILIPPD UT

MOojjo) 0f 2500Y2 oA Aomyiod uaA2y21ym 241404 JNoA J0f [DILUSSSD 24D 2S3Y [ 240D BUINIDIT 2l ) JO S{USWS|D SNIOIIDA
3l pup UoILDINPS [D2ISAYy ‘ABOJOUYID | UOILDWIOLUT ‘SIPNLS SN0IBI3Y ‘2oUIIS ‘SILLDWBYLDYY ‘YSI3M ‘YSIfBUF APNLS [[IM SLUSPNLS [/D ;240U 2SD3)
Aomy4og buiudpa] YoD2 UIY4IM 4T 26D LD NOA U0 2|GD|IDAD 2D JDY4 S2SJNOD Y| .

1hogp s1 Aomyjod ay4 4oym Jo DIPI PDOUG D NOA S2AID YI1Yym UOIEINPOJLUT UY .

:puy | noA abod yava up
"2|gD|IDAD S2S4N02 2y} pub SADMYibd buiuupa juauaj4ip 4nogo noA |24 sabod buimojjos ay |



12/ ‘ubIUYd2 |
J2yopa| ‘is14u210g
15160|0y2Asy ‘isidpaaytoisAyy
2sun( ‘4s1bojouoataw
$20JN0Say UbwnH
J0}20Q ‘4UDLUN022Y

ALISYIAINN
9NIQNTONI 81
J314dv NOISS3d90dd

sy
Jaubisaq
uodisny ‘uaydoubojoyy
Aagsnpur w4 puo AL
Jojouysn||T
Jojyowiup Jajhdwo) ‘rq
Joyo24Ip 244D3Y |
Jo4oy

ALISYIAINN
INIQNTIONI 871
J31d4d¥ NOISS3J90dd

diysasipuauddy
buipnjoul
buiuupa pasog 3J4om

25u2125 pal|ddy
S254N0) |DUOILDIOA

ABojoyaAsy ‘sa1sAyq
S214DWaYIDW JaYytdnd
SO14DWaY LDy
Abojoig upwni ‘Abojoag
Adgsiway) ‘Abojoig
S[2A2)-V
91 39V

1V NOISS3d90dd
319ISS0Od

diysao1puauddy
buipnjoul
buiuupa pasog jJuom

Abojouyday 21sny
SiJy UOILONPOUY
S4Jdy Buiwuotuay
DIPa\Y 2AILD2J)
ubisaq ¥ 4uy
S254n0) |DUOILDIOA

s2|14x2 ‘Aydpuboioyq
"2ISNW 'S21pNn4S DIPaW ‘S2Ipnis Wi4
'S2IPNLS 244D2Y | % bWpJQ ‘ubisaq ¥ tJy
S|2A2|-v

91 39V
1V NOISS3d90dd
319ISSOd

SO140W2Y4DW
puD 25uU219g

20uU219G pai|ddy
S254N0) |DUOILDIOA

(Abojoig ¥ Auysiway) ‘saisAyd)
S20U212s 24pJpdas 224y |

SO14S14DLS "22U219G ‘AbojoYdAsy
syow ‘AbojoisAyq uownH
Ab0j029 's21U0J422|]
22uU219G p2i|ddy ‘22u219G |puoILIPPY
$3S209

S3SJN02 v S

S4dy buiwiuojuay
S2S4N0) |DUOILDIOA

S3|14x2|
‘S21pniS pIpay ‘dwpbuq
‘21SNW ‘ubisaq @ vy
s3529

S3SJIN0D v SA

DIp2W pup
S{Jdy 2A14D2J)

NOA 404
2q pInoo siyy

éYdom sbuiyy moy
4hoqo bujuuoa| Aofua nok oq

éspuawiuadxa
buiop 21| noA oQ

ésJdaquinu yiim buisuom
Aofu2 noAk oQ

NOA 04
2q p|nod sy

¢sojoyd unok wouy sQAQ
buiyow Jo ‘02pIA umo unoA
o} punos buiyynd Aofua noA oQ

éS4y4no mau buiubisap Jo
buiyoyaxs sAomp noA auy

¢21snWw Jo 2oupp
2A0| noA oQ

AEE
ANAEENEEE NN
EEREESAw




ITHEENEEESESNMEEEEEEEE =E
ENlDEEEDNEEE

~

W is

EREENEEEE
TEEREE D =S

a EEHEE

JO4D|SuDJ |

2pIng Jno |
Lw;umcm 1N 24N4DJ41T YS|2M
1sinbui s|2
ub1JDJIgIT] :r_m:_hc%w NOA 403

isiouanop ,

uDWJ29 ‘Youau- 29 PInos styL s
Joy4ny ;m_u\n,_> 24n4bu2417 ysi|bu3 éNdom unoA up djay
ystuods yst|bu3 .
ALISYIAINN UDWII29 $3599 Aouany ysjaMm pInom
9NIQNTONI 81 Youad4

J314VY NOISSIY90dd 24n}pJa117 ysijbug
26onbuo ysi|bu3 :

24n4bJ2417 % 26pnbuD] Ysi|bu] ._.-«..Mume__.__._..__w_“w ,“uﬂn_u._.w m._.o:%%_.“uc_

sy ub1auoy Buisn 25| noA oQ

sabonbup £ o g

$35YN02 + SH ¢PDOJQD XJoM 04 JuDM NOA oQ

91 39v
1V NOISS3A90dd
3191SS0Od

At

NOA 404

2q p|nod sy
J42uUup|d umo |

Ja2yo03a |
J2)J0/\ |D120S
‘221AJ3G [IAID ‘SI1L1|0d

¢ésanss) |paidoy

SallIubwnH o/ buissnasip Aofua nok oq

Abo|o1205
uo14poNp3 snoibijay

¢anl| Aayy
40404 Wnasnyy AdoysiH moy pup 2|doad 4nogo 4no
ublioysiH SO141]0d ¥ $U2WUI2A09 buipuy Aofua nok oQ
1s160j02DY2uYy Aydpuboag - .
UOILDSI[IAID [DIISSD|D éisod ayy
ALTSYIAINN S[oAD|-V/ Abojot205 nogp buiuaoa| Aofua
ONIQNTONI 81 S21PN4s snotbijay o ok og
Jy31LdVY NOISSII90dd 91 39v mw\Mt:oE:T_
1v NOISSTI90Ud P
31815504 M 2029

s3509

AREN H B B EEER &
ERm & B R B N
| B H N

S3SJIN0I ¥ SA



J2bDUDW 244U2)
UO14DWJOJUT 4S14NO |
Ja2yopa |
Yop0) siJodg
1S14U219G 251942X3 pup SsiJodg
UosJa4 S4J40dg [puoIssajodd
J042oNJLSUT S4INSUNg JoopLNO
J2bDUDW 244U22 2unsiaT]
day AopijoH
JofonJsul ssauti

ALISJIAINN
INIQNTONI 81
J314dv NOISSII90dd

4upisissy 20440
J22u1bu3 yJomiaN
burgndwoy pipawiinw
Lupoi|nsuod | I
JaubisaQq sawpg
J2bbup\y 0}0Q
Jawwpouboud uaindworn

ALISIIAINN
9NIQNTONI 81
J31d4V NOISSII90dd

diysasipuauddy
buipnjou)
bujuupa pasog yuom

WSIJNO| PUD |[2ADJ |
tJodg
WSIUNO] ¥ 2Jnsia7
S2S4N0) |DUOILDIOA

uo140oNp3 |031sAyq
S|aA2|-v

91 39v
1V NOISS3d90dd
319ISSOd

saipn4s siJdodg
WS1JNO| puD 2Jnsia’
suoidQ |puoipI0A

uo11ponp3 [p21sAyq
$3559

%“2&<

buipnjoui
bujuupa pasog dJoMm

ssaulsng Joj S|’YS 101
Abojouyda| uoI}pWJouT
S2SJN0) |DUOILDIOA

Abojouyda| uoI}pWJoIuT
buiyndwoy
S|2A2|-V

91 39v
1V NOISS3d90dd
3191SS0Od

S3SJN02 + SA

A0

Abojouyd2] uoljpwJouT
suoiydp |puolLDI0A

ABojouysa} uoILDUIIOJUT
buigndwon
s3509

S3SJIN0I ¥ SA

NOA -0}
2q pInoa sy

¢Augsnput wisiunoy
2Y4 Ul yuom o) 21| noA pjnom

¢Wp24 D Jo juod SD pup sJayjo
Y4m bupjuom a1 noA oQ

és4insang JoopinQ Jo sjuodg
Uo U223 NoA auy

24nsja27 puo jJodg

TIRRRRIREY

NOA 404
29 pJnoo sty

éMdom suagndwod moy 4nogo
240w Mouy 04 jubm noA oQ

Page 73

buigndwoy puo T

¢suoiyoolddo
Ja4ndwod ubisap nok oQ

éda4ndwod urayyd
asn 2|doad uayio djay
0} 2|qo noA auy




J2bbup\y S2|0S
AJD}2422G 0627 ‘u2AMDT
JnauaJdadjuy
1s1wouos3 ‘uaAng

diysao1yuauddy
J2bouD\y Ssauisng buipnjoul
J2|D YuDg '4224 40 Ulpy m.:_:,_ou.._.vumom. %JOM

%J2[D S4UN0IJY MD

Jubpiunoddy ssauisng Sdolwouod3 - DO—J>°ULOM&-.
UOI}DULSIUIWPY S21pnig ssaulsng qPl ML
ALISYININN S2S4N0) [DUOI4DIOA $3509

¢S4u2A2 buisiuobuo Aofua noA oQ

9NIQNTONI 871
J31d4dV NOISSII90dd MD7]
S21Wou0d3
S2IpNiS ssauisng
s|2A2)-v

S3SJIN0D v SA

¢Ssauisng umo JnoA
unJ o4 Juom noA oQ

¢MD| Jo 2oupuy
91 39V Ul pajsada4ul NoA auy

1V NOISS3d90dd
3191SS0Od

Page 74

d dd . NOA 403
1Iys2o14uauddy . 2q pJnod sy
bu3 buip|ing /24! Buipnpou! _
Lm,_w%»_mmw:w x@..%o\:m.w BuuIo3] pasog oM \ . > ¢sbuiyy buiyow puo
J2GWn|4 _Nozc__ﬂm:mH _WU_(_,Gm_w ; buiubisap Aofua nok oq
UDIDIUYI2| 2[I1Y2A JOLO urquiniq ‘buiAo| Jool4
wau_m:._m.. m_u._“\_otuu_ms\ SU014DJ2d(O 22UDUBLUIDWY Uo14oNJLSU0) ¢éawoy 4o
UDPIIL2|3 suo1ypdna30 poom buruzauibu3 AIQ Y4m djay nok oQ

J22u1bu] ubisaq ‘u0joJ0d3Q (] m:tmu:_mcm [D21UDYI2W /[DI1I403|] suoiydo [ouo14DI0A
J23DW 12u1gD) ‘u2AD|3d1ug butuayso|d m:._E.‘_ou\mo pup bu4uing

UDIDIUYI2} S}I241Yddy suo14pdnd2Q [2moJ] ‘buluaauibug] [1A1D
o ’ UO149NJLSUO) ‘2AILOWIOLNY

ALISYIAINN $2sJ4no) |DUOILDIOA

9NIQNTONI 81 ~ N\
J314v NOISSII90dd S21U0J492|3 ‘Abojouyda| ubisaq
S|2A3|-y
91 39v

1V NOISS3d90dd
319ISS0Od

éydom |oa1ooud
Sa|14x2 ] Aofu2 noAk oqQ
Abojouyda] poo4
so1ydoug
S|DIJ2JDWY JUDLSISDY
ubisaq Jonpoud
s3529

UOI4oNU4SU0)
» bujuaauibu]
‘Abojouyd2] ‘ubisaq

S3SJN0D + SA




0

1

J2YJOM [D120S
‘u2yop2] ‘Jabbubw doys
221|104 ‘2sJ4nN
J2SS2JpJIDH ‘J0||25UN0)
J2bDUD\Y 22U2424U0D)
1UDJSISSY WO0USSD|D)
$4YD
J2XJOA\ 2D
isidouay| Ainoag

ALISIIAINN
INIQANTONI 8T
Jd314dv NOISS3II90dd

19211youy 2dpospun
JauIDJ| 2SJoH
JauapJpg
4siio|4
J24J0M WJD
2SUn( [PWIUY
2J4D) [DWIUY

ALISYIAINN
9NIQNTONI 81
J31d4V NOISSIY90dd

diysasipuauddy
buipnjou
bujuupa] pasog yuoMm

|ID42y 'S221A42S 21|qng
buu24p) pup AtijpridsoH
2J4D) [D120G PUD Yi[D2H

buissaupuJioH
221AJ2G J2WOLSN)

UoILDINP3 PUD 2JDIP|1YD

Adouay] Ainpag
S2SJN0) |DUOILDIOA

91 39v
1V NOISS3390dd
3191SS0Od

diysasipuauddy
buipnjou
bujuapa pasog yuom

24N4|N214I0H

1uaW2bDUDWY P 2UD) 2SUOH
Adysaudo] ‘Ausiuol4

24D) [DWIUY ‘24N4|ND1UBY
S2SJN0) |DUOI4DIOA

Abojoig
S|2A2|-v

91 39V
1V NOISS3d90dd
3191SSOd

Adouay Aihoag
puD buiSsaJpJIDH
S$221AJ2S 21|qNd 'S||I4S |1042Y
buiu24p) pup AtijoLidsoH
24D) |DID0S PUD Y4|o2H
2J4D) J2WOLSN)

240D P|IYD
suoidO |puoILDI0A

AbojoyaAs( ‘Abojo1oog
Abojouyda| poo4
$3529

S3SJN02 + SA

24D) [DWIUY |[DWS
24N4|NJ14I0H
suoidO |puoILDI0A

S3SJN02 + SA

pasog pup]

NOA 404
2q p|nod sy

¢awoy 2aupd D Jo dnoub
y4noA o ui djay nok oQ

ésJaylo oy
Juospa|d pup 241jod nok auy

¢2|doad uayjo buidjay
Aofua nok oqQ

2|doad 04 s2ad1Ad2G

NOA 404
2q pIno sy

ésdJoopino
bunjuom 231 nok oQ

¢S[DWIUD yHm
buijuom Aofua nok oQ

¢u2pupb ay4 ui
buidjay Aofua nok oq

Page 75




=t

AEEEB

*2b2]|0) 2|DA J0 SNdWD) %UDY 2A0J9 Y4 LD 20D|d 2)D} S2SUN0D 2S3Y| "S}UW26UDIID
1JodSuDJY UMO 12y} 24D JSNW S{U2PNLS S2SUN0D 26DNbUDT 4ybIjIM| Y4 Jo

“JU2PNLS Y202 JOJ POU 2D SLUBWIBUDUJD [DNPIAIPU) S2SUN0I ADP-(|N} 3Y4 JO

‘paJinbau }1 ‘2|pA }0 SNdwbd ¥JUpd 2A0U9
34 JO UOILD4S SNQ $224G BULy 2y} 04 paudNiad 2q [|IM SLUIPNLS 'S|00YIS WDYXDJ/ Ul
pUD ppoY WDYsJag 4D 2|dWDX? J0J ‘244U2D UMO4 2y} PUoAaq 29p|d 2%D4 S2SUN0D 2JaYM

“2WoY JJodsupdy JoJ S{UaWaBUDJUD 2XDW SN SuDIpJonb/siuaJnd

JI2y4 pup spuapnis pup wdpg'{ 4D YSIuy ||IM S3SUN0Y ‘UOISSaSs bulyopal Yopa Jo JUDLS
2Y4 4D Su2pIA0Jd 2SUN0D 04 P24JodSUDUL 29 ||IM SEUBPNLS S2SUN0D UOOUUSJD Y4 JO
Juodsupuy

“2|9D|IDAD SI buipun} pup s254n0d 2Y4 Ul 4Sada4ul $U219LJNS SI 24244 }1 29D(d 24 Ajuo
||!IM p2J24}0 S35UN0) “SJau4tJpd [DI0] PUD S|00YIS YbIH ‘g7 Woyxadp Ag SD |[am SD
' JUWUJ2A09 A|qU3SSY YS|2/|\ Y4 Wo punJ 422u1p Aq pa4Joddns si uoisiroud ay |

*254n02 3y} buipiroud 262)100 Jo |00YdS 2y} AQ pamaiAd4ul 3] [|IM S2SUN0OD

||p 404 buiA|ddD spuapn4s S|00YIS UaY40 0} paua}f0 Uy} 24D S20D|d |0oyds snidung
'|ooyds Yyap2 ui dnoub Jp2A 2Y4 Ul SLUPNLS SO SUaqWNU Y4 04 BUIPJ0IID S|00YIS

2yl u22m2q dn papIAIp 2.D 2|qp|IDAD S20D|d 2y | ‘Siuawadinbad AL24bs ¥ yipay Jo
A4190dpd 200ds buiyopay 04 2np S Siy| ‘S29D|d JO J2GWNU WNWIXDW D 2ADY S25JN0J ||V
J24}0O 2s4n0)

‘looyds
umo s juapnis 2yt yiim dn uaypy) 2q pjnoys tuawdinba yons buipiroud yiim saiynoytip
Auy 1500 Aj2)1| 2y4 pup padinbau juawdinba oy122ds ay4 sauijLno Ja4p2| 254n0d Yop3

"Siuawadinbau A42J0g pup YipaH 422w 04 papaau

S1 buy4o|o p122ds buluaauIbu] PUD UOILINILSUO) UT H00q $X34 D 25DY2JNnd 04 paau [|ImM
1uapnys ay4 ‘2|dwbxa 4o ‘MDT UT "p2Ipn4s buiag asUn0d aY4 0} BUIPI0IID SIIUDA SIyL
pup 25un0d 2y 04 24bludouddop yuawdinba oy122ds apiroud o) pajdadxa aup SpuapnNLS
Juawdinby asunoy

‘ssaJboud

JINOA U0 UOILDUIIOJUI UD[NBU S2AI2924 PUD 22UDPUDLLD JNOA JO ¥22M YID2 paw.o
SI |ooyas Junog “Aja4piddouddp pup Ajqisuodsad aADY2g puD pubY %JOM ‘2IUDPUDLLD SO
[2A2] LU2|[29X2 UD 2ADY 0} p2122dX2 24D NOA $25UN0J 2A1LDIOGD||02 UO ‘ADM 2WDS 2y
uz ‘oA Jo sby [00yds unoA suoi4pLd2dxa Yb1Y 3y 4O 2UDMD 2UD NOA |00YIS UMO UNOA UT

*AJU0 UOOUJ2}4D Y4 JOJ U0 ADp [|N} D UO4 JaY}12 ‘ADpSaupa |\ D Uo 200|d YDy ||IM 2T02
J2qW21dag Ul O JD34 JOJ BUIdUAWWOD S254N02 2A14DJ0GD||03 ADP-}|DH puD ADp-|iN4
S254N0Y) 2A14DJOGD||0) $NOGD UOI4DWIOJUT |DJ2U39

|
262|109 2|pA 35091 ubwJu29 3579 S26pnbup
262||0) 3|PA 35091 ysiods 3509 s26Dnbup
ADW Ul S254n02 252Y4 J0} SS2204d 21pupdas D 24 [|Im 242y (0€:9-0€:{) S2S4n02 LybijIm]
DIP2W 2A1}ODJ2LUT Ul PUDMY
262](0D 2|PA [ D-xV 3529 /11 2 2427 pup buiindwo) 3599 buitndwo) pup | T
262||0) 2|pA 35091 AbojoydAsd 3509 S214DW2YIDW puD 22U219G
262|109 2[DA 35091 S21Wou023 3579 25UDUI{ puD Ssaulsng
2b2||0D 2|pA 35091 $21U0J422|3 3509 buuzauibuy
262|0) 2|DA 35091 MDT 3509 25UDul] puD Ssaulsng
2Wwouboud syuapnis 2|qy
|ooyds 404225 Aynpag
sJaydoysiuy) ‘1S PpUD JIDH 2Y4 04 UOILONPOJLUT
1 262||0D 2[DA 9-Q53509 2 UD Ul 24D2Y1442) T |[2A27] 2|doag 04 s221A2G
(Buraayo) oun) ApijoidsoH
262]0D 2pA [ -4V 53509 2 Ul 2400y 1442) papUa4x3] 2|doaq o4 s221AZD)
S20IAJ2G ™~
262|100 2IPA | 2-4V S3S29 2 21|gNd Ul 240241443 P2pua4x] 2|do24 o4 s201A42@)
221AJ2G J2WO4SN) =1
2b2||0) 2IPA [ 9-Q 53509 2 Ul 2409414420 OAN T [2A27] 3|doay 04 S201Ad
|ooyos 24D) [pWIUY
sdaydoysiuyn IS | D~V 53509 2 ul 240041443 papuaix3 pasog pup
S[|I4S UO14INULSU0)
262(|0) 2[DA 9-Q3509 1 21SDg Ul 24D0U14J2) T [2A27] | UO0ILONULSUOD ¥ BuluzauIbu]
2b62||0D 2|pA 9-Q 3599 T | butua2u1bu] ul 2402414429 T |2A27] | UOILINULSUO) ¥ Bulua2UIbU]
S4dy buiwJouay
262|100 2IDA | D-4V S3S09 2 Ul 240041442 papua4x3 DIP2\Y PUD Sidy 2A1LD2J)
$254n02 ADp }|DYy UOOUJ24 D ADPSaUPI M
s21pNniS Anbag pup
269(100 2IDA | -V S3529 G | JIDH Ul Buiuapa [pdiduldgd 2 [2A2] 2|doa4 04 S221AU2S
s21pn4S Anbag pup
262|109 2[DA 9-Q 53529 € | J1oH Ul buluaoa [pdiduldd T [2A27 2|do24 04 s221A42G
JUuaWuoJIAUg
1[INg 2Y4 pUD UOILINULSUO)
262100 2IDA | D-4V S3S29 G ui buiuapa jodiduldg 2 [2427 | U0ILONULSUO) puD buluzaulbu]
buiuaauibug
262)109 2IDA | -4V S3S09 G u1 buiuaoa jodiduldg 2 UO14ONULSUO) PUD bulu22u1bu]
uo140207 25u2|DAINb] ) Abmy4og

0T 4D2A Ul 24D24ND|DIIDG YS|2M 2Y4 buiypy spuapnys Jos

254n0d> Abp 2[0ym ADpSaupa

uoisinoud 2A11pJ0QgD||0D




2pIsa2q 992 J1dN - S|['¥S 24n4|N2ILUIOH |DI14IDU( Ul PIDMY 2doospuo puoH
2pis22Q paJoby - sa1pniS upldisanby

3|04 9249 - [29X2P3 - S44DJ) Q€ Ul pUomy
sJaydoysiuy) 4s
2|04 9 2pIs22q
244U2) 023

upluysanb3
S+304D Qe
D23LM - 240D P|IYD ul 243y 1442) 24D2p|IYD

paJoby - 262|09 04 UOILONPOJIUT | SJ24SD| [DUOI4DIOA 2.4

P2.40bY - UOILDAUIISUOY J1SDG O4 UOILONPOJLUT S2IPN4S |D4UWUOUIAUT]
2pIs22Qq P240by - 22UDULUIDWY 2[21Y2A OJ UOILINPOJIUT buiu22u1buy
2pIs22Q 990 D1dN - S[II¥S 2dn}[NJ1LJOH [DI14IDd Ul pJDMy
1SD4SA|] 29V - UOILDAJ2SUO) Ul pJomy
sJaydoysiuy) i1s 121 A - 404225 ALND2ag ¥ JIDH Y4 Ul 24D2U1442D

saydossiayd 15 LOLA - 404225 AND2g ¥ JIDH 244 Ul 2400Y1442) Aynoag

24n}|NJ14JI0H
pasoqgpuon]
buissaupuioH
buiuipa] woyxaumm Sp|INg ¥ A41) - Bulu2quDg ¥ BUISS2UPUJIDH Ul 24004 1442)
sJaydolsiuyy 4s SP|IN9 % ALID - S||IYS |1D42y Ul 24D2Y14u2) 11042y
2pIs22Q 22}g - [99X3P3] - 24NSI27] 2AI4Y P 4J0dS Ul puDMy | 2dnsia] P 4dods 2A140Y

buissaupuioH

uonpo1IqRY B buiplam

siinsdng Joop4ino |

1SDJSA|q 28V - buiuaauibug ui puomy
244U2) JALUDN VYOV - S4INSUNg JOOPLNO 04 UOILINPOUJIUT
1SDJSA| p240by - 24p) [DWIUY Ul pUDMY
1SD4sA| 992 DLdN - 24D [DWluy pasbg %Jo/ ul pJomy
2|DA SP|IN9 %9 ALID - S||14S UOILINJLSUOD J1SDG Ul 24DIY1LI2)
2|DA 2214 - |[20X2p3] - bulua2u1bu3 Ul puomy

24D) |pWIUY
24D) |[pWUY
uo14oNJ4SU0)
buiuaau1buy
buiuiod | woyxadm SP|INg 1 AL1D - 20UDUDLUID\Y SWRLSAS 2[21Y2 A Ul pUDMY S21UDYy22W
2IDA 9249 - [29x2p3] - ALI|p4IdSOH Ul pJomy buluaioy

3[PA SP|IN9 ' AL1D - ALip4idsoH Ul T [2A27] buiuayop
12PN|2UI P2J2440 S3254N0)

‘Aopiu4 04 Aopuoyy wouy Aop Aub 29p|d 23D4 UDD S254N03 3Y | “2|gD|IDAD OS|D 2D S2SUNOD
Aop J|py ybnoy4[p 322m D ADp 2U0 2UD S2SUNOD LSOW ‘P|2L [DUOILDIOA {UJ2J 1P D Ul 2SUN0D
A2 Augu3 Jaysoup Apnis o4 24prudouddp Ji o S35UN0J T [2427 04 U0 Ssauboud o Ajiunjdoddo
2Y4 2ADY U2y} ADW pUD [2A27] AULU3] 4D S2SUN0D MO||0) SLUDPNLS LSOW DA 4SUL} YL UT

"SADMU{{DJ bUIUID2] PUD SP22U JUapPNLS [DNPIAIPUI 422W O4 Ul 4|ING
U22q 2ADY S24N0J U0ISSauboud pup Juodsupd) ‘fuoddng “gI- ] pabo siuapnys Jog saipiunidoddo
2p1A0Jd Y21ym S254n09 40 26UDJ D SI , JUBWYDIIUT WNNDIIUND, HJOMIBN 6]- ] WDYXaUM YL

‘uoisirod siy4 wous
+12uaq 04 |00YS Jiay4 AQ papuawiwodaJ aq Abw s|idng °,JuaWwyd1du3 Wnjna1Iny, sapiaodd
HIOM4RN 6] - T WDYX2uM 2Y4 ‘42]400q SIY4 Ul P2q1iosap ApDad|p S254n03 2y} 04 UOI4IPPD UT

4U2WYd1Ju] WnjndIJIn)

‘|oA27-Y 4D 2WWDUbOU] SLUaPNLS

2|qD 2y} Ul paIpnis s492(qns 2yl Jo 2u0 )04 SLUIPNLS
Aup\y 'S|2A2|-y 04 U0 ssauboud spuapnis Jo Ayluofow
1SDA 2y} 2WWpJboUd SLUBPNLS 2|qY Y4 bulta|dwod up

"254N0J SIY4 U0 WJojJaduapun Aayy J1 SaAj2sWay4
26DJUDAPDSIP PIN02 DIJ24IJD Y4 429W LOU OP OYM SLU2pNis
J2A2MOY !S214ISJ2AIUN 2A1412dW0d fsow ay4 o) bulAjddp uaym
punoJbxopq paaouduil up 2AbY auwpJboud siy4 242|dwiod
A[INJSS220NS OYM SJU2PNLS ‘|2A2|-Y 4D S22104D 2|qissod

04Ul 4ybisu) uay4un} pup suo1LpIYIPNb [DUOLLIPPD UIDD [|1IM
SJu2pn4s 3y ‘Syuapnis a4pludouddo Jo) 2bua|joyd [puoiLipp
apinoud o} paubisap S| awwDJbOU] SEUIPNLS 2|9y YL

"uo14ponp3 JaybiH
ut s423lgns 2say4 axpy 04 buiysim syuapnys Jo abDJI0YS D SI
242y} A4uaJun) 'S21U0JLI2|] Ul S3IPNLS [D2149DUd [DUOILIPPD

Y4IM PaJ2440 2 ||IM SIY| 'S2IU0JLI2|] 359 S! UD2A Iy}
J42}J0 U0 2SUN0D MaU \/ "DIP2\Y 2AI4IDJB4UT Ul 24DIL1442)
2318 © pup burgndwo) ur 3599 o o4 buipoa| awwpuaboud upaA
oM} D 2¥D} Abw ubisap sawpb Jo ubisap 2.pmy}os ‘burindwod
Ul SU22uDJ Ul P24S2U24Ul 2D OYM S{UIPNLS 2|GD A[2AILDUIDL|Y

“IT UD2A Ul SWDX3 Y4IM SUD2A 2

J2A0 paIpNis 24 [|iM S422(gns 3y "Sa1wou0d3 pub AbojoyaAsy
"MD WOJJ U2S0YI S3509 2 ApNLS [|IM Syuapnss 2b2(0)
3|DA 4D P2u2440 SI YoIym ‘awwouboud siy4 uiof o4 paLiAul 240
3599 4D g JO ¥ i/ 2A21Y2D 0} pa4oadx2 24D OYM SLUIPNLS

awwpoubouy syuapnis 2|qy

O 0.0 o0

o000 000000 0O
& 8|5 FRE 6 o e i o G o e B s e ie om0 9

O0ooo0 O oo

0.

O
O

o0 0O

O

00 OO0 O 000000 0o

ao

o
o
o
o
o
O
O
o
0
O
=]
=]
o
e
=

oo
o

O



€1

"ADW Ul 22D|d 2¥D} |[IM S25UN02 252y}
J0J JU2W[0JU] "2S2YL 4O 2UO 2500YD UDD NOA "YSIUDAS puD UDUIIR9 ‘JSD9 Ul S25UN0D LYbI|IML 2UD 242y |

“2W14 2WDS 2y} 4D 20D|d 23D} [|D A2y} SD 2SUN0D 2A14DJOGD||0d ADP-J[DY U0 ADP-||NJ 2U0 2SO0YD AJUO UDD NOA

S25J4N02 Y} ||D JOJ [00YIS LD S2210YD JNOA XDV

-
Ry
(S254n03 UO1LINULSUO) PUD T L mm
buruz2u1bu3) sndwoy pooy » 9 -P_l l.u?l o) 3 -se-o-aun
woysJag 263|109 2D . - b
4o wdoo'Z - 00°G A
- Aubnuga4 Yyi6

(uor4onuysuoy puo
buuzauibuy 4daox2
$254N02 ||V)
sndwp) yJbq

2A0u9 2b2||0) 2|DA
4o wdpo'Z - 00°G

Obo O O O 0 DOo UUDDUDD
"sbuiuaa2 221ApD 00 O DDDDDD UDDDDD O

-?.o?_numfn. Dn_ D DD DDDDDEDDDDDDD m
2A11D40qD||02 2y} ‘G] 260d U0 paysi| 2SUN0D 2A14DJOGD|[02 D bulJapISU0D ogao o

OO0 00 DD D

24D NOA 1 ‘pup sbuiuaA2 siuaJod/221ApD |00YdS JNOA puatiy

‘|o0Y3S JNOA Ul 2|D|IDAD 2JD 2S2Y| ‘Ul P2LS2J24Ul 24D NOA S2SUNOD DAILDJIOGD||0D LNOGD £22YS UOILDWIO Ul DY} PDY
*2|qD|IDAD S423fgns ay4 £nogp [00YdS UNoA AQ papiAoJd UOILDWIO U 2Y4 PDIY

"SADMY{DJ BUIUID2] 240U JO 2UO0 WOUS 2W0D ADU
$254N02 0 2210YD JUNOA “SJISIAPD PuD S4ua.0d ‘SuayoDa4 YLiM Way4 SSNOSIP pub SADMYLDJ buiuapa] 2)qissod unoA Japisuo)

¢Mou op T op 4bYym



"AUDSS222U 242ym 26UDYD 0} LYbIJ 2yt 2AU2S2J S|00YIS
2Y4 puD 3JomiaN GI-T WOYXaJdM 2Y4 ybnoyy ‘ssaud
04 bu10b JO 2WIL 2Y4 4D £224U0D 24 0} PaW22p SOM
uo14p21|gnd SIY4 Ul PaUIDLUOD UOILDUWIIO Ul DY |

S|00YDS |DI0] Y4IM
diysuauidod Ui yJomiau G- WOYX2J M
2y4 Aq p2onpoud som uoi4po1gnd sty |

WL v R

)

WROMDE S ETHJOLS NI LS

g

R R TR T Emzxﬁ;,_mmm:eu aep
wesa.1pm e 62107

0169%€ 81610
ML STT7 WDYXJM ‘2A0U9 [|2M¥204S

SYIHIOLSTIHD 1B

TOOHJS
SAIHJOLSIUHI 1S

L

HNL €177 WoYx24/ ‘Pooy WDys.iag
NOILONYLSNOD ANV INIYIINIONG
¥0< FULNID 3931100 IVA

Percy Road

sndwes peoy

FAD93ATT0D

¥6/11€ 82610

av ./ 2177 WoyxadM
'PDOY YJDd 2A0U9
3937102 AVA

avO0d NIHLNY

peoy ied aA0iD

FADIATTOD ATTVA

\useusoud

5



Agenda Iltem 8d

Children and Young People Committee
CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 4

Inquiry into the implementation of the Learning and Skills
(Wales) Measure 2009

Additional evidence from the University and College Union

Uucuyu

University and College Union
Undeb Prifysgol a Choleg Cymru

WALES
CYMRU

Further questions from NAfW CYP
Committee on implementation of
Learning and Skills Measure (Wales)
2009- UCU Wales response

Page 80



Contact Details:

Lleu Williams

Political Liaison Officer

UCU Wales

Unit 33, The Enterprise Centre
Tondu

BRIDGEND

CF32 9BS

Tel: 01656 721951
E-mail: lwilliams@ucu.org.uk

The University and College Union (UCU) represents more than 120,000
academics, lecturers, trainers, instructors, researchers, managers,
administrators, computer staff, librarians and postgraduates in
universities, colleges, prisons, adult education and training
organisations across the UK.

UCU is the largest post-school union in the world: a force working for
educators and education that employers and the government cannot
ignore.

It was formed on 1 June 2006 by the amalgamation of two strong
partners - the Association of University Teachers (AUT) and NATFHE-
the University & College Lecturers' Union - who shared a long history
of defending and advancing educators' employment and professional
interests.

Below is UCU Wales response to the further questions raised by the
National Assembly for Wales Children and Young People’s Committee,
after our verbal evidence session.

Has there been an increase in digital learning in colleges as a
direct result of the collaborative requirements of the
implementation of the Measure? If yes, has this been
successful for the learners involved?

UCU Wales believes there has been an increase in the use of digital

learning, and we welcome this development. This development allows
for learners to further access a wider range of subjects, without having

Page 81



to face geographical barriers and time spent travelling from institution
to institution.

Despite this, UCU Wales would like to remind the committee that
digital learning should not be seen as a suitable replacement for
practical sessions. Practical lessons need a lecturer or teacher present
as the expertise they have are needed to oversee work that is done in
these sessions, as well as from a health and safety perspective.

Are you satisfied with the quality of digital learning provision,
especially if it is delivered by private providers?

UCU Wales isn‘t in a position to comment on the quality of digital
learning provision. But UCU Wales does have concerns over the
delivery of digital learning by private providers. UCU Wales believes
that the public purse should not be funding, albeit through institutions,
any private provider that is not subject to the same regulations as
public institutions. Taking this forward, these private institutions would
be receiving public funding, whilst not being accountable to Welsh
Government policies and planning.

How frequently do college principals having to exercise their
powers under the Measure to remove a learner’s entitlement to
follow a course of study?

UCU Wales is not in a position comment on the frequency of college
principals exercising their powers under the Measure to remove a
learner’s entitlement to follow a course of study. We believe the
committee would be best placed to seek the views of principals
themselves on this issue.

What about the child protection issues that the Chair raised?

UCU Wales doesn’t consider there to be any direct child protection
issues. Lecturers in colleges across Wales are all subject to the same
enhanced CRB references that teachers in schools are.

In addition, lecturers in colleges have experience of POVA (The
Protection of Vulnerable Adults), which in the context of the 14-19
agenda would be very similar to a POVA environment. All lecturing
staff in a college has a responsibility to report anything irregular under
POVA to the Reporting Officer within the college, and we would expect
that the same would apply to child protection.

Page 82



Ends

Page 83



Agenda Item 8e

Lesley Griffiths AC / AM N / (ﬁ

Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol .
Minister for Health and Social Services ,J\A

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/ Our ref : SF/LG/6126/11

Christine Chapman AM

Chair of the Children and Young

People Committee

The National Assembly f

Cardiff Bay
Cardiff ’/(L'L

CF939 1NA December 2011

D (ot

In response to your letter dated 1 November, please find below further information on the
points you raised.

Transparency and Accountability

Presentation of Budget

| explained in Committee that the majority of core funding for Health Boards is un-
hypothecated, and it is for Boards to determine how they use this funding to meet the needs
of their local population, including the health needs of children and young people. The
presentation of the Welsh Government budget reflects this arrangement. | have no
immediate plans to set separate Health Board budgets for core NHS services for children

and young people.

The Welsh Government takes very seriously its commitments under the Rights of Children
and Young Persons (Wales) Measure 2011, which comes into effect next year, and in
particular the commitment to improve the transparency of budgeting for children and young
people. The nature of the way health services are managed and funded, and particularly the
information tools currently available, means that this transparency will inevitably be based in
the medium term on a retrospective analysis of past expenditure, rather than a prospective
future budget.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd » Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. lesley. Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov.uk
Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Page 84



Current information on health service costs is generally based at specialty or service group
level. Whilst it is possible to separately identify expenditure on some discrete services for
children and young people, for example paediatric services or CAMHS services, in the main
the costs of services for children and young people are not reported separately from the
costs of adult services.

The limitations of budgeting and accounting for NHS expenditure in this way have been
acknowledged by the NHS. All Health Boards are currently implementing financial systems
to enable "patient level" costs to be calculated in the future. This is a complex programme of
work as it requires Boards to improve data collection within some of their clinical systems.
When these systems have been implemented and tested, which is unlikely to be for another
year, they will enable most NHS expenditure to be analysed in many other ways - for
examples, by age group, by treatment and by clinician.

As more detailed information becomes available in future | will endeavour to share this with
the Committee. | would hope to be able to report progress on this front when the Committee
considers the 2013-14 budget proposals.

Local Health Board Accountability

| do not agree with the Committee’s view that there is a lack of accountability at Local
Health Board level. Health Boards are directly accountable to me through their Chairs and
through the Chief Executive NHS Wales for commissioning and providing safe and
sustainable health services and for delivering the Government’s commitments. There are a
number of ways in which this accountability is exercised:

o Regular meetings between my officials and Health Board and NHS Trust Executive
Directors;

o Systematic monitoring of the performance of NHS organisations by my officials
across a wide range of financial and non-financial indicators as set out in the Annual
Quality Framework on a monthly basis, or more frequently when required:;

o Assurance provided to myself and the Welsh Government by the Healthcare
Inspectorate Wales;

o Regular opportunities for me to address senior NHS management.

All these opportunities are used to ensure that NHS organisations are meeting the
Governments expectations, and to ensure that plans are developed and implemented
where commitments are not currently being delivered.

The Programme for Government sets out a range of indicators that we will use to measure
the outcomes for children and young people from our programmes. | believe that focusing
on the outcomes we are achieving for children and young people will ultimately have a
greater impact than the detail of how much we are spending on these services.

Autism

The Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) Strategic Action Plan for Wales, published in April
2008, considers the whole life of individuals with ASD from childhood to old age. Many of
the actions detailed in the Action Plan are relevant to all ages so the policy intention is to
achieve a more integrated, coordinated, 'life course' approach to responding to the needs of
children and adults with Autism. For this reason it was decided to bring the policy and
budget responsibilities together. Although ASD funding has transferred from the Children's
Social Services Action to the Adult and Older People Action, we have no alternative plans
for the utilisation of this money.

Page 85



Flying Start

Your letter suggests that there may have been some conflict between our stated policy
intention of doubling the number of children benefitting from Flying Start within the life of this
Government, and previous information provided to the Committee. | will therefore restate,
for the record, our absolute commitment to delivering this expansion, increasing the
numbers of children and their families benefiting from this programme from 18,000 to
36,000 within the lifetime of this Government.

The commitment to double the number of children benefitting from Flying Start is one of our
top five pledges for a fairer future. It is clearly reflected in our draft budget where we have
earmarked an additional £55 million which will be used to support the first 3 years of the
programme’s expansion. This significant uplift in the funding, particularly in the current
economic climate, marks our absolute commitment to preventative services in the early
years. In addition, the Minister for Finance and Leader of the House has recently
announced that £6 million of capital funding has been made available to support the
expansion of Flying Start.

As | said to the Committee, | am currently considering the best way of expanding the
programme. There are undoubtedly improvements we can make, and efficiencies we can
generate, based on learning from previous years. However, the basis for targeting the
programme has been agreed,; it will focus on concentrations of families with 0-3 year olds
living in Income Benefit households across Wales. This is more effective than relying too
heavily on WIMD data, which includes 0-18 year olds, or free school meals data for which
our target population (0-3 year olds) is not eligible. In addition, we will introduce a small
element of outreach work so that more of those families that are most in need of Flying Start
services can access them.

This programme is about generating the best possible outcomes for vulnerable children and
their families, and there are always better ways of doing things. My officials are actively
engaged in discussions with local government and LHBs about options for effective delivery.

Evidence from the Interim Evaluation Report, published in October 2010, suggests that
Flying Start is starting to make a real, positive impact on children — when they go to school
they are ready to learn, better behaved and more confident at mixing with other children.
There is also emerging evidence from professionals and parents that suggests
improvements in child development.

Flying Start is an evidenced based programme and was designed in response to evidence
on what works to improve outcomes for children in the early years, particularly those from
disadvantaged backgrounds. Whilst we are still learning the lessons of how to maximise the
effectiveness of Flying Start we consider it a priority to start rolling out the programme to a
wider cohort based on good practice and the evidence to date.

CAFCASS Cymru

Detailed discussions continue on the final budget allocation for CAFCASS Cymru. Any
further funding to be allocated, over that which is in the draft budget proposals, will come
from my contingency reserve and | do not foresee this having any impact on funding for
other programmes.

Page 86



Additional Information

I responded on the 3 November giving additional information on the provision of
wheelchairs fop-children and child and family services.

Jﬁ,&()ﬂ oSS

Lesley Griffiths AC// AM
Y Gweinidog | d a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services

Page 87



Agenda Item 8f

Lesley Griffiths AC / AM
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref:
Ein cyf/Our ref: SF/LG/06259/11

Christine Chapman AM

Committee Chair

Children and Young People Committee

National Assembly for Wales :

Cardiff Bay A~

Cardiff / /‘\ December 2011
CF99 1NA

_DG\,] / QL 4 l/?iLiUE y

Thank you for your letter of 15 November seeking additional information on issues
discussed during my appearance before the Children and Young People Committee on 3
November as part of its inquiry into children’s oral health in Wales. The questions raised are
highlighted in bold and the response follows:

¢ The evaluation of the Design to Smile programme

The final evaluation report of the initial three year cycle of the Designed to Smile
programme is due to be published by the Welsh Oral Health Information Unit at Cardiff
University toward the end of January 2012. A copy of the report will be forwarded to the
Committee following its publication.

e The number of children within Local Health Board areas registered with
Community Dental Service who fall outside of the scheme

While the concept of registration no longer forms part of NHS dentistry, the number of
children seen by the Community Dental Service is shown in the table below.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd » Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. lesley. Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Page 88



Table 2: Patients by age group and CDS, 2010-11

Number of Patienis

Of which
cDs 0-4 5-15 16-64 65+ Total orthadontic
Betsi Cadwaladr 1.900 10,141 T:fth 1,440 21 256 G924
Powys Teaching 510 2425 1,125 418 4478 66
Hywel Dda 1,340 6,497 2,090 217 10,144 278
Abertawe Bro Morgannwg 1,521 4 500 779 342 7,142 438
Aneurin Bevan 1,885 5,928 2643 2,057 12,613 0
Cardiff and Vale 1,506 15,085 3691 2,032 22313 2,036
Wales 8,761 44 576 18,103 6,508 77,946 3,742

Souree: Welsh Govemment

¢ Numbers of Children included in the worst quintile who are being targeted to raise
levels to the middle quintile

Using 2007 Mid Year estimates of single data bands there were a total of 127,486 children
in Wales broken down by age as follows:

Age 3 32,225
Age 4 31,473
Age 5 30,986
Age 6 32,802

Designed to Smile has targeted some 62,000 children to date almost half of those children
aged 3-6.

« Breakdown of schools, by Local Authority, included in the programme outside of
the targeted areas

Some caution needs to be used when looking at the total target population for the Designed
to Smile programme. The schools and nurseries identified for inclusion in the programme
are:

» Those in Community First areas;

» Schools and nurseries at the bottom of a list of settings in the area ranked according
to the number of decayed teeth; and

= A degree of local flexibility, based on the knowledge of the local demographics by the
Community Dental Service teams.

Attached at Annex A is a table which presents the 930 schools and nurseries which have
been geocoded out of the 954 taking part in the programme during April 2010 — March 2011
which have been assigned to the deprivation fifth.

In Blaenau Gwent for example 82.6% of settings come from the two most deprived groups
because the deprivation is more concentrated within the Local Authority. 60% of settings in
Wales come from the second most and the most deprived categories. If the middle deprived
group are included that incorporates 80.5% of the total settings. In other parts of Wales the
pockets of deprivation will result in a lower percentage of settings which are the most
deprived e.g. Denbighshire where 30.3% come from the two most deprived groups.

Page 89



¢ Number of Health Visitors involved in the delivery of Design to Smile programme
for the 0-3 elements and how the additional funding is provided

NHS Health Visitor services do not receive additional funding to support their involvement in
the Designed to Smile programme. Designed to Smile forms part of their mainstream health
promotion advice and support to parents, working in partnership with key agencies. Data on
the number of Health Visitors involved in the delivery of Designed to Smile is not known.

s The evaluation undertaken by previous Welsh Ministers on the possibility for
water fluoridisation and supporting evidence

During the first Assembly, the Health and Social Services Committee (HSCC) was
interested in water fluoridation as a possible topic for a policy review. Two briefing papers
on water fluoridation were submitted to HSSC (October 2000 and December 2001) to note.
In March 2005 the then Head of Health Protection Division met with Dr Brian Gibbons,
Minister for Health & Social Services to decide on whether to commence section 58 of the
Water Act 2003.

The outcome of that meeting was that the Minister decided not to commence section 58 of
the Water Act 2003 in Wales until there is a possibility that the legislation might be used.
Currently there are no proposals to commence the amendments to the Water Industry Act
1991 made by the Water Act 2003. These have been commenced in England, but not in
Wales. Welsh Ministers are currently able to request fluoridation of water supplies in Wales
under section 87 of the 1991 Act as enacted but are not able to instruct water companies to
fluoridate.

In December 2006 the then First Minister, Rhodri Morgan, was provided with a briefing
paper that offered a number of options. This briefing also contained the two HSSC papers
(of October 2000 and December 2001) on fluoridation as background information. The First
Minister noted the briefing. The papers referenced above are at Annex B.

o An example of the letter sent out by Local Education Authority to get parent’s
permission for involvement in the Dental studies

The Dental Public Health team have produced a protocol which supports the planning and
delivery of the NHS co-ordinated dental survey of school year 1 children in Wales. The
protocol outlines processes and standards to ensure the data collected is robust and
comparable across Wales. The protocol which includes a letter template to obtain consent
for children to take part in the survey is at Annex C.

o Further information on the methodology for screening Children’s teeth

The British Association for the Study of Community Dentistry (BASCD) Surveys

These children are selected by school, based primarily on school size and geographic
location. The sample is created according to BASCD criteria, designed to give a
representative sample of all children of the age group concerned (now either 5 year olds or
“rising” 12s i.e. first and last primary school years). The children are examined to provide
epidemiological data. This examination has nothing to do with determining the needs of an
individual child. | understand parents of children participating in the BASCD survey would
only receive feedback in the very rare event that the dentist doing the survey saw significant
oral pathology (e.g. gross sepsis / suspected oral malignancy).

Page 90



Screening

Screening is a long established role of the Community Dental Service (CDS). Under this
arrangement dentists visit schools and carry out a very general inspection of all children to
identify treatment need. A note is then sent home with the child advising parents that the
child either sees a General Dental Practitioner or is offered treatment via the CDS.

There are mixed views within the NHS on the efficacy of school screening which has seen
England abandon the practise. In Wales, screening remains one of the statutory duties of
the CDS. The number of children screened by the CDS, who are not included as part of the
Designed to Smile programme, are shown in the table below.

N.B. Aneurin Bevan has linked their child screening with the Designed to Smile programme
and therefore it is not recorded here.

Table 10: Patients screened by category and CDS, 2010-11 @

Number of Patients

Betsi Powys Abertawe Bro  Aneurin Cardiff

Category Cadwaladr Teachin HywelDda Morgannwg Bevan and Vale _Total
Routine children's screening 2,870 2,570 984 11,701 0 849 13,974
Day centre/hospital (4] 0 0 & 21 a 21
Secure unit/prison 8] 0 0 g &80 g 60
Adults in residential

accommodation 403 116 0 22 g1 0 16861
Other ® ! 184 o 0 0 0 0 184
Wales 3,457 2,586 084 11,922 1,002 849 20,900

Source: Welsh Govemment

{a) Table includes routine children's screening and no longer inciides figures for "Designed to smile”. this is a change from the 2005-10 release.
{h) Betsi Cadwaladr - Adult leaming disability programme

K (n¢) QL 9@@@ S

Lesley Griffiths AC /
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services

Page 91



0€6
a9
LT
€€
19
L0T
T¢
9¢
4"
59
8
14
6¢
61
0S
€e
14
6T
13
6
S¢
0s
€¢

|e30] pueio

SO€
(0]
(0]

144
19

ot
S¢

14

144
9T
9T
€T

paAldap 1SoN

€S¢ T61
9T €T
(0] 4
6 L
LT 1T
LT 0T
4" T
L 1
[4

(014 4"
9 T
9T 14
(]9 14"
4" S¢
9 LT
T ST
8T 9
[4 L
TT T
9T [4
L [4
[44 14
9 €

paAldap 1SOW puodas  panldap I|ppIN

panldap 1sea| puodas
Yl uonealdap 8oz uonreasdaq a|diynIAl Jo xapu] ys|a M Ag s8uinies jo JaquinN

LS

on on N <t

paAlIdap 1sea

|ero] puetp
weyxadpm
uaeo]
ueSiowe|D Jo 3jeA ayL
Basuems

Je] uouA) eppuoyy
sAmod
2J1ysayolquiad
1odmapN

10qje] 10d YyieaN
9JIYSYINOWUOA
[4PAL JAYHBIN
A9s9|3uy Jo 95|
ppauAmo
2J1ysiull4
aJlysysiquaq
Amuo)
uoi8ipaJta)
2J1ysuayriewue)
}ipied

Aliydased
puasplig

JUaMD neuae|g

Page 92



8'ce
191
0°LE
[A)"
€6¢€
0'LS
S'6

6°cT
€€8
§'8¢
00

T'1S
8¢l
9

0'8¢
€/LC
(A=)
€9

v'iT
LSy
0'v9
o'ce
S99

paAlIdap 1soN

alLe
8'S¢
0°LE
€/¢
6'LC
[A-14
T'LS
7’6t
L9T
8'0¢
0'SL
9'G¢E
Sve
S've
0ct
o€

T'6€
S0t
v'ie
0'LT
0'8¢
0wy
T'9¢

paAlidap 1SOW puodas

S'0¢
0'T¢
A
(a4
08T
€6
8y
6'8¢
00
98T
ST
6'8
€8y
0TS
o've
S'Sy
0€T
8'9¢
v'1e
8¢l
0'8
0’8
0'€T

panLdap 3|ppIN

€€l
VLT
S'8T
[ 74
9’9
9'q
eVt
8'LC
00
L'L
ST
'y
00
eVt
ovt
e
7'0¢€
€9¢
eVt
L'TT
00
00T
€y

panlidap 1sea| puodas

T'9
L6
00
Taa
'8
8'C
€Vt
00
00
9'v
00
00
Ve
v
0'ct
00
(e
T'T¢
7'iT
8'CT
00
09
00

paAldap 1sea

|ero] pueip
weyxadpm
uaeo]
uediowe|9 JO dJeA YL
Basuems

Je] uouA) eppuoyy
sAmod
2J1ysayoiquiad
1odmanN

10qje] 10d YyieaN
9JIYSYINOWUOA
[14PAL JAYHBIN
Aasa|8uy jo 9|s|
ppauAmo
2J1ysiull4
aJlysysiquaq
Amuo)
uol8ipaJta)
2J1ysusyriewue)
jipieg

Aliydasen
puasplig

JUaMp neuae|g

U4 uoirealidap 800ZANIM A YN € UIyHM SBUINSS JO %

Page 93



Briefing Paper for the First Minister on Fluoridation of Water Supplies in Wales
Introduction

1. Following a meeting between Dr Brian Gibbons, Minister for Health and Social
Services and the Head of Public Health Protection Division on 3 March 2005 it was
agreed that the Welsh Assembly Government would follow a ‘basket’ of preventive
oral health measures rather than adopt water fluoridation as the dental public health
policy measure in Wales.

2. The key message that the Welsh Assembly Government has conveyed in relation
to the fluoridation of water supplies for sometime is set out below:

“The Welsh Assembly Government has no current plans to fluoridate water supplies
in Wales. The Assembly Government acknowledges that in view of the poor dental
health in Wales, the introduction of water fluoridation has the potential to deliver
significant health gains and address health inequalities. It is sensitive to the fact that
there are some groups opposed to fluoridation.”

Background

3. Following the election of the British government in May 1997, a policy document
outlining proposals to improve the health of the nation was published. This document
placed a major emphasis on reducing inequalities in health and recognised the
continuing poor state of oral health in deprived communities. However, whilst
acknowledging the benefits of water fluoridation as a caries preventive measure, the
Department of Health suggested that most of the research had been carried out
some years ago and furthermore, recognised that strong views were held both for
and against fluoridation.

4. The Chief Medical Officer of England commissioned a review to investigate the
efficacy and safety of water fluoridation and the contract for the review was awarded
to the NHS Centre for Reviews and Dissemination at the University of York (CRD).
Due to the specialist nature of the fluoridation review, CRD invited the Dental Public
Health Unit at the University of Wales College of Medicine to collaborate on the

research, (reference The York Review - A systematic review of public water fluoridation: a commentary BDJ
MAY 11 2002, VOLUME 192,)

5. Further background information related to the fluoridation of water supplies is set
at Annex A.

The Anglesey Experience

6. Fluoridation was introduced in Anglesey in 1955 following County Council’s
application to the Ministry of Health in 1951 to be included in a UK pilot scheme. The
scheme was initially limited to one water plant but in 1964 was extended to the whole
of the island after research showed a 50% reduction in decayed, missing and filled
teeth (dmft) in 5 year old children. It was the only major fluoridation scheme to
operate in Wales. The fluoridation plants ceased to operate after 1991. The 1994

Page 94



annual report of the Chief Medical Officer of Wales stated that "since the reduction
in, then the withdrawal of, fluoridation in Anglesey there has been a 168% increase
in the prevalence of decay in five year old children". There are now no fluoridation
schemes in Wales.

The Health and Social Services Committee Briefings

7. The Health and Social Services Committee has been provided with two papers to
note on Fluoridation on 25" October 2000 and 5™ December 2001. Copies of these
papers are at Annex B and C.

The Safety, Benefits and Effectiveness of Water Fluoridation

8. To our knowledge, the York review was the first systematic review to be
undertaken on the subject of water fluoridation. It undertook a rigorous search of the
published and unpublished literature of human epidemiological studies in all
languages. The protocol was subject to external review as were all intermediate
stages of the review. Throughout the review, progress and intermediate findings
were published on the worldwide web. A summary of the York Review findings is set
out below :-

o The best available evidence suggests that fluoridation of drinking water
supplies reduces caries prevalence,

o There appears to be some evidence that water fluoridation reduces the
inequalities in dental health across social classes

o There is no clear association of hip or other bone fracture with water
fluoridation.

o No associations between cancer and water fluoridation were able to be
detected.

o Dental Fluorosis, a mottling of the teeth, was the most widely and
frequently studied of all the adverse effects considered. It can
occur in a small proportion of individuals.

9. The York Review applied a strict set of modern "research best practice" criteria to
its acceptance process of past research studies and therefore many "fluoride
supportive" papers were eliminated from the review process. Even with this robust
filtering process, the York review confirmed that fluoridation of the water supply can
produce a reduction in dental decay in children of at least 15%. There is also
accumulating evidence of the benefits of fluoridation to the oral health of adults. It is
more effective in reducing health inequalities than campaigns to improve oral
hygiene and diet.

10. Summing up, neither the University of York nor the Medical Research Council
(MRC) in their report of September 2002 found evidence of harm to overall health
where water is fluoridated at the optimum level of 1 part per million.

11. The Wales BMA has for many years been in favour of the fluoridation of mains
water supplies supporting the policy on the grounds of effectiveness, safety and
equity. On the cost-effectiveness of water fluoridation the BMA states - "Studies
comparing the cost-effectiveness of water fluoridation compared with other strategies

Page 95



for reducing caries always conclude that water fluoridation is the most cost-effective
approach. (University of York, Health Economics Consortium)

Reducing Inequalities

12. There is a close correlation between levels of social deprivation and dental
disease. The Welsh Assembly Government has introduced targets to reduce child
poverty in Wales. There are 2 dental targets to reduce dental caries in 5 and 12 year
old children in Wales. Water fluoridation is the single most effective public health
measure available to combat high levels of tooth decay and inequalities in oral health
and benefits everyone irrespective of behaviour.

e.g. fluoridation in Birmingham since 1964 has meant that, despite the high levels of
social deprivation, it has some of the best levels of dental health in England. More 5-
year olds (68.5%) are completely free from tooth decay in the West Midlands than in
any other part of the UK. Compare this to Wales where over 50% of our 5 year olds
have suffered tooth decay. It should be noted that most of that disease burden is
carried within the children from the most deprived areas of Wales.

Water Act 2003

13. The Water Act 2003 amends the Water Industry Act 1991 enabling the Assembly
to request water undertakers to enter into fluoridation schemes. It requires the
Assembly to make regulations governing the public consultation prior to making a
request to a water undertaker. It enables the Assembly to reduce the target
concentration of fluoride from one milligram per litre to a lower concentration by
order so long as the areas to which it relates are in Wales. It provides for the
Assembly to meet the costs of fluoridation and to indemnify water undertakers in
respect of liabilities incurred by water undertakers in complying with fluoridation
arrangements. There is also provision for dealing with England and Wales cross
border arrangements and for the relevant authority to be required to monitor, analyse
and publish reports every four years on the health effects of the fluoridation
arrangements.

14. The Water Act 2003 received Royal Assent on 20 November 2003 and the
Assembly delegated Section 58 to the First Minister on 8" December. The next
legislative steps would be for the Assembly to commence Section 58 by order and
for the Welsh Assembly Government to consult on draft regulations governing the
public consultation arrangements. Section 58 of the Water Act 2003 attempts to
overcome previous difficulties in establishing water fluoridation schemes by
amending previous fluoridation legislation to make it a requirement for water
providers to fluoridate water supplies where they are requested to do so by the
relevant health body. However the relevant health body must first consult with the
local population and must cover the costs incurred by the water provider.

15. The Health Minister has decided not to commence the legislation as yet until
there is a possibility that it might be used. There are 11 properties in Wales (Elan
Valley) that are receiving fluoridated water from a Birmingham and West Midlands
fluoridation scheme. Once Section 58 is commenced in Wales these properties
would become the responsibility of the Assembly including the health monitoring

Page 96



referred to above unless a Section 41 Agreement could be formed with the two
Strategic Health Authorities in England for them to retain responsibility for these
properties. The fact that Wales has not implemented the legislation would need to
revisited if England wished to proceed with a cross border scheme. If such a
scheme was proposed then DH might be able to influence English Strategic Health
Authorities to enter a Section 41 agreement so that they retain responsibility for the
11 Elan Valley properties in Wales.

Differences in England and Wales Position

16. In England, the relevant authority is the Strategic Health Authority. In Wales, the
relevant authority is the Assembly. This means that there are significant differences
in the role of the Secretary of State and that of the Assembly in relation to

fluoridation arrangements.

17. The Secretary of State’s role is to:

. make the necessary subordinate legislation;

J issue indemnities to water undertakers (note that if he fails to do so, this
could prevent a fluoridation arrangement from going ahead); and

o resolve disputes between strategic health authorities and water
undertakers.

The Assembly also has all these responsibilities.

18. The Secretary of State/Department of Health is not involved in:
developing proposals for new fluoridation schemes;
consulting water undertakers on the feasibility of schemes;
consulting the public on proposed schemes;

making a decision on the outcome of the consultation;
negotiating with water undertakers over the terms of schemes;
funding the capital and running costs of schemes; or
assessing the health effects of fluoridation schemes.

In Wales, all these functions fall to the Assembly.
Funding

19. The Office of the Chief Medical Officer currently have no budget for fluoridation
but have registered it with DHSS Resource Directorate as an unfunded pressure.

A bid for resources was made for staff to take forward fluoridation and for programme
expenditure to fund an all Wales scheme but was unsuccessful.

Cost of fluoridation

20. Up-to-date costings for implementation in Wales are not available but a
Technical Feasibility Study carried out in 1997 by Hyder on behalf of the Welsh
Health Authorities stated that the capital cost for installing fluoridation plant at each
of the then 121 water treatment works in Wales was £21 million. The recurrent
annual running costs were estimated at just over £l million. The paper submitted to

Page 97



the Health and Social Services in December 2001 estimated capital costs of
fluoridating all the water in the Dwr Cymru Welsh Water area at £24.3 million.

21. Department of Health advise that running costs of fluoridation schemes are
negligible: of the order of 40 to 50p per head of population per year. This compares
very favourably with the cost of restorative dental treatment. A more targeted
approach or incremental implementation would reduce or spread the costs. The
option to fluoridate areas of Wales on a smaller geographical area basis would need
to be explored with the water undertakers.

22. Another approach would be for Dwr Cymru to meet the majority of the initial
capital costs with government then agreeing to pay enhanced annual payments that
cover running costs and additionally compensate the initial capital investment. The
cost of installing plant to fluoridate water for a population of five hundred thousand
might be around £1m. Then the recurring costs of the fluoride plus the maintenance
of the plant would be about 40p per person per year.

Position in other UK countries
England

23. A number of water fluoridation schemes operate in England. Senior English
Ministers have publicly supported fluoridation and Strategic Health authorities have
been encouraged to adopt schemes as an oral public health measure. The Chief
Dental Officer — England wrote to Strategic Health Authorities and Primary Care
Trusts in England in September 2005 to explain why fluoridation offers them a
realistic option of reducing health inequalities and which trusts should consider as
part of measures to improve the oral health of their populations. The Oral Health
Plan for England encourages public consultations on water fluoridation and if there is
local support, the SHA can make arrangements with the local water company to
fluoridate its water.

Scotland

24. The fluoridation provisions of the Water Act 2003 do not apply in Scotland and
the Scottish Executive recently announced that they would not be introducing
legislation to enable fluoridation schemes in Scotland. Instead they would focus on a
basket of other oral health interventions.

Northern Ireland (NI)

25. There is currently no fluoridation of water supplies in NI and no legislative
provision to accommodate it. The NI Assembly did consider the issue previously but
it did not result in any further action. The Water and Sewage Services (Northern
Ireland) Order 2007, which will come into force in April 2007, will make provision for
the introduction of fluoridation in a similar fashion to that in place in the rest of the
UK. The health authority (currently the 4 Health and Social Services Boards, but a
single Health and Social Services Authority from April 2008) can consult on
fluoridation and request Water Service to introduce it. (NI do not currently have any
water companies, but rather a single government agency which is in the process of

Page 98



becoming a Government Company or 'Go-Co'). Indemnity would fall to the health
authority.

Assembly Funding for the British Fluoridation Society

26. The British Fluoridation Society has agreed to undertake additional work in
2006/07 as part of the Service Level Agreement and as agreed with the Health
Minister. The BFS is preparing a report outlining the background to the water
fluoridation section (Section 58) of the 2003 Water Act; describing the implications of
the amendment for future water fluoridation proposals in England and Wales;
outlining colleagues’ suggestions as to what, if anything, they would do differently if
the English Consultation Regulations were to be revisited; and outlining the
development and contents of a Consultation Toolkit being developed by the BFS.
This work will enable the Assembly to learn from the English experience.

Opposition to Fluoridation

27. Water fluoridation is a subject that, despite past public polls demonstrating a
majority of public support, attracts controversy. The British Dental Association and
the wider dental profession (with some individual exceptions) is also in favour of
fluoridation. However, there are groups which are opposed to it. Their objections
relate to: concerns about adverse health effects; opposition to compulsory
medication (as they see it) and the attendant human rights implications; freedom of
choice; and arguments that alternative, more targeted, oral health interventions
should be pursued instead.

Achieving the new dental targets

28. These targets, see para 12, are achievable but only if additional funding is
comrhitted to_"getting more teeth in contact with fluoride" .This can be done in one of
two evidence-based methods:-

i. Water fluoridation would achieve the required health gain across the whole
population and not just the most deprived fifth. By 2020 (probably well before)
Wales would move from its position amongst those countries with the worst
dental health in the developed world to the amongst the best.

ii. through a major increase in the provision of national preventive
programmes e.g. fluoride toothpaste and toothbrushing schemes.

Options to Implement Water Fluoridation in Wales

29. There would be a number of hurdles to overcome before the Welsh Assembly
Government could implement a water fluoridation scheme in Wales. This includes
the commencement and introduction of Section 58 of the Water Act 2003 in Wales
and the allocation of resources to fund the policy measure. Options for implementing
fluoridation of water supplies in Wales might include:-

Page 99



d.

Fluoridating all water supplies in Wales in one phase. This would have
considerable financial implications, see para 17, and there would also be
practical problems during implementation involving cross border issues.

A staged approach to fluoridate all water supplies in Wales. This would
have the advantage of implementing some water fluoridation in Wales
earlier than option (a) but costs may remain significant due to the
geographical areas covered remaining large scale because of the
complexity of the water supply network.

Selective targeted fluoridation of water supplies on a smaller area basis

identifying areas of poor oral health that might benefit the most from
fluoridation.

Do nothing on fluoridation.

30. Officials consider that if Ministers wish to implement a water fluoridation policy in
Wales then the next step should be the commissioning of a feasibility study from the
water undertakers supplying Wales to identify the practicalities and scope the
possible options open to the Assembly. The study would include estimation of cost
for implementing a scheme(s) and offer more insight into the cross border
implications. The study would provide the Assembly with up-to-date information on
practical options that would best enable informed decision making.

PHPD1

November 2006

Page 100



ANNEX A

Human Rights

1. There is a concern that some people have that fluoridation is incompatible with
Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights Right to Respect for Private
and Family Life arguing that it is mass-medication. In the only case under the
European Convention on Human Rights concerning fluoridation (a Swiss case) the
European Commission on Human Rights considered that it did not need to consider
the issue of whether an interference with the right to respect for private and family
life arose, because any such interference would be justified by the benefits to oral
health.

2. Since fluoride occurs naturally in water, it cannot be compared to a discretionary
medicine. The Medicines Control Agency (MCA) considers that neither fluoride
added to drinking water nor the resulting fluoridated water are medicinal products
which require marketing authorisations as medicines do. The MCA do not consider
that the chemicals used in water fluoridation schemes merit licensing because, at the
very dilute rates at which they are added to water (0.7ppm - 1ppm), no evidence has
been found of risks to health.

Fluoride concentration in water

3. Natural concentration varies. Fluoridation is an adjustment, usually an addition, to
gain the highest level of anti-tooth decay whilst minimising risks of discolouring or
mottling of teeth. In general terms the optimum level for dental health benefits is one
milligram of fluoride per litre of water in temperate climates such as the UK, i.e. 1
part per million the level at which fluoridation schemes operate in this country.
Around six million people in England receive water from supplies that naturally
contains 1 ppm of fluoride.

Fluoride Intake

4. The Government monitor levels of fluoride in water and diet. In 2000, the Food
Standards Agency published a survey of fluoride levels in the 1997 Total Diet Study.
These showed no evidence of an increase in dietary fluoride intake in recent
decades.

Dose control

5. The process of fluoridation is governed by safety regulations enforced by the
Drinking Water Inspectorate. Fluoride levels are monitored at several points before
treated water enters the mains supply and failsafe mechanisms ensure that
operations are automatically shut down and alarms sound if fluoride levels exceed
the permitted limit.

Dental fluorosis

Page 101



6. Dental fluorosis (sometimes evident as flecking or mottling of the teeth) is the one
recognised side effects of water fluoridation, although the affected teeth are still
endowed with the same protection from dental decay. In its more extreme forms,
dental fluorosis may be aesthetically unacceptable but this is usually treatable. Only
in extremely rare and severe cases is it prejudicial to the long-term health of the
tooth.

7. The MRC recommended the Department of Health undertake research into public
perceptions of dental fluorosis and they will be acting on this recommendation.

Skeletal fluorosis

8. Similar all elements and compounds excessive intakes, of fluoride can be harmful.
Skeletal damage can be caused in extreme cases, but there is no evidence of this at
the levels of exposure which occur in temperate, developed countries.

Chemicals used in fluoridation schemes

9. The technical process for adding fluoride to water is a relatively simple procedure
for water engineers who have vast experience of treating water supplies with a
variety of chemicals. The chemicals used in water fluoridation are no more
hazardous than many others already used routinely by water companies.

10. Hexafluorosilicic acid is used in fluoridation of public water supplies. It is not, as
is often alleged, derived from fertiliser production scrubbing operations. It is
manufactured in tandem with production of phosphoric acid, which is made by
adding sulphuric acid to “fluoro-apatite”, a mineral rock containing silica and small
amounts of fluorides. The reaction liberates silicon tetrafluoride as a vapour, which is
bubbled through the water and then dissolves to form hexafluorosilicic acid.

Fluoridation in Other countries

11. Worldwide: over 300 million people drink artificially fluoridated water - including
around 65% of the population of the United States. During August 1999 Los
Angeles, the 2nd largest US city, began fluoridating supplies to its 4 million citizens.
Canada still has extensive water fluoridation serving over 13 million people (i.e.
approx. 40% of the population).

PHPD1 November 2006

Page 102



ANNEX B

Health and Social Services Committee HSS-18-00(p.5)
Date: Wednesday 25 October 2000

Venue: Committee Room 2, National Assembly for Wales
Title: Fluoridation of Water Supplies

Purpose

1. To help the committee decide whether it should have a substantive
discussion on the Fluoridation of Water Supplies and, if so, to identify the
issues it should address.

2. This paper covers A) the background, including the legal position; B) the
conclusions of report from York University; C) the health advantages and
disadvantages of fluoridation; and D) other options for effective fluoride
treatment.

Recommendation

3. The Committee is invited to note the paper. The paper has been copied
to the Clerk of the Environment, Planning and Transport Committee as it
also has an interest in the fluoridation of water supplies.

Timing

4. The Committee asked that this paper be submitted to it’s meeting on 25
October.

A) BACKGROUND

5. The scientific evidence to date supports the view that fluoridation of
drinking supplies at levels of 1 part per million is a safe (World Health
Organisation recommended fluoride level for temperate climates) and
beneficial measure that significantly reduces tooth decay. The fluoride ion
is a natural component of all water supplies. Over 5 million people in the UK
receive water whose fluoride content is naturally occurring or artificially
supplemented to levels between 0.7 and 1part per million. There are
presently no artificially fluoridated areas in Wales

Fluoridation in Anglesey

6. Fluoridation was introduced in Anglesey in 1955 following Anglesey
County Council’s application to the Ministry of Health in 1951 to be included
in a UK pilot scheme. The scheme was initially limited to one water plant
but in 1964 was extended to the whole of the island after research showed a
50% reduction in decayed, missing and filled teeth (dmft) in 5 year old
children. It was the only major fluoridation scheme to operate in Wales. The
fluoridation plants ceased to operate after 1991. The 1994 annual report of

Page 103



the Chief Medical Officer of Wales stated that "since the reduction in, then
the withdrawal of, fluoridation in Anglesey there has been a 168% increase
in the prevalence of decay in five year old children”.

Legal Position

7. There is no requirement on water companies to fluoridate. S 87 of the
Water Industry Act 1991(which incorporated the 1985 Fluoridation Act)
provides that "Where a Health Authority have applied in writing to a water
undertaker for the water ..... to be fluoridated, that undertaker may

........ increase the fluoride content of the water...." In a legal case
involving Northumbrian Water, Mr Justice Collins held that a water company
does not have the same duty to improve health as a public body and can
consequently turn down the requests of health authorities to fluoridate. The
health authority is required by S 89 to advertise a proposal for fluoridation
in one or more newspapers circulating within the area affected by the
proposal; and to give notice to every local authority whose area falls wholly
or partly within that area. In determining whether to proceed, the health
authority is required to have regard to any representations made to them
and to any consultations with local authorities.

8. The Act gives the Assembly powers:

a. to amend the way in which fluoride is added to the water as prescribed
by Section 87(4) of the Act.

b. to agree indemnities for water undertakers in respect of fluoridation
schemes.

The powers under Sections 87 to 91 of the 1991 Act have been delegated to
the Assembly Secretary for Environment, Transport and Planning.

9. If the Government proposed to introduce primary legislation requiring
water undertakers to fluoridate, the National Assembly for Wales would be
consulted. Section 31 of the Government of Wales Act 1998 requires
appropriate consultation between the Secretary of State for Wales and the
National Assembly, on the Government’s legislative programme. Under S33
of the Act the Assembly may consider and make appropriate representations
about any matter affecting Wales.

Position of the water companies

10. Water supplied for domestic purposes is subject to stringent statutory
safeguards. To be wholesome water must contain no more than the
statutory maximum of 1.5 milligrams fluoride per litre. This compares with
the optimum level of 1 milligram per litre recommended for fluoridated
water. A breach might result in enforcement action against the company.
Excess levels of fluoride might also render water unfit for human
consumption, the supply of which is a criminal offence. At present
indemnities are provided to water companies carrying out fluoridation at
the request of health authorities but these are restricted to civil liability
claims and do not cover indemnity against criminal proceedings which might
be brought if unfit water was supplied.

Page 104



11. Water in Wales is mainly supplied by Welsh Water, with some parts in
North Wales receiving water from Dee Valley Water plc and parts of the
Shropshire border area receiving water from Severn Trent Water Company.
A Technical Feasibility Report prepared by Hyder Consulting confirmed that
there were no insurmountable technical difficulties to fluoridating the
water supplies in Wales and Herefordshire. Welsh Water has stated that it
will not accede to a Health Authority request to fluoridate unless it is
required to do so as a consequence of a change in the legislation. This is
because fluoridation would increase - albeit only slightly - the potential of
the company being prosecuted for supplying water unfit for human
consumption. The Northumbrian Water case confirmed that a water
company was entitled to refuse a request to fluoridate on such grounds.

Competition in the water industry

12. A consultation paper was issued in April on ways of increasing
competition in the water industry. One option discussed is "common
carriage” ie shared use of the supply pipes and other infrastructure of an
existing water supplier by a third party to enable the third party to provide
water services in the supplier’s area. The paper recognises this may impact
on the consistency of fluoridation arrangements.

Public Opinion

13. Public opinion on fluoridation was canvassed in the Welsh Office
consultation document "Better Health, Better Wales" (May 1998), and the
majority of respondents favoured the fluoridation of water supplies .
National surveys have also consistently measured support for fluoridation in
the region of 70%. There is also a vocal minority of people who are strongly
opposed to water fluoridation on grounds of its potential adverse effects
and the removal of choice implicit in fluoridating water supplies.

Environmental issues

14.There are concerns about the impact of fluoridation on the aquatic
environment. Fluoridated water would, after use, be discharged into
watercourses or the sea from sewage works. This would have little impact
on the marine environment because natural fluoride concentrations are
already higher than fluoridated drinking water. However, more work needs
to be done to assess the impact on fresh waters.

B) CONCLUSIONS OF THE YORK UNIVERSITY REVIEW

15. The NHS Centre of Reviews and Dissemination at the University of York
was commissioned to "carry out an up to date expert review of fluoride and
health”. The review was published on Friday 6 October 2000. This is a review
of epidemiological studies of water fluoridation and aims to provide a
systematic review of the best available evidence on potential positive and
negative effects of water fluoridation. Ethical issues, environmental
impacts, cost and legal issues are outside the scope of the review.

Page 105



16. The results of the review can be summarised as follows:

water fluoridation reduces the prevalence of dental decay (estimated
mean reduction is 15.5% in decay free children and a reduction of 2.2
teeth affected by decay -ie In a fluoridated area 15.5% more children will
have no experience of dental decay);

stopping water fluoridation increases the prevalence of dental decay in
the area that had been fluoridated compared to the control area;

the beneficial effect of water fluoridation was evident inspite of assumed
exposure to fluoride from other sources;

there is some evidence that water fluoridation reduces inequalities in
dental health in 5 and 12 year olds ( but the studies are very limited);

at 1.0 part per million, the optimum level for water fluoride content, the
prevalence of fluorosis (as defined in this report) is 48% but the
percentage causing aesthetic concern is approximately 12.5%. (It should
be noted that at levels of 0.1 parts per million the review quotes a figure
of 6.3% that have fluorosis of aesthetic concern).

there were no clear associations between bone fractures and water
fluoridation or between cancers and fluoridation;

17. The report involved a systematic review of water fluoridation based on
the research evidence accepted by the Review. That evidence was assessed
for quality using criteria as follows: Level A = Highest quality of evidence,
minimal risk of bias; Level B = Evidence of Moderate Quality, moderate risk
of bias; and, Level C Lowest quality of evidence, high risk of bias. The
review found that few studies were of level A quality and the report
acknowledges that the primary limitation of the review is the quality of the
research included. Such limitations are not surprising when undertaking such
a large systematic review that extends back to the late 1930s and applying
year 2000 standards. In the case of the evidence on natural versus artificial
fluoride sources the evidence was not adequate to reach a conclusion.

C) HEALTH ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES

18.The evidence to date confirms that fluoridation improves dental health
with no major proven health risks, such as bone fractures and cancers.
Other potential adverse effects require further studies. Dental fluorosis of
aesthetic concern which causes an unsightly mottling of the teeth, occurs in
a small proportion of individuals but this can be removed by NHS treatments
and it does not affect the protective effect of the fluoride.

19. Fluoridation primarily benefits young children. Evidence of juvenile
dental caries makes it clear that the exercise of parental responsibility to
minimise dental ill-health is not sufficient. Dental decay can blight the lives
of very young children; in some the effects are so severe that they need
removal of first teeth at the age of 2 or 3. Areas in England where 75% or
more of the population are benefiting from fluoridated water feature in the
top seven areas in the UK with the least number of dental decay in 5 year
old children in the period 1997/98. Water fluoridation also reduces dental

Page 106



caries in adults and this becomes increasingly important in the light of
demographic changes towards an older population.

20. "Better Health, Better Wales " said "Dental decay is almost entirely
preventable. The evidence is that fluoridation of drinking water supplies to
the optimum level can reduce tooth decay by upwards of 50%". It set a
health gain target for oral health:

"to reduce the proportion of children experiencing dental caries ( decayed,
missing, filled teeth) of 1 or more) by 5 percentage points as measured in
British Association for the Study of Community Dentistry Co-ordinated
Surveys from 53% of 5-year olds in 1995 to 48% by 2002, and from 64% of 14-
year olds in 1994 to 59% by 2002 and from 64% of 14 year olds in 1994 to 59%
by 2002."

21. Current progress against this target has been slow: preliminary results
from the 1999/2000 British Association for the Study of Community Dentistry
Epidemiological Survey shows that 52% of 5 years olds have a dmft of one or
more - a 5% improvement on 1995 but still 4% off the target of 48% by 2002.
For 14-year olds the latest position as at 1998/99 shows a 63% figure, only a
1% improvement on 1995 but 4% below the target for 2002. At this rate of
progress it looks unlikely that both these health gain targets will be
reached.

22. In Wales there are statistical associations between inequalities in oral
health and social deprivation. For example, in Monmouth 47% of 5 year olds
have one or more decayed, missing and filled teeth (ie the health gain
target has been reached), while in Blaenau Gwent the figure is 67% which is
18% off the target.

D) OTHER OPTIONS FOR EFFECTIVE FLUORIDE TREATMENT
Fluoride toothpaste, gel or tablets

23. In England, toothpaste schemes are being piloted to test whether they
reduce the prevalence of dental caries in deprived areas. We have no
toothbrushing schemes co-ordinated on an all-Wales basis.

There is less likelihood that those in most need of dental health care,
particularly children in deprived areas, will use such products on a regular
basis.

Fluoridated school milk

24. There are currently 4 milk fluoridation schemes being piloted in England
reaching some 17,000 school children. Access to this starts later than
optimal and it may be subject to compliance problems. The National
Assembly for Wales would need to fully explore the powers available,
associated costs and practicalities of introducing such a scheme.

Fluoridation of Salt

25. There is evidence to suggest that the fluoridation of salt is a highly cost
effective method of reducing dental caries. However, the use of fluoridated

Page 107



salt is perceived to be in conflict with medical advice to reduce sodium
consumption.

Page 108



ANNEX C

Health and Social Services Committee HSS

17-01(p.5)

Date: Wednesday 5 December 2001
Venue: Committee Room 3, National Assembly for Wales

Title: Fluoridation of water supplies in Wales

Purpose

1. To provide the Committee with further briefing on fluoridation to update
and expand on the paper to note submitted to the Health and Social
Services Committee meeting on 25 October 2000.

Summary/Recommendation

2. The Committee is invited to note the paper to assist it in reaching a
decision on programming a discussion. The paper has been copied to the
Clerk of the Environment, Planning and Transport Committee which also has
an interest in the fluoridation of water supplies.

Timing

3. The Committee asked that this paper be submitted to its meeting on 5
December.

Background

4. The paper HSS-18-00(p.5) sets out the background to fluoridation of
drinking water in this country. Members should refer to this for :

Background: legal, water industry, public opinion
the conclusions of the York University Review
the health advantages and disadvantages

and other options for fluoride treatment.

5. This paper covers:

dental health in Wales

National Assembly oral health initiatives

the ethics of fluoridating water supplies
fluoridation - world view

fluoridation in Wales: practical and technical issues
cost benefits

health restructuring

competition in the water industry

further research

conclusions

Page 109



Dental Health in Wales

6. Wales has relatively poor dental health. Annual childhood dental surveys
by the British Association for the Study of Community Dentistry (BASCD)
measure dental decay by the number of decayed, missing or filled teeth(
dmft). The BASCD surveys demonstrate wide variation in the prevalence of
dental caries across the UK. The surveys show that :

dental health in Wales is poor by comparison with England - see graph 1 at
Annex A.

the prevalence of dental decay in Wales are similar to the worst area of
England while deprived areas of England with fluoridated water supplies
have lower prevalence of decay than less deprived areas in Wales - see
Graph 2 at Annex A.

considerable dental health inequalities exist in Wales, closely linked to
deprivation - see graph 3 at Annex A which compares mean dmft in the 5
best dental planning areas with mean dmfts in the 5 worst e.g., in
Tredegar and Dolgellau they are 7 times higher than in Rhiwbina, Cardiff.

7. The 1999/2000 BASCD survey shows that 52% of children in Wales have
tooth decay by the time they are 5 years old and on average those children
have 4 decayed or missing teeth. Levels of decay at this age are an indicator
of future decay. The latest evidence shows that at age 14, 63% of children
surveyed have suffered dental disease.

8. The Welsh Office set health gain targets, reiterated in Better Health
Better Wales, October 1998, for reducing the levels of decay in 5 and 14
year olds:-

"to reduce the proportion of children experiencing dental caries (decayed,
missing or filled teeth (dmft) of one or more) by 5 percentage points, as
measured in BASCD co-ordinated surveys, from 53% 5 year olds in 1995 to
48% by 2002."

The target set for 14 year olds is to reduce to 59% the proportion of 14 year
olds with dental decay. Although there has been some modest progress, it is
improbable that even these targets for improving dental health will be met.

9. The results of the 1998 UK Adult Health Survey show that more adults in
Wales are retaining their natural teeth. However, there are differences
between the four UK countries - the proportion with no teeth was 17 % in
Wales compared to 12% in England. As fluoride acts on the surfaces of the
teeth after eruption, there is a potential for the dental health of adults to
benefit from fluoridation.

Other Oral Health Initiatives

10. This year Health Authorities have been allocated recurrent funding from
the Health Inequalities Fund, for a 3 - year dental fissure sealant
programme targeted on the deprived areas identified for the Communities
First programme. This programme will be delivered by the Community
Dental Service through schools in those areas and once the programme is
established, further consideration will be given to the possibility of involving

Page 110



general dental practitioners. The programme will cost about £0.5m per
year. The target population for 2001-2 is approximately 18, 000 children.

11. The fissure sealants will be provided as part of an overall health
promotion package to those children whose first teeth have suffered from a
significant level of dental decay e.g. children who have experienced dental
caries in two or more molar teeth. The aim is to prevent dental decay in the
secondary molar teeth of these children by treating the surface of four
teeth and by education.

12. This programme is not a substitute for fluoridation and education
packages have not been demonstrated to be effective. It is generally
accepted by dental public health professionals that fluoridation is the basis
upon which other preventative programmes should be built.

Ethical issues

13. The ethical debate on fluoridation of water supplies is a highly
contentious one. On the one hand, it is argued that fluoridation involves a
loss of individual freedom of choice and the provision of mass medication
(medication is generally seen as an important area for personal choice). On
the other, the argument is about depriving those most at risk of dental
decay of the known benefits of fluoridation.

14. It could be argued that enforced medication constitutes a breach of
Article 8 of the Convention i.e. the right to respect for private life and
therefore a breach of the Human Rights Act 1998. The Article provides for
exception to this right where a public authority is acting "in accordance with
the law and is necessary in a democratic society"” for the protection of
health.

15. The principle of proportionality is an important theme in Convention
case law. The Court has reminded that

“inherent in the whole of the Convention is a search for a fair balance
between the demands of the general interest of the community and the
requirements of the protection of the individual’s fundamental rights”

(Eur Court HR Soering v UK, judgement of 7 July 1989 Series A no 161,
11EHRR 439)

16. The principle of proportionality recognises that human rights are not
absolute and that the exercise of an individual’s rights must always be
balanced by the broader public interest.

17. Most naturally occurring water supplies have some level of fluoride
present. In some areas, such as Hartlepool, the natural concentration of
fluoride occurs at the optimal level and benefits dental health. In view of
this, it is difficult to argue that the right to a fluoride-free water supply is a
basic civil right. The purpose of artificial fluoridation is to replicate the
beneficial effects observed in communities receiving water with fluoride
naturally present within the range 0.7 to 1 ppm.

Page 111



18. It has been argued that fluoridation itself can cause harm to health. The
conclusions of the York University Review of fluoride and health are set out
in the previous paper, para 16 and 17, and the health advantages and
disadvantages discussed in paragraphs 18-22. The evidence to date confirms
that there is no major proven health risk but dental fluorosis, a mottling of
the teeth is known to occur in a small proportion of people living in
fluoridated areas.

19. It has further been argued that there are other equally effective
methods of preventing dental decay. Behavioural change through education
is, however, difficult, slow and expensive with children from disadvantaged
backgrounds being least likely to benefit. There is very little evidence that
education is effective.

20. On the other hand it can be argued that a public authority has an ethical
responsibility to make available those measures which can achieve
significant health gain. Why should those who insist on their individual
freedom of choice be permitted to impose the pain and suffering of dental
disease on others, and in particular the most disadvantaged ?

Fluoridation - World-wide

21. In 1958, a World Health Organisation (WHO) Expert Committee on
Fluoridation summarised its findings by stating ‘the effectiveness, safety
and practicability of fluoridation as a means of preventing dental carries,
one of the most prevalent and widespread diseases in the world, is now
well established’

22. Today, there are 40 countries world wide with national water
fluoridation programmes, with an additional 40 million people served by
water which is naturally fluoridated at equivalent levels.2 In the United
States alone over 10,000 communities and 145 million Americans are served
by fluoridated water supplies. One of the most recent U.S cities to
fluoridate was Los Angeles with a population of 3.5 million.

Fluoridation in Wales: Practical and Technical issues

23. There are 3 water companies providing mains drinking water in Wales.
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water ( DCWW) covers most of Wales and most of
Herefordshire, a population of about 3 million. See the map at Annex B. Dee
Valley Water supplies water in parts of North East Wales and Chester. The
remaining area in central Wales is supplied by Severn Trent. Severn Trent
already operate fluoridation plants for fluoridation schemes in England.
Discussions would need to be held with the companies on any proposal to
fluoridate and the areas to be covered. Welsh Water’s policy has for a
number of years been as follows:

"Welsh Water’s principal role is to provide supplies of wholesome water.
We believe that any proposal to increase levels of fluoride does not
contribute to the wholesomeness of the supply and currently we have not
entered any agreements with health authorities to fluoridate water.
However, if changes are made to legislation which requires the addition of

Page 112



Fluoride and provide appropriate indemnification we would clearly comply
with our legal requirements.”

24. Following an approach in the Spring of 1997, from the All Wales
Fluoridation Steering Group of the Welsh Health authorities, Hyder
Consulting has undertaken a study into the technical implications of
fluoridating water supplies in the Dwr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW) supply
area in Wales and Herefordshire. This study has been provided to the
National Assembly, courtesy of the Welsh health authorities, and the
following is drawn from its conclusions.

i) Water Supply

25. In DCWW'’s supply area there are 204 water supply zones, 128 water
treatment works and 5 bulk supplies from Severn Trent Water. The water
supply zones are discrete areas throughout which the water quality is
dependent on the same source or sources ie there are no cross-connections
with other zones. Most areas are supplied by more than one water
treatment works. To provide fluoridated water to a zone the fluoride must
be added at all the water treatment works supplying the zone. The most
complex relationship between a water supply zone and water treatment
works is the Southern Conjunctive Use scheme serving Cardiff and the
surrounding areas. To supply fluoridated water to any of the water supply
zones in Cardiff, all water sources supplying the area would need to be
equipped with a fluoridation plant.

26. Any proposal to fluoridate the bulk water supplies provided by Severn
Trent Water would need to be considered by that water undertaker. A
detailed investigation would be required to check on the feasibility to install
a fluoridation plant on the pipelines that supply this area.

27. DCWW’s 128 treatment works range in capacity from those serving 10
people to populations of about 700,000. They range from small springs and
boreholes with simple chlorination as the only water treatment to others
with complex processes. The equipment and space requirements for a
fluoridation plant are similar at all installations regardless of the size or
complexity of the supply to be fluoridated.

ii) cost

28. The cost of any fluoridation scheme can be broken down into capital
costs for plant and for each water treatment works and operational costs of
chemicals, electricity, equipment maintenance, monitoring, sampling
analysis and reporting.

29. The estimated capital costs of fluoridating all the water in the DCWW
area through each of its 121 water treatment works were £21.7 million with
annual running costs of £1.3 million. Equivalent figures at current prices
would be £24.3m capital and £1.5m running costs.

30. However, since the cost of installing fluoridation plant is the same for
each water treatment works regardless of the size of population it serves,

Page 113



the cost of supplying fluoridated water in some areas would be high relative
to others. It plant were only provided at treatment works with a larger
capacity (more than 2 megalitres (mld) per day) then the estimated capital
costs would be £12.6m with annual operational costs of £1m. Equivalent
figures at current prices would be £14.1m capital and £1.1m running costs.

iii) Fluoridation process

31. The report takes account of the Code of Practice on fluoridation
although it notes that this now needs updating. As far as the process is
concerned, the report points out that many chemicals are used widely in the
water industry, for example sulphuric acid, phosphoric acid, quick lime.
Such chemicals present similar process problems to those associated with
fluoride. These process problems include special requirements for handling
and storage and high levels of reliability and accuracy in dosing and
monitoring. The levels of technology are such that the risks of overdosing
fluoride should be negligible if the installation is operated and maintained
according to established guidelines. There are a number of precautions that
can be taken against the accidental spillage or leakage of fluoridation
chemicals, and to ensure the safety and protect the health of staff.

32. At a concentration of 1mg/1 fluoride is completely soluble and remains
constant throughout the distribution system. The taste, colour and odour of
the water are not affected.

Cost Benefits

33. The University of York Health Economics Consortium reported in 1998 on
the costs and benefits of water fluoridation. It concluded :

studies comparing the cost-effectiveness of water fluoridation and other
strategies for reducing caries carried out in many countries always
conclude that water fluoridation is the most cost effective approach;
calculating the costs of fluoridation is straightforward; calculating the
benefits is less so but using population projections and knowledge of the
underlying oral status it is possible to calculate the numbers of decayed
teeth, fillings and extractions that will be prevented for children born
after fluoridation. This calculation would, however, underestimate the
benefits by excluding adults and children born before fluoridation;

in areas where the average number of decayed, missing and filled teeth
for 5 year olds is 2 or more and where the local treatment works serve
populations of at least 200,000 people, the benefits of water fluoridation
are likely to be significantly greater than the costs. Such areas include
most or all of Wales, Scotland and parts of England.

Even in areas where the costs and benefits are similar, or where the costs
exceed the benefits, water fluoridation may be the most cost effective
way to reduce caries.

Local studies comparing the costs and benefits can confirm these
conclusions.

34. To give an indication of current expenditure on primary dental services
dental treatment, the cost of the General Dental Service for adults in

Page 114



2000/2001 is £60.8m, of which £24.6m is paid by patients. The cost of
services to children is an additional £24.5m. In addition NHS Trusts in Wales
reported expenditure of £17.2 million on dental specialities and a further
£8.7 million on dental paediatric community services in 1999-2000.

Health restructuring

35. The Water Industry Act 1991 provides for Health Authorities to request a
water undertaker to increase the fluoride content of the water supplied by
the undertaker. Before making or withdrawing such a request health
authorities must give due notice to the local population and consult the
relevant local authority or authorities. Restructuring of the health service,
as announced on 15 November will result in the abolition of health
authorities in March 2003. From then, these powers will be exercisable by
the National Assembly for Wales either directly or through delegation to
Local Health Boards.

36. In my announcement on 15 November, | made clear that public health
capacity will be strengthened in Wales. | said that

"At Assembly level this will be achieved under the leadership of the Chief
Medical Officer, and thereafter NHS public health services will be organised
on an all-Wales basis, located within an NHS Trust but with accountability
to the Chief Medical Officer. Responsibility for the health of the population
and for meeting statutory and operational requirements will be at the local
health board level."

37. This new structure would permit progress to be made in the further
work needed at a national level to establish an all-Wales fluoridation
programme with Local Health Boards closely involved in the plans and the
consultation arrangements. The benefit of an all-Wales programme would
lie in targeting the worst areas of dental ill-health first in order to maximise
benefits and tackle the worst cases of disadvantage.

38. A number of issues would, however, need to be tackled, specifically

the issue of statutory powers to require fluoridation if the water industry
maintains its current position;

the updating and implementation of a revised technical code of practice;
the provision of indemnities to water undertakers in respect of
fluoridation schemes.

Competition in the Water Industry

39. Earlier this year central Government announced its proposals for
boosting opportunities for competition in the water industry. A consultation
paper giving further details of its proposals is awaited. Further
consideration will need to be given to the possible impacts of competition
and of ‘common carriage’ (the shared use of supply pipes and other
infrastructure of an existing water supplier by a third party to enable the
third party to provide water services in the supplier’s area) on any
fluoridation scheme.

Page 115



Further Research

40. In the light of the York review the Department of Health has asked the
Medical Research Council to consider what further research might be
required to improve the evidence base in the area of fluoride and health.
The working group is likely to report early next year.

Environmental Impact

41. As indicated in the previous paper to the Committee, further work is
needed on the impact on fresh waters.

Conclusion

42. In view of the poor dental health in Wales, the introduction of water
fluoridation has the potential to deliver significant health gain and address
health inequalities.

43. The recent study by Hyder Consulting, commissioned by the All Wales
Fluoridation Steering Group of the Welsh Health Authorities suggests that a
scheme or schemes in Wales are practicable and technically feasible. Cost
benefit work suggests Wales would benefit significantly. Discussions with the
water industry and further studies would be needed to take this work
forward.

44. The structural changes to the NHS announced recently will facilitate an
all-Wales approach to fluoridation in consultation with Local Health Boards.

Financial implications

45. There are currently no plans to introduce fluoridation in Wales and no
financial reserves within the provision of the Health and Social Services Main
Expenditure Group for fluoridation. There are no additional financial
implications for the Assembly as a result of this paper. Any decision to take
forward further work on the possible introduction of fluoridation is subject
to a successful bid through the annual budget planning round.

Compliance

46. The Health and Social Services Committee can consider the issues in the
paper under Standing Order 9.7.

References
1. World Health Organisation 1958. Expert Committee on Fluoridation.

2. World Health Organisation. Fluorides and Oral Health: Report of a WHO
Expert Committee on Oral Health Status and Fluoride Use. WHO Technical
Report, Series 1994; 846.

3. British Association for the Study of Community Dentistry carries out
childhood epidemiology programme targeted at different age groups each
year, five-year-old children are surveyed in alternate years and 12 and 14
year-olds are surveyed every fourth year.

Page 116



4. This paper has been drafted drawing on information contained in a Hyder
Consulting "Water Fluoridation Technical Feasibility Study for Wales and
Hereford" commissioned by Welsh Health Authorities and "Water
Fluoridation and Public Health" published by Dental Health Foundation in

Association with the Faculty of Public Health Medicine, The Royal College of
Physicians of Ireland.

Annex A
Graph 1

Mean dmft survey of five year olds, Wales compared with England

1995/96
1997/98
W 1998/2000

=
£
o
c
@
<
£

ENGLAND

Graph 2

Page 117



Comparison of dmft>0 in Wales, the West
Midlands and the North West of England

o

WALES WESTMIDLAHDS HORTH WEST

Graph 3

Survey of five vear olds 1999/2000 Mean dmft Dental Planning areas

Mean dmft S year olds 1999/2000, S best dpas, median dpa, S worst dpas

mean dmft

Annex B

Page 118



WALES /ENGLAND
BORDER

SUPPLY AREA
Project
WATER FLOURDATION TECHNICAL , B i St LMAED
FVEQLSQLXD STUDY DFSS Hyder Brstol
A | ST S9E P {eacioel wes [ Consulting :':L::: 8;::; ggg :gg:
e oo WA bRy [ e =
‘NTS LOCAL WX00569 , 51 | Al

Page 119




| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Q G IG lechyd Cyhoeddus

A, Cymru
d‘»'o NHS | Public Health

Wales

2011/2012 Dental Survey Protocol
Epidemiological survey of school year 1
(5-year-old) children in Wales

Dental Public Health Team

Authors: N Monaghan

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc

Publication/ Distribution: (Delete as applicable)
e Public Health Wales (Intranet)

Review Date: N/A

Purpose and Summary of Document:

This protocol supports the planning and delivery of the NHS co-ordinated
survey of school year 1 children in Wales. It outlines processes and
standards to ensure that data collected is of high quality and is
comparable across Wales, more widely across the UK and over time.

Work Plan reference:

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 1 of 39

Page 120



| Public Health Wales

Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

DENTAL SURVEY OF SCHOOL YEAR 1 CHILDREN IN WALES 2011/2012

Welsh Oral Health | Professor | Chestnutt | Dental School, Cardiff University, | 029 2074 4090
Information Unit Heath Park, Cardiff
Mrs M Morgan | Dental School, Cardiff University, | 029 2074 4612
Lecturer in Dental | Heath Park, Cardiff
Public Health
All Wales Mr N Monaghan | NPHS Wales 029 2040 2497
(c;s:.gr(lj)i?sat:z:rt Contact Consultant in Public | Temple of Peace & Health
Cardiff) Health Cathays Park, Cardiff CF10 3NW
Regional Contacts Mr Hugh Bennett NPHS Wales 01792 607329
Public Health Wales
Oldway Centre
36 Orchard Street, Swansea
SA1 5AQ
Benchmark Examiner | Julie Jobbins Clytha Clinic, 27 Clytha Park Road, | 01633 435990
Newport, Gwent NP20 4PA
Dr S Sandham Clinical Director for NWCDS/Director | 01745 443104
DDPH of Dental Public Health, Dental
Administration Office, Royal
Alexandra Hospital, Marine Drive,
Rhyl LL18 3AS
Local Organiser Mr W Challacombe | Dental Department, Pontardawe | 01792 860819

Senior Dental Officer

Healthcare Centre, Alloy Industrial
Estate, Pantardawe, Swansea, SA8

4US

Ros Lewis Senior Dental Officer, Dental Dept, | 01685 359900 or
Hollies Health Centre, Swan Street, | 07968 300546
Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8ET

Cara Lemon Dental, Hywel Dda Health Board, | 01437-771220
Merlins Court, Winch Lane,
Haverfordwest, Pembs SA61 1SB

Mr J Clewett Dr John Clewett 01745 443206

Deputy Clinical Director

North Wales Community Dental
Service

Dental Administration

Royal Alexandra Hospital
Marine Drive

RHYL LL18 3AS

Date: 27 June 2011

Version: Oc

Page: 2 of 39

Page 121




| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

DENTAL SURVEY OF SCHOOL YEAR 1 CHILDREN IN WALES
2011/2012

1

1.2

1.3

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

OBJECTIVES

To record data for All Wales Common Minimum Data Set, 2012, from a
sample of Year 1 (approximately School Year 1) children in areas in Wales in
the school terms, Winter 2011/2012 and Spring 2012.

To obtain valid estimates of caries prevalence of Year 1 children which will be
comparable within areas of Wales and with other areas of the UK where
similar surveys are being carried out.

To evaluate new consent arrangements in line with newly issued guidance

from the Welsh Assembly.

BACKGROUND

The survey will follow BASCD guidelines given in "Guidelines for prevalence
studies of dental caries" published in Community Dental Health 1.1 (1984) 55-
56 and subsequently modified in Community Dental Health Volume 14
Supplement No. 1 March 1997 6-9.

Within Wales the survey findings will be used to aid procurement and

provision of dental services.

The study will be the responsibility of Local Health Boards in Wales, and
undertaken through their community dental service, with the channel of
communication being through the Consultant in Dental Public Health and
Local Organisers.

All-Wales co-ordination will be by the Public Health Wales, through Mr Nigel
Monaghan. Data cleaning and analysis will be undertaken by the Welsh Oral

Health Information Unit, through Mrs Maria Morgan.

Comparability will be achieved by examiners being trained and calibrated to

the Wales benchmark examiner, Dr J Jobbins.

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 3 of 39

Page 122



| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

3
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.2

SAMPLING

Estimated school year populations are required by local organisers in
August/September for sampling. Accurate school year populations are needed
for analysis of weighted means. Local Organisers will obtain accurate school
year population figures in December to use in data analysis. These will be

forwarded to the Welsh Oral Health Information Unit.

The sample will be randomly selected. The aim will be to randomly select 70
subjects from each Dental Planning so that, after allowing for absentees,
refusals etc., at least 50 subjects should be examined in each Dental Planning
Area. There will be no substitution for sampled children who cannot be

examined.

Where Dental Planning Areas contain less than 70 children in the 5-yr-old
group, all children will be examined. Detailed guidance on how to sample has

been prepared and is attached as an appendix to this protocol.

Local organisers should use the method in the guidance to calculate sample
size and randomly select schools. They should forward a copy of the
completed paperwork to the Regional Contact for checking prior to data

collection.

Only one school year will be sampled. The sampling frame will be School
Year 1 (the school year in which the 6th birthday is achieved, the “rising

sixes”).

CONSENT

The survey for 2011/8 will use written positive parental consent. In an attempt
to improve response rate for this survey there will be 2 separate mailings of
the consent form. The first mailing of the consent form will be of the form
printed on white paper. The second mailing of the consent form will be of the
form printed on coloured paper.

For positive consent of parents access to school lists will be required. From

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 4 of 39

Page 123



| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

these lists an appropriate sample of children should be selected. Letters
should be sent to the parents notifying them of the forthcoming survey,
providing them with sufficient information to permit them to follow up any
questions they may have and to provide consent. A sample letter is included
at Appendix 1. The letter should include the planned date of examination and
be sent enclosing an envelope addressed to the appropriate contact in the
school. Only those children whose parents respond to the letter by completing
a consent form should be examined.

It is possible that some schools will not co-operate with this process, for
example by refusing to provide information to allow a random sample to be
drawn. In these circumstances details of the schools and reasons given for
not co-operating should be collected and provided to the Welsh Oral Health
Information Unit.

The consent process within the school setting relies upon the Education
Reform Act 1996 s 520 (2) which means any parental refusal notified must be
respected. In addition parents are not consenting to coercion of children to co-
operate. If either the parent refuses or the child refuses to co-operate then the

child will not be examined.

EXAMINERS AND RECORDERS

The number of examiners will be kept to a minimum as recommended in
Community Dental Health, Volume 14 Supplement No. 1 March 1997, 18-29.

Each examiner will be accompanied by a recorder supplied by the provider

Trust.

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 5 of 39

Page 124



| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

6
6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1
7.2

7.3

8.2

8.3
8.4

TRAINING AND STANDARDISATION

All examiners and recorders will attend a training and calibration exercise to
be based at the Marriott Hotel Swansea from the 12" — 14th October 2011.
Examining teams need to bring their own approved light source, extension
lead, computer, latex-free gloves and reclining chair to the calibration.

The cost of the training and calibration exercise will be borne by the Welsh

Government.

For information purposes additional information on the examination aspects of

the training and calibration exercise is included at Appendix 5.

Prior to the training and calibration exercise it is expected that all recorders
will be trained in use of computers equivalent to the European Computer
Driving Licence (ECDL) module 2, and following that training trained in data

entry using Dental SurveyPlus 2.

THE EXAMINATIONS

The examinations will take place in schools.
Subjects will be prone with the examiner seated behind them.

The recorder will be seated comfortably in a position to hear clearly what is

said by the examiner.

EQUIPMENT REQUIRED

A purpose built light yielding 4000 lux at 1 metre (e.g. Daray) or a similar
protected light source will be used for illumination. In the interests of
comparability, fibre-optic light sources should not be used to transilluminate

approximal surfaces.
Extension flex and plug adapter for use when necessary with the lamp.

Disposable paper roll for laying out instruments.

Spare recording charts, pencils, rubber and sharpener for use in case of

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 6 of 39

Page 125



| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

computer failure.

8.5 Portable microcomputer using Dental SurveyPlus 2 and appropriate extension
and adapter leads and plugs.

8.6  Materials to ensure cross-infection control including containers for clean
instruments, containers for dirty instruments, disinfectant spray/wipes, clean
latex-free gloves, eye protection for subjects, clinical waste bags together with
sufficient cotton wool buds/rolls etc. for each child.

9 EXAMINATION PRINCIPLES

9.1  Diagnoses will be visual using a plane mouth mirror. A blunt ball-ended probe
(CIPTN) with an end diameter of 0.5mm will be used as described below.

9.2  All necessary steps must be taken to prevent cross-infection. A fresh set of
previously sterilised instruments will be used for each subject.

10 EXAMINATION PROCEDURE

10.1  On commencing the session ensure that the Caps Lock is turned on. This will
ensure a consistent approach for surfaces coded T.

10.2 The standard sequence to be used in examination and collecting data is:-

(@)  Collection of standard data related to the session (examiner code,
unitary authority, dental planning area code, school code, school
postcode, date of examination)

(b)  Collection of any personal information (consent sheet colour, pupil
number, date of birth, gender).

(c) Oral examination.

10.3 Teeth will be examined for caries in the following order:

(a) Upper Left to Upper Right

(b)  Lower Right to Lower Left

10.4 Surfaces will be examined in the following order:-

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 7 of 39

Page 126



| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Distal, Occlusal, Mesial, Buccal, Lingual

10.5 Each tooth will be identified and each surface recorded according to the

diagnostic criteria for caries.

10.5 Teeth must not be brushed but may be rinsed prior to examination. Debris or
moisture may be removed from individual sites where visibility is obscured,
with cotton wool. Compressed air will not be used.

10.6 X-rays will not be taken.

10.7 Presence or absence of sepsis in the mouth will be noted and coded.

11 SESSION INFORMATION

11.1 Examiner code: each examiner has a code of 1 letter (which must be entered,
must be used consistently during the survey. Carried forward from previous
record.

11.2  Unitary Authority: pull-down menu. Carried forward from previous record.

11.3 Dental Planning Area (historical health authority codes will be used for 2011/8
up to 5 letters/numbers. Carried forward from previous record.

11.4 School code: an alphanumeric code will be identified for each school, e.g.
AO1, BOZ2, etc. according to area (up to 4 numbers/letters — must be entered).
Carried forward from previous record.

11.5 School postcode, Alphanumeric up to 7 characters, must be completed (use
dummy characters AAAAAAA if postcode needs to be added later) For
postcodes with 6 characters enter as AB1 2CD. Carried forward from previous
record.

11.6 Date of examination: must be entered as DD/MM/YYYY. Carried forward from

previous record.

12 PERSONAL INFORMATION

12.1 (If paper-recording sheets are used Child’s surname and first name. These
details must not be entered into a computer).

12.2 Consent sheet colour. Enter white or colour as appropriate.

12.3 Pupil Number: numerical, up to 5 digits, must be specified (can be considered

as a record number).

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 8 of 39

Page 127




| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

12.3

12.4

13

Date of birth: must be entered as 11/MM/YYYY.

Gender: either Male or Female (or if unable to tell visually Indeterminate).

CARIES AND ORAL SEPSIS CRITERIA

The diagnosis of the condition of tooth surfaces will be visual and the ball-ended

probe will be used only for the removal of debris.

The tooth should be identified by quadrant and letter, A to E (or E to A),
followed immediately by the appropriate surface codes which should be

entered on the appropriate space on the dental chart.

13.1 Surface Code 1 - arrested dentinal decay
Surfaces are regarded as falling into this category if the trained examiner
there is of the opinion that there is hard arrested caries into dentine.

13.2 Surface Code 2 - decayed
Surfaces are recorded in this category if the trained examiner is of the opinion
that there is a carious lesion into dentine.

13.3 Surface Code 3 - decay with pulpal involvement
Surfaces are regarded as falling into this category if the trained examiner is of
the opinion that there is a carious lesion that involves the pulp, necessitating
an extraction or pulp treatment. The examiner will not distinguish between
different possibilities for treatment, e.g. pulp therapy or extraction, and
involvement of the pulp will be the sole criteria. Use this code for all surfaces
when a root only is present.

13.4 Surface Code 4 - filled and decayed
A surface that has a filling (13.5) and a carious lesion (13.2), whether or not
the lesion(s) are in physical association with the restoration(s), will fall into this
category unless the lesion is so extensive as to be classified as “decay with
pulpal involvement”. In the latter case the filling is ignored and the surface
classified Code 3.

13.5 Surface Code 5 - filled with no decay

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 9 of 39

Page 128



| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

Surfaces containing a satisfactory permanent restoration (excluding crowns
and bridge abutments) of any material will be coded under this category (with
the exception of obvious sealant restorations which are coded separately as
N).

Surface Code R - filled, needs replacing (not carious)

A filled surface is regarded as falling into this category if, in the opinion of the
examiner, it is chipped or cracked and need replacing, but there is no “caries
into dentine” present on the same surface. Lesions or cavities containing a
temporary dressing or cavities from which a restoration has been lost will be
regarded as “filled needs replacing”, unless there is also evidence of caries
into dentine in which case they will be coded in the appropriate category of

‘decayed’.

Note: Tooth surfaces should be separately identified. Where categories are to
be combined later, code R surfaces are part of the “Filled” component as no
new caries is evident. This is a change from some previous conventions such
as the inclusion of “unsound” surfaces with decay in the OPCS National Adult

Dental Health Surveys.
Tooth Code 6 - tooth extracted due to caries

Surfaces are regarded as missing if the tooth of which they were a part has
been extracted because it was carious. Surfaces which are absent for any

other reason are not included in this category.

Missing deciduous canines and deciduous molars must be included in this
category. Missing deciduous incisors will not be counted and should be coded
as permanent teeth unerupted (Code 8).

Tooth Code 7 - Extracted for orthodontic reasons

This Code will not be used for School Year 1 children. Missing deciduous
teeth will be assumed to be missing due to caries or natural exfoliation and

coded accordingly. (See 13.7).

Tooth Code 8 - Unerupted

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 10 of 39

Page 129



| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

13.10

13.11

13.12

This code normally applies to permanent teeth. For School Year 1 children it
is used where deciduous incisors are missing (See 13.7), and absent first

permanent molars which will be assumed unerupted.
Surface Code 9 - Excluded

When the examiner is unable to form a judgement on the state of a surface
e.g. because more than half of it is obscured by orthodontic bands, Code 9
should be used. This code should only be used when strictly necessary due to
obscuring of the whole of a tooth surface. (Note: For analysis purposes code

9 is interpreted as sound).

Surface Code C - crowned/advanced restorative procedures

This code is used for all surfaces which have been permanently crowned
(including stainless steel crowns) or which have received permanent items of
advanced restorative care in the form of a veneer or a restoration constituting
a bridge abutment. This is irrespective of the materials employed or of the
reasons leading to the placement of the crown/veneer/bridge. (Note missing

teeth replaced by a bridge are coded 6, 8 or all surfaces T).

(Note: The number of teeth (and surfaces) coded $, N and C should be
separately identifiable. Decayed “d” comprises codes 1 + 2 + 3 + 4. Filled “f

comprises codes 5 + R + N.)
Surface Code T - trauma
A surface will fall into this category if, in the opinion of the examiner, the
tooth/surface has been subject to a traumatic blow and as a result:
¢ |s fractured so as to expose dentine
or
¢ has been treated (excluding crown/advanced restorative procedures)
or

e a surface is significantly discoloured.

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 11 of 39

Page 130



| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

13.13

If any tooth surface is both carious and traumatised it should be recorded
under the appropriate category of decayed. Fillings inserted after an anterior

root filling will be ignored and the surface coded as T.
Surface Code 0 - present and “sound”

A surface is regarded as “sound” is it shows no evidence of treatment or
untreated clinical caries at the “caries into dentine” diagnostic threshold. The
early stages of caries, as well as other similar conditions, are excluded.
Surfaces with the following defects, in the absence of other positive criteria,
should be coded as present and “sound”.

¢ white or chalky spots;

e discoloured or rough spots;

e stained pits or fissures in the enamel that are not associated with

a carious lesion into dentine;

e dark, shiny, hard, pitted areas of enamel in a tooth showing signs of

moderate to severe fluorosis.

All questionable lesions should be coded as “sound”.

13.14 Sealed Surfaces

The ball-ended probe will be used to assist in the detection of sealants. Care
should be taken to differentiate sealed surfaces from those restored with tooth
coloured filling materials used in prepared cavities which have defined
margins and no evidence of fissure sealant (the latter are regarded as fillings
and are coded 5, 4 or R). Sealant codes should only be used if the surface
contains evidence of sealant (including cases with partial loss of sealant), is
otherwise sound and does not also contain an amalgam or conventional tooth

coloured filling. Sealant codes are $ and N.

13.15 Surface Code $ - sealed surface, type unknown
All occlusal, buccal and lingual surfaces containing, in the opinion of the
examiner, some types of fissure sealant, but where no evidence of a defined
cavity margin can be seen. (Note: this category will inevitably include both
preventive and therapeutic sealants).
Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 12 of 39

Page 131



| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

13.16

13.17

14

141

14.2

Surface Code N - obvious sealant restoration
All occlusal, buccal and lingual surfaces containing, in the opinion of the

examiner, a sealant restoration where there is evidence of a defined cavity
margin and a sealed unrestored fissure. (If doubt exists as to whether a
preventive sealant or a sealant restoration is present the surface should be

regarded as being preventively sealed - Code $).

Sepsis in the mouth
Following examination of the mouth, if, in the opinion of the trained examiner,

the presence of an acute abscess or sinus has been noted, code 'Yes' for

Sepsis. If no abscess or sinus has been seen, code 'No'.

DATA COLLECTION

Data will normally be recorded at school on a portable microcomputer using
Dental Survey Plus 2.

A Dental Survey Plus 2 format will be supplied by Mr N Monaghan and must
be used for data collection and analysis. The Dental Survey Plus 2 format will
be available in June 2011. The format should not be altered. If additional data
is to be collected locally is should be collected separately.

14.3 A separate format for recording of refusals by local authorities, by schools and
by pupils/parents will be supplied. These should be completed by local
organisers (including completion of nil returns) and returned to the WOHIU
with the epidemiology data file.

14.4 Examiners and Recorders will have paper charts for recording data in case of
malfunction of the computer.

14.5 Diagnostic criteria will be coded:

Sound = Code 0
Hard arrested decay = Code 1
Decayed into dentine = Code 2
Decayed into pulp =Code 3
Filled and decayed = Code 4
Filled with no decay = Code 5
Filled needs replacing (not carious) = Code R
Extracted due to caries = Code 6
Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 13 of 39

Page 132



| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

This code will not be used = Code 7
Unerupted = Code 8
Tooth excluded = Code 9
Crown = Code C
Trauma =Code T
Sealed surface, type unknown = Code $
Obvious sealant restoration = Code N
15 QUESTIONNAIRE DATA
15.1 Non-clinical data required for the Wales Common Minimum Dental Data Set
will be collected by a questionnaire sent to the parents of the sample children.
The questionnaire contains questions used in the National Child Dental Health
Surveys. The questionnaires are appended to this protocol. These should be
copied for use locally.
15.2 The Betsi Cadwaladr University Local Health Board use a different
questionnaire specific to their needs.
15.3 Examiners are strongly encouraged to enter answers directly onto the
computer when examining children.
15.4 As positive consent is to be used the consent form should be sent to the
parents attached to the questionnaire.
16 USE OF QUESTIONNAIRE
16.1 The questionnaire and consent form can be distributed to parents through the
school. An envelope addressed to the appropriate school contact should be
provided so that completed questionnaires and consent forms can be returned
by parents.
16.2 Questionnaire data will be entered into the Dental SurveyPlus 2 format locally.
17 DATA CLEANING
17.1  The recent improvements in data quality across Wales can be attributed to an
integrated team approach to quality assurance. This team consists of all data
fieldworkers (i.e. dentists and dental nurses), the five local epidemiology co-
ordinators, the WOHIU and the all Wales dental epidemiology co-ordinator.
Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 14 of 39

Page 133




| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

18.3

17.2

18
18.1

18.2

To ensure continued data quality the data must undergo the following three

way data handling process:

e Those collecting the data should adhere to the guidelines within this
protocol and those distributed at the annual training and calibration
exercise.

e The data must then be further processed by the Local Organiser to ensure

consistency of approach across specific regions.

The data is processed once more by the WOHIU to ensure consistency of

approach across the Principality.

Examiners and Local Organisers will check that dates of birth are in the range
5.00-6.99 years (note children should only be beyond this range if they have
skipped a school year or been held back one year). Examiners and Local
Organisers will also check for postcodes and insert them when they are
missing.

12 Postcodes per day can also be found by using the following internet site:

www.royalmail.com by clicking “Find a Postcode”.

DATA PROCESSING

Local Organisers will assemble the clinical and questionnaire data in a single
data file for each Unitary Authority and prepare summary data for each Dental
Planning Area.

In order to ensure a common method is used, data for the Welsh Common
Minimum Dental Data Set will be processed by the Welsh Oral Health
Information Unit. Local Organisers must send a copy of each Unitary Authority
data file, on disk to the Welsh Oral Health Information Unit at the Dental
School, Cardiff. Maria Morgan can be contacted at the unit via telephone on
029 2074 4612. This does not stop Local Organisers carrying our their own

analyses of their copy of the data.

Results will be prepared for Unitary Authorities by the Welsh Oral Health
Information Unit in accordance with the headings of Tables 4 to 8 inclusive of
the Common Minimum Data Set 2012. A copy of the results will be returned to

each Local Organiser and Consultant in Dental Public Health.

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 15 of 39

Page 134



| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

19 BASCD DATA

19.1 A BASCD summary will be prepared for Mr Monaghan by the Welsh Oral
Health Information Unit using the standard reporting form distributed by the
Dental Health Services Research Unit, Dundee. Dental Planning Area data

will be appropriately weighted to give the UA area data.

19.2 BASCD data will be co-ordinated by the All Wales Co-ordinator, working with
the Welsh Oral Health Information Unit, for onward transmission to Dundee by
31 July 2012. Data will be forwarded at District and Unitary Authority levels. It
is expected to cover:

Name of Unitary Authority

Start and finish dates for examinations

Total population of age group

Total number of schools

Number of schools visited

Sample drawn

Number of children examined

Mean age in years and standard deviation

Mean number of dt, standard deviation and 95% confidence interval
Mean number of mt, standard deviation and 95% confidence interval
Mean number of ft, standard deviation and 95% confidence interval
Mean number of dmf teeth, standard deviation and 95% confidence interval
Number and percentage of children with caries experience,

(dmf > 0)

Number of percentage of children with current dentinal decay.
(d>0)

For dt > 0, mean number of dt and standard deviation

For dmft > 0, mean number of dmft and standard deviation

19.3 All means and standard deviations should be recorded to two

decimal places.

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 16 of 39

Page 135




| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

20 TIMETABLE AND DEADLINES FOR RESULTS

20.1 Local Organisers should send their cleaned data file to the Welsh Oral Health
Information Unit by 30 April 2012.

20.2 The Welsh Oral Health Information Unit will prepare data for Tables 4 to 8 of
the Common Minimum Dental Data Set, by Dental Planning Area, for Public
Health Wales by 31 December 2012.

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 17 of 39

Page 136



| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

APPENDICES

1) Positive Consent Letter to Parents

2) All — Wales Questionnaire — English

3) All — Wales Questionnaire — Welsh

4) Sampling Guidance

5) Child Protection Resources

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 18 of 39

Page 137



| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Consent Letter

Address

Address

Address

STD Telephone Number
[Date Stamp Desirable]

Dear Parent/Guardian,
Re (name of Child)............c.coenenmniniiiiiiiiee e

A dental inspection for year 1 pupils at your child’s school has been arranged,
commencing on Day, NN of Month, Year. This is part of a survey programme run in
Wales on behalf of the National Assembly.

The inspection consists of a brief visual examination of the mouth using a sterile mirror
and probe. No treatment will be carried out during this inspection. If a more detailed
examination is indicated you will be informed and appropriate arrangements will be
suggested.

The inspection process will allow us to plan the provision of dental services, to help
ensure children have healthier teeth. We collect only the minimum of personal
information (school postcode, gender, month and year of birth) with information on the
state of children’s’ teeth. We do not collect your child’s name. Please help us by
allowing and encouraging your child to participate and returning to us a completed
questionnaire.

If you have any questions regarding the dental inspection please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Please provide consent for your child to have their teeth examined using the form
provided. Along with the form and questionnaire we have enclosed an addressed
envelope. You can be reassured that we will only examine your child’s teeth if they are
happy for us to proceed on the day.

Thank you for your co-operation.

Yours sincerely,

Name

Clinical Director/Senior Dental Officer/Community Dental Officer

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 19 of 39

Page 138




| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Llythyr Traddodiadol i geisio Caniatad Cadarnhaol

Cyfeiriad

Cyfeiriad

Cyfeiriad

Rhif Ffon STD
[Stamp Dyddiad yn Ddymunol]

Annwyl Rhiant / Gwarchodwr,
Parthed (enw’rplentyn)...............oomeeemeeeeieeeeeeee e eeeen

Trefnwyd archwiliadau deintyddol i ddisgyblion blwyddyn 1 yn ysgol eich plentyn.
Byddant yn dechrau ar Ddydd, NN Mis, Blwyddyn. Mae hyn yn rhan o raglen arolygu a
gynhelir yng Nghymru ar ran y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol.

Bydd ceg eich plentyn yn cael ei archwilio'n gyflym gan ddefnyddio drych a
mewnchwilydd di-haint. Ni chaiff y plentyn unrhyw driniaeth yn ystod yr archwiliad hwn.
Os bydd arwyddion bod angen archwiliad mwy manwl fe gewch eich hysbysu a
chewch awgrymiadau ar gyfer trefniadau addas.

Bydd y broses archwilio’'n ein caniatdu i gynllunio’r ddarpariaeth gwasanaethau
deintyddol, er mwyn sicrhau bod gan blant ddannedd iachach. Dim ond ychydig bach o
wybodaeth bersonol rydym yn ei chasglu (cod post yr ysgol, rhyw, mis a blwyddyn
geni) ynghyd & gwybodaeth am gyflwr dannedd y plant. Nid ydym yn casglu enw’ch
plentyn. Rydym yn gofyn i chi ein helpu trwy ganiatau i’ch plentyn gymryd rhan yn yr
archwiliad a’i annog i wneud, a thrwy ddychwelyd holiadur wedi’i gwblhau.

Os oes gennych unrhyw gwestiynau ynghylch yr archwiliad deintyddol, mae croeso i
chi gysylltu & mi.

Os gwelwch yn dda, rhowch eich caniatéd i’ch plentyn gael archwilio’i ddannedd trwy
ddefnyddio’r ffurflen amgaeedig. Ynghyd &’r ffurflen a’r holiadur rydym wedi cynnwys
amlen & chyfeiriad. Gellwch fod yn hollol sicr na fyddwn ond yn archwilio dannedd eich
plentyn os yw’n fodlon i ni wneud hynny ar y diwrnod.

Diolch am eich cydweithrediad.

Yn gywir,
Enw
Cyfarwyddwr Clinigol/Uwch Swyddog Deintyddol/Swyddog Deintyddol
Cymunedol
Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 20 of 39

Page 139



| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Dental Survey Inspection Consent Form

b do/do not
(name of parent) (delete as appropriate)

give my consent to the participation of

(name of child)

in the All Wales Dental Survey of Year 1 pupils 2011/12

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 21 of 39

Page 140



| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Ffurflen Caniatad ar gyfer Archwiliad
Arolwg Deintyddol

Rwyf i I Nid Wy i ..o .
(diléir fel bo’n briodol) (enw’r rhiant)

yn caniatau i

(enw’r plentyn)

gymryd rhan yn yr Arolwg Deintyddol Gymru gyfan o ddisgyblion
Blwyddyn 1 2011/12

Llofnodwyd

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 22 of 39

Page 141




| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

CONFIDENTIAL
ALL-WALES DENTAL STUDY OF SCHOOL YEAR 1 CHILDREN 2011/2012

NAME
SCHOOL

Please tick the boxes below to give your answer v/

Please send the completed questionnaire and consent form back to school
in the envelope provided.

1. In the last 12 months has your child had No [/ goto 8
toothache (other than teething problems) Yes []

2. If your child did have pain did they also have: Tick all that apply
Swelling of the face or in the mouth? [

A high temperature ]
3. From whom did you seek help for toothache? Tick one or more
No-one I goto 8
Doctor ]

Dentist []
Pharmacist [ |
Other []

Please specify fOr Other.........occvvveisssmrssnmsssnmsssnnsssnnnnnnns

4, On the day you first saw the doctor/dentist/pharmacist/other person what
immediate treatment/advice was provided for the dental pain?
Tick all that apply

Painkillers ]
Antibiotics ]
Extraction of tooth/teeth [
Filling(s) ]
Other ]

Please specify fOr OtHer........cccevvveisssmmssnmsssnmsssnnsssnnnnnnns
5. If extraction or filling was part of the treatment No [
was this done under general anaesthetic? Yes [

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 23 of 39

Page 142




| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

6. How was it between your first visit to the dentist and the visit when
fillings were done or teeth extracted? Please tick one answer
Did not take to dentist

Same day

1 day

2-3 days

4-7 days

More than 1 week

oooogno

7. When are your child’s teeth brushed? Please tick all that apply
Does not have teeth brushed
Morning at home
Morning at school
Afternoon at school
Evening at home
Other

ooooono

Please specify fOr Other........cvccvviersssmmssnmssssmsssnnnssnnnnnnns

8. So far we have asked questions about your child. We'd also like to know a little
about you, the parents or guardians. Would you please answer the following
question about both the parents or guardians of the child, if they live in the
household. If only one parent or guardian lives in the household, just answer for
that parent

In general, do you go to the dentist for:
Mother/female Father/male

guardian guardian
Tick one Tick one
A regular check up O O
An occasional check up O [
O O

Or only when you are having trouble with your teeth?

End
Are there any questions you meant to go back to?

Please send this questionnaire with the consent form in the envelope
provided?

Thank you

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 24 of 39

Page 143




| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

CYFRINACHOL
ASTUDIAETH CYMRU GYFAN O DDANNEDD PLANT 5 OED 2011/2012

ENW

YSGOL
Ticiwch y blychau i ddangos eich ateb i v

A wnewch chi anfon y ffurflen wedi’i llenwi i'r ysgol yn yr amlen a
ddarperir i chi.

1. In the last 12 months has your child had No [/goto 8
toothache (other than teething problems) Yes [

2. If your child did have pain did they also have No L[|

Swelling of the face or in the mouth? Yes [
3. From whom did you seek help for toothache? Tick one or more
No-one ] goto 8
Doctor []

Dentist ]
Pharmacist | |
Other ]

Please specify fOr Other........cccevvimmissnrsssnsssnnmssnsssnnsssnnes

4, On the day you first saw the doctor/dentist/pharmacist/other person what
immediate treatment/advice was provided for the dental pain?
Tick all that apply

Painkillers ]
Antibiotics [
Extraction of tooth/teeth [
Filling(s) ]
Other [

Please specify fOr OtRHer........occevveiisimsssmmssnnsssnnsssnnssnnnns
5. If extraction or filling was part of the treatment No [

was this done under general anaesthetic? Yes [

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 25 of 39

Page 144




| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

6. How was it between your first visit to the dentist and the visit when
fillings were done or teeth extracted? Please tick one answer
Did not take to dentist
Same day
1 day
2-3 days
4-7 days
More than 1 week

oooogno

7. Who brushes your child’s teeth? Please tick one answer
Does not have teeth brushed
Child brushes teeth
Parent brushes teeth
Child brushes, parent checks teeth are clean
Other

Ooooood

Please specify fOr Other........cccvviemivsnrsssnmssnnsssnssssnsssnnns

8. So far we have asked questions about your child. We'd also like to know a little
about you, the parents or guardians. Would you please answer the following
question about both the parents or guardians of the child, if they live in the
household. If only one parent or guardian lives in the household, just answer for
that parent

In general, do you go to the dentist for:
Mother/female Father/male

guardian guardian
Tick one Tick one
A regular check up O O
An occasional check up 0 ]
O O

Or only when you are having trouble with your teeth?

End

A oes yna gwestiynau yr oeddech wedi bwriadu mynd yn 6l atyn nhw?
A wnewch chi anfon yr holiadur hwn i'r ysgol yn yr amlen a ddarperir i chi.
Diolch.

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 26 of 39

Page 145




| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

BASCD Co-ordinated Caries Prevalence Study,
2011/2012

Guidance for Wales on Sampling Year 1 Pupils

Children attending state funded primary schools (including grant maintained
and church schools) in school year 1 will be surveyed. All dental planning
areas contain at least one school. Schools are one of the environments in
which children can be targeted for oral health initiatives. The sampling and
reporting of the results of this years data will be on the school population of
the dental planning area (i.e. sampling and analysis based on school postcode
not home postcode).

Population
The population under study is Children in school year 1.
Strata

The first level strata for sampling are dental planning areas.
The second level strata for sampling are schools.
Information Required for Sampling

A list of schools and the number of year 1 children expected in each school
(August/September data).

Sample size per dental planning area

70 children will be randomly selected from each dental planning area from an
appropriate mix of small and large schools (see following page for method). In
sampled schools all children in small schools will be examined and 1 in 2
children in large schools. However if there are less than 70 children in the
dental planning area include all the children in the sample.

Minimum examination rates
A minimum of 70 children will be examined in each dental planning area.
Data for planning samples and for weighting resuilts

The sample size will be calculated upon the expected school population
(August/September data from schools). The weighting of results will not use

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 27 of 39
Page 146




| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

the expected school population but rather the actual school population
(December data from schools).

Completion of sampling tables
For each dental planning area, complete Table 1 columns 1 to 4, allocating each school a
number.

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 28 of 39
Page 147




| Public Health Wales

Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Table 1: Schools in DPA
(NAME) DPA
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column5 | Column6 | Column7
DPA Schools Schools School’s Selected Selected Selected
Schools with less | with 31 or | Number Yes/No Small Large
than 30 | more Schools Schools
children in | children in
Year One Year One (NB Va
children)
First No. of | No. of | 1
School children children
Name
Last No. of | No. of [ N
School children children
Name

Use the numbers in columns 1 and 2 of table 1 for a DPA to calculate the number of year
1 children in large schools, number of year 1 children in small schools and number of year
1 children in the DPA and enter these in Table 2 for the DPA.

Table 2:

(Name) DPA

No of children

% of Children

Minimum Sample

Small Schools

Large Schools

DPA Total

Numbers and percentages of children in small and large schools

Date: 27 June 2011

Version: Oc

Page: 29 of 39

Page 148



| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Calculate the percentage of children in small and large schools and enter these in Table
2. Them multiply the percentage in small schools by 45 and divide by 100, round up any
fraction to the next whole number and enter the result in the minimum sample box for
small schools. Repeat this procedure to calculate the minimum sample for the larger
schools.

Use the random number generator in Dental SurveyPlus 2 to generate a list of random
numbers in the range of numbers allocated to the schools. Use these numbers to select
small schools (tick in column 5) until there are enough pupils in those schools to match or
exceed the minimum sample for small schools (put pupil numbers in column 6). Similarly
select the large schools (tick in column 5) until there are enough pupils in those schools to
match or exceed the minimum sample for large schools (put 50% of pupil numbers in
column 7).

A worked example for Haverfordwest follows, and blank forms for photocopying follow the
worked example.

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 30 of 39

Page 149




| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Worked Example for Haverfordwest

Table 1: Example schools in DPA
Haverfordwest DPA

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column4 | Column5 | Column6 | Column7

DPA Schools | Schools Schools School’s Selected Selected Selected
with less | with 31 or | Number Yes/No Small Large
than 30 | more Schools Schools
children in | children in
Year One Year One (NB Ya

children)

Broad H 5 001

Burton 12 002

Fenton 39 003 Yes 1:2

Hook 16 004

Johnston 35 005 Yes 1:2 18

Llangwm 8 006

Mary Immac 16 007

Mt Airey 54 008 Yes 1:2 27

Penfordd 5 009 Yes 5

Prend Inf 63 010

Roch 18 011 Yes 18

Rosemarket 3 012

Spittal 16 013 Yes 16

St Marks 24 014

Wiston 20 015

Ysgol  Glan | 13 016

Cleddau

Totals 156 191 = or >32 = or >39

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc

Page 150

Page: 31 of 39




| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Table 2: Example numbers and percentages of children in small and large
schools

Haverfordwest DPA

No of children | % of Children Minimum Sample

Small Schools 156 45% 32
Large Schools | 191 55% 39
DPA Total 347 100% 70
Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 32 of 39

Page 151



| Public Health Wales

Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Table 1: Schools in DPA
.................................................... DPA
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 | Column 5 | Column 6 | Column 7
DPA Schools Schools School's | Selected | Selected | Selected
Schools with  less | with 31 or | Number | Yes/No Small Large
than 30 | more Schools Schools
children in | children in
Year One | Year One (NB Ve
children)

Date: 27 June 2011

Version: Oc

Page: 33 of 39

Page 152




| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

Totals =or > =or>

Table 2: Numbers and percentages of children in small and large schools

No of children | % of Children Minimum Sample

Small Schools

Large Schools

DPA Total

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 34 of 39

Page 153




| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

BASCD Co-ordinated Caries Prevalence Study,
2011/2012

Child Protection Resources

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 35 of 39

Page 154




| Public Health Wales Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

HOW TO MAKE A REFERRAL TO SOCIAL SERVICES

In any case where child abuse is suspected or apparent, the All Wales Child Protection
Procedures MUST be followed (Pages 81-83)

Q.
A

When MUST a child protection referral be made?

As soon as you have significant child protection concerns about a child, a referral
MUST be made to Social Services

Q. Do | have to share my concerns with the parents/carers?

> O P DO >

> PO

. For a child protection referral obtaining parental consent is not obligatory, however it is

good practice to share your concerns with the parents/carers unless to do so would
put the child or you as a professional, at greater risk of harm.

. Who is responsible for making the child protection referral?
. The person who has the concerns MUST make the referral.
. Can | access advice before making the child protection referral?

. Yes, you can ask for advice, but DO NOT allow seeking advice to delay taking action

to safeguard the child.

. Should | make a child protection referral over the telephone?

. Yes you should, but telephone referrals MUST be followed up in writing within 48

hours.

Q. What if it is outside office hours?

. Outside office hours, referrals should be made to the Emergency Duty Team, in

exactly the same way, using the special contact number.

Q. What about child in need referrals?

. These may only need a written referral if there is no urgent need to be addressed and

you should always have the consent of the parent.

They should give you feedback within 48 hours for child protection referrals, and 7
days for children in need referrals. However, if feedback is not received within these
timescales it is good practice for the referrer to contact Social Services.

You may have limited knowledge of the family and feel unable to make a Child-in-Need

referral. If this is the case you Must discuss your concerns with the Named Nurse.

Date: 27 June 2011 Version: Oc Page: 36 of 39

Page 155



| Public Health Wales | Dental Survey Protocol 2011/2012 |

CHILD PROTECTION
REFERRAL PATHWAY

Staff member has concerns
about a child’s welfare

|

Is this child protection?

Yes Not sure
Staff member refers by You can seek advice from social
telephone to Social Services services, NPHS Named Nurse
Duty Social Worker, following or designated professionals
up in writing within 48 hours

giving all the information you

have
(

Send copy of referral to local
Named Nurse & as soon as
possible make signed and
dated records

Concerns are Concerns are not
child protection child protection

|

In an emergency or when the injury is severe a Consigier that the family may
999 Police and Ambulance call should be made benefit from some help from
and Social Services informed Social Services and discuss or
refer with their permission as a
Child-in-Need

REMEMBER THE SAFETY OF THE CHILD IS PARAMOUNT - IF IN

DOUBT SHARE YOUR CONCERNS WITHOUT DELAY
Please refer to the All Wales Child Protection Procedures 2008 page 81-83
www.awcpp.org.uk/9547.html?diablo.lang=eng

.........--------------......PagE.156..................................--



1.1

CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBERS

Kate McDonald Named Nurse Safeguarding Children

01352 803214
* EDT = Emergency Duty Team

NORTH WALES

MID AND WEST

(DYFED POWYS)

MID AND WEST

(SWANSEA)

SOUTH EAST WALES

(BRO TAF)

SOUTH EAST WALES

(GWENT)

Designated Doctor

Designated Doctor
Dr Hywel Williams
02920 715081
(Powys)

Designated Doctor

Designated Doctor
Dr Hywel Williams
02920 715081

Designated Doctor
Dr Aideen Naughton
01873 732726

Designated Nurse
Rachel Shaw
01352 803297

Designated Nurse
Janet Evans
01267 225018

Designated Nurse
Daphne Rose
01792 607536

Designated Nurse
Caroline Jones
01443 824180

Designated Nurse
Lin Slater
01495 332217

Social Services
Flitshire
Day 01352 701000

EDT 0845 0533116

Wrexham
Day 01978 292039

EDT 0845 0533116

Conwy
Day 01492 575111

EDT 01492 515777

Denbighshire
Day 01824 712900

EDT 0845 0533116

Gwynedd
Day 01758 704455

EDT 01286 675502

Ynys Mon
Day 01248 752733

EDT 01286 675502

Social Services
Carmarthenshire
Day 01558 825485

EDT 01558 824283

Pembrokeshire
Day 01437 776325

EDT 08708 509508

Ceredigion
Day 01545 572616

EDT 0845 6015392

Powys

Brecon

Day 01874 624298
Ystradgynlais

Day 01639 844595
Welshpool

Day 01938 552017
Newtown

Day 01686 617520
Llandrindod Wells

Day 01597 827325

Powys ALL areas

EDT 0845 0544847

Social Services

Bridgend
Day 01656 642320

EDT 01443 849944

Swansea
Day 01792 635700

EDT 01792 775501

Neath Port Talbot
Day 01639 764523

EDT 01639 896525

Social Services
Cardiff
Day 02920 536400

EDT 02920 788570

Merthyr Tydfil
Day 01685 724506

EDT 01443 849944

RCT
Rhondda
Day 01443 431513

EDT 01443 849944

Taf Ely
Day 01443 486731

EDT 01443 849944

Cynon Valley
Day 01685 888800

EDT 01443 849944

Vale of Glamorgan
Day 01446 725202

EDT 02920 788570

Social Services
Newport

Day 01633 656656

Caerphilly

Day 0808 1001727

Blaenau Gwent

Day 01495 315700

Monmouthshire
Chepstow

Day 01291 635679

Abergavenny

Day 01873 735908

Torfaen
Day (Customer Care)

01495 762200

For ALL the above

areas the EDT no is:

0800 3284432

Page 157




All Wales Named Nurses Contacts

For All Public Health Wales Staff

Public Health Wales NHS Trust
Kate McDonald

Tel: 01352 803214
kate.mcdonald@wales.nhs.uk

For Staff Who Work In Health Boards ONLY

Cardiff & Vale University Health Board

Kathy Ellaway / Beverley Evans

Tel: 029 20 932628

kathryn.ellaway@wales.nhs.uk beverley.evans7@wales.nhs.uk

Cwm Taf Health Board
Jane Randall

Tel: 01443 443763
jane.randall@wales.nhs.uk

Aneurin Bevan Health Board
Linda Brown

Tel: 01633 623623
linda.brown3@wales.nhs.uk

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Health Board
Kathryn Lewis

Tel: 01639 683164
Kathryn.lewis@wales.nhs.uk

Hywel Dda Health Board

Mrs Karen Toohey (Carmarthenshire)
Tel: 01267 227056
Karen.toohey@wales.nhs.uk

Mrs Ruth Harrison (Ceredigion)
Tel: 01970 635794
ruth.harrison@wales.nhs.uk

Mrs Julie Hughes (Pembrokeshire)
Tel: 01437 773851
julie.hughes@wales.nhs.uk

Powys Teaching Health Board
Mrs Pauline Galluccio

Tel: 01686 617443
pauline.gallucio@wales.nhs.uk

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board
Tel: 01978 725362
michelle.denwood@wales.nhs.uk

Page 158



Agenda Item 8g

= ﬂ_f
Carl Sargeant AC / AM "\/ )
Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau ’//) ,J'IB

Minister for Local Government and Communities

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref

Ein cyf/Our ref

Christine Chapman AM
Chair

Children and Young People
Scrutiny Committee

@Q& Cluishite. 7 b 2o

ACTIONS ARISING FROM CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
ON 5™ OCTOBER 2011

| wrote to you on 26™ October following my appearance at the Children and Young People’s
Scrutiny Committee on 5" October providing information in relation to action points 2, 3and
4 raised by Committee members. In the letter | also informed you that the statistical
information in respect of action points 1, 5 and 6 had been requested from the Youth Justice
Board. This information is provided below.

Action Point 1: The breakdown of placements of children within secure custody in
Wales including location and gender breakdown'.

The following tables provide snapshot data on the number of Welsh young people under 18
years in custody by Youth Offending Team (YOT), 2009-10 (table 1), the number of Welsh
young people under 18 years in custody by establishment, 2009-10 (table 2) and the
number of Welsh females under 18 years in custody by establishment, 2009-10 (table 3).
Please note that due to the small numbers of Welsh females in custody and hence the risk
of being easily identified, table 3 indicates the names of the establishment only and the
average number of girls distributed among them during 2009-10.

' These figures are a monthly snapshot of the custodial population, taken on the last Friday of the month or the first Friday of the following
month, depending on which is nearer to the actual month end. This data is a subset of the data published in the annual Youth Justice
Statistics 2009/10. The YJB does not hold data at local authority level. However, it does hold data down to Youth Offending Team area
which has been provided. The information comes from the YJB's Secure Accommodation Clearing House System (SACHS) database.
These figures have been drawn from administrative IT systems, which, as with any large scale recording system, are subject to possible
errors with data entry and processing and can be subject to change over time.

Bae Caerdydd - Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd » Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales.gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Page 159



Table 1 - SNAPSHOT DATA - Number of Welsh young people under 18 years in custody by YOT, 2009-10

Apr- May- Jun- Jul- Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov- Dec- Jan- Feb- Mar-
YOT 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 09 10 10 10 | Average |
Blaenau, Gwent
and Caerphilly 8 6 - 6 7 8 7 8 8 6 8 7 7
Bridgend 5 6 8 8 8 9 9 11 10 12 12 8 9
Cardiff 33 33 36 37 34 37 32 22 17 24 24 28 30
Cammarthenshire 11 9 9 12 9 9 7 5] 8 4 3 6 8
Ceredigion 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 1
Conwy and
Denbighshire 11 6 6 5 4 6 7 7 “ g 9 5 7
Flintshire 8 9 7 6 4 5 5 5 6 5 6 4 6
Gwynedd Mon 4 4 3 6 5 6 7 3 4 5 2 2 =
Merthyr Tydfil 18 20 16 17 16 11 12 14 1 11 11 13 14
Monmouthshire
and Torfaen 1 1 3 4 6 1 3 4 5] 6 5 6 4
Neath Port Talbot 7 5 4 4 4 5 5 2 2 3 4 5 4
Newport 6 8 10 7 11 10 10 5 5 6 6 8 8
Pembrokeshire 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1
Powys 4 3 3 3 “ 3 3 2 2 2 2 3 3
RCT 10 8 10 12 11 9 9 8 9 8 10 11 10
Swansea 11 9 10 1 7 7 6 6 5 4 4 3 7
Vale of
Glamorgan 8 8 7 4 4 5 6 6 4 5 6 7 6
Wrexham 14 15 13 9 7 11 12 11 6 7 7 5 10
Total 160 151 151 153 143 143 141 122 108 117 119 121 136

Table 2 - SNAPSHOT DATA - Number of Welsh young people under 18 years in custody by establishment, 2009-10

Apr- May- Jun- Jul- Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov- Dec- Jan- Feb- Mar-
Establishment 09 09 09 09 09 08 09 09 09 10 10 10 | Average

e
[o)]

Ashfield 30 35 33 25 24 22 17 15 16 19 25
Atkinson Unit 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0
Aycliffe Young

People's Centre 0 0

Barton Moss
Secure Unit
Brinsford
Castington
Clayfields House
Cookham Wood
Downview

East Moor
Eastwood Park
Feltham

Foston Hall
Hassockfield
STC

Hillside

Hindley
Huntercombe
Medway

New Hall
Oakhill STC
Parc
Rainsbrook

Red Bank
Community
Home

Stoke Heath
Swanwick Lodge
Vinney Green
Warren Hill
Werrington
Wetherby

w
o WM

o}
o
Q. O
o

0
0

b
Py
-
-

OONOOOOON=
202000000 =
_~ONOOOCOOO -

="
i
-,
=
=
e
QOO OoCO=20 MM OO0 20=2=20=
Ay
Y,
!
AT

PN -2000OMNWLN

o)
NMON=2O0=2WW-—-

m%N—N—A-hI\JhCI 0O0000000O=20 o o

‘Q%A-&DQDLW OONOODOOO=20

U‘Ig—‘-OC—IDU'JD (= les Hov oo oo H oo il Moo e 5]

(4]
DNNOoOoONO RN
)]
LﬂaOOOO—iJ‘-‘-L CONOOOCO-=-00

wc{?ooooowl\) O-2ANOO0OOCO -0 =

(413
N2 00WRMN OON-20-=20 =0 =

o
af~ocoanpENnN OcO—20DODOOO-=

-

mgmmomwwo OO0O00CO0O0O0O0O =
-

Ng—*OODhmh OCOW_L000 =20 =

-k

o]
-
el
-
-
-
(8.4]

S N

=W HNN = N
=00 W WO oW
=N 2o o;no

Total

-
=Y
w
-
(4]
=
—
gwmm.&omm

-
ik
aw—‘Dm—‘U‘ID

e
aM—*D-&-—-*U'ID
B ]

= 0C0 00O -
=N
8—3—3CJO'JDU1N
~NOoOOoOOChODN
Wowohoo=
i RN o T o) IRCAN (o Y
gM!\J—tLC‘J

—
e
-9
o
i
i
-
ol
-
=T
]
-

Page 160



Table 3 - SNAPSHOT DATA - Number of Welsh females under 18 years in custody by establishment, 2009-10

Establishment

Apr-
08

May-
09

Jun-
09

Jul-
09

Aug-
09 09 09

Sep-

Oct-

Nov-
09

Dec-
09

Jan-
10

Feb- Mar-

10

10

Average |

Aycliffe Young
People's Centre
Downview
Eastwood Park
Foston Hall
Hassockfield
STC

Hillside

New Hall
Rainsbrook
Red Bank
Community
Home

Vinney Green

Grand Total

6

Action Point 5: The number of nights that children have spent in secure remand, to
see whether the total has been reduced as opposed to the number of children.

The total nights® spent in custody (Secure Children’s Home, Secure Training Centre and
Young Offender Institute) on secure remand by Welsh young people has increased from
8,329 bed nights in 2009/10 to 9,058 bed nights in 2010/11.

Action point 6: The numbers of secure remands ending in custodial sentences.

In 2010 the estimated number of young people on secure remand who received a custodial
sentence in Wales (combined court) was 71 (42%)°.

| would be grateful if you could share the above information with members.

Carl Sargeant AC/ AM

Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau
Minister for Local Government and Communities

* Bed nights are calculated by counting every bed night that occurred during the period, regardless of whether the custodial episode had
started or ended during the period.

3

Defined as being aged 10 - 17 at the date of appearance in court, Includes those remanded in custody at any stage of proceedings at

magistrates' and the Crown Court who may also have been given bail at some stage of those proceedings. Magistrates' courts figures

exclude those committed for trial or sentence at the Crown Court and those who failed to appear. Every effort is made to ensure that the
figures presented are accurate and complete. However, it is important to note that these data have been extracted from large
administrative data systems generated by the courts. Prepared and supplied by Justice Statistics Analytical Services within the Ministry of

Justice.

Page 161



	Agenda
	8a Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 1 - Correspondence from ATL Cymru regarding the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009, at the Committee meeting on 17 November
	8b Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 2 - Correspondence from NTfW regarding the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009, at the Committee meeting on 1 December
	8c Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 3 - Correspondence from Careers Wales regarding the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009, at the Committee meeting on 1 December
	8d Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 4 - Correspondence from UCU regarding the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009, at the Committee meeting on 17 November
	8e Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 5 - Correspondence from the Minister for Health and Social Services (dated 4 December 2011) responding to issues raised during the discussion of the draft budget in Committee on 19 October 2011
	8f Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 6 - Correspondence from the Minister for Health and Social Services (dated 14 December 2011) responding to issues raised during the discussion on the children™s oral health inquiry in Committee on 3 November 2011
	8g Paper CYP(4)-01-12 Paper 7 - Correspondence from the Minister for Local Government and Communities, dated, 22 December 2011, regarding information from the Youth Justice Board following Committee on 5 October 2011

